Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@
CouncilZ
Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Committee
Agenda

Date: Wednesday, 29th July, 2009

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part
2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on
the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declaration of Interests/Party Whip

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or
prejudicial interests or members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to any
item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

Please contact Denise French on 01270 529643 or 01270 529736
E-Mail: denise.french@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for further
information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member of the public




In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a total period of 10 minutes is allocated
for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter relevant to the work of the
Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a
number of speakers.

Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research it would be helpful if
questions were submitted at least one working day before the meeting.

Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2009.

The Cheshire and Wirral Councils' Joint Scrutiny Committee - 7 May 2009
(Pages 7 - 10)

The Joint Scrutiny Committee established by the Councils of Cheshire East/Cheshire West
and Chester/Metropolitan Borough of Wirral had its first meeting on 7 May. The role of the

Committee is to scrutinise the work of the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Trust — the
provider of mental health, learning disability and drug and alcohol services across Cheshire
and Wirral.

The minutes of that meeting are attached for the Committee’s information.

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust Commissioning Strategic Plan
2009-2014 (Pages 11 - 98)

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) have produced a five year Strategic
Plan. The Plan focuses on ten outcomes that contribute to the ambition of the PCT to:

“work with others to achieve sustainable improvements in health and well-being of the
population and to reduce inequalities of health”.

The Strategic Plan is attached for Members’ information and comment. Fiona Field, Director
of Governance and Strategic Planning at the PCT, will be present at the meeting to introduce
the Plan and answer any questions.

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust Healthcare Sustainability Plan
2009/10 (Pages 99 - 150)

The Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) has produced a Healthcare
Sustainability Plan 2009/10. The Plan shows how the PCT will respond to a number of
significant financial challenges during the current year. The challenging financial position has
arisen mainly as a result of purchasing increased levels of acute hospital activity and also
increased expenditure on NHS Continuing Care. The Plan sets out a sustained focus on
finances while delivering improved quality through innovative solutions in all areas of
healthcare.

The Plan is attached for Members’ information and comment. Fiona Field, Director of

Governance and Strategic Planning at the PCT, will be present at the meeting to introduce
the Plan and answer any questions.

Care and Support Green Paper (Pages 151 - 162)



10.

A Care and Support Green Paper has been published and is part of the Government’s Ageing
Strategy. The attached briefing note has been produced by the Local Government
Association and the Strategic Director - People will verbally update the Committee on the
main proposals in the Green Paper.

Redesign of beds outside hospitals - Knutsford and Congleton (Pages 163 -
166)

To consider a report of the Borough Solicitor on a project underway by Central and Eastern
Cheshire Primary Care Trust to redesign beds outside of hospitals in Knutsford and
Congleton.

Pandemic Flu

The Committee will be aware that Swine Flu has now been rated as a pandemic. This is on
the basis that the virus has spread globally.

The Health Protection Agency has advised that the UK has now moved to a treatment phase
to manage the current flu outbreak. As a result GPs will diagnose cases on the basis of
clinical observation rather than laboratory testing. Everyone who has flu-like symptoms will
be assessed by a doctor and if diagnosed with swine flu will be given antiviral medication to
manage their illness.

Fiona Field, Director of Governance and Strategic Planning at Central and Eastern Cheshire
Primary Care Trust will verbally update the Committee on the latest position in relation to
Pandemic Flu.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Committee
held on Wednesday, 20th May, 2009 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor A Richardson (Chairman)
Councillor G Baxendale (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors C Andrew, C Beard, S Bentley, D Flude, S Furlong, O Hunter,
S Jones, W Livesley, A Martin, A Moran and C Tomlinson

1 ALSO PRESENT

Councillor R Domleo, Portfolio Holder for Adult Services

Councillor A Knowles, Portfolio Holder for Health and Well-being
2 OFFICERS PRESENT

J Weeks, Strategic Director People

P Lloyd, Head of Services for Adults

C Harrison, Head of Transformation

M Flynn, Legal and Democratic Services

D J French, Legal and Democratic Services
M Middleton, Finance Team

3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS/PARTY WHIP

RESOLVED: That the following Declarations of Interest be noted:
B Councillor D Flude declared a general personal interest on the grounds
that she was a member of the Alzheimers’ Society and Dial a Ride; and
m Councillors Andrew and Tomlinson declared a general personal interest

due to their involvement with the Local Access Group (Macclesfield and
Wilmslow).

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no Members of the Public present who wished to address the
meeting.

5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 23
March 2009 be approved as a correct record.

6 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT



Page 2

The Committee considered a report on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for
Cheshire East. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007 placed a duty on upper-tier local authorities or unitary Councils together
with Primary Care Trusts to undertake Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
(JSNA).

This was a process that identified current and future health and well-being needs
of a local population, informed priorities and targets set by Local Area
Agreements and led to agreed commissioning priorities that would improve
outcomes and reduce health inequalities. The production of the JSNA was to be
lead by the Director of Public Health and Director of Adult Social Services and
Director of Children’s Services, working in collaboration with the Directors of
Commissioning. It was to be a whole system approach, not just about health and
social care.

The process was underpinned by:
B Partnership working;
®E Community engagement including with patients, service users and carers,
providers including from the third sector, aimed at developing a full
understanding of needs;
m Evidence of effectiveness — identifying relevant best practice, innovation
and research to inform how needs would best be met.

The JSNA would be taken into account as part of the Comprehensive Area
Assessment and the Council and its partners would need to provide evidence
that

B needs and aspirations were understood and that the JSNA had input into
the Sustainable Communities Strategy and Local Area Agreement and
that there was a focus on the needs of the vulnerable and areas of
inequality;

B Outcomes and improvement were delivered by ensuring that the JSNA
informed commissioning decisions which in turn lead to improved health
and well-being and inequalities were reduced;

m the future prospects for the area were being considered, including how the
JSNA would be updated and how true partnership and community
engagement could be achieved.

In November 2008 “A First Look” report had been published which set out the
initial findings of the JSNA and identified some early priorities including:

B children and young people aged 0 — 18 years;
Older people aged 65 years and over;
Long term health conditions including diabetes and high blood pressure;
Inequalities;
Lifestyle choices that impacted on health and quality of life, including
alcohol and smoking.

The key findings showed a significant increase in the number of older or very old
people in Cheshire East. Alcohol was the largest emerging lifestyle threat to
health. Smoking remained a significant cause of preventable illness and
premature death and was the primary reason for the gap in health life expectancy
between rich and poor. Breast feeding rates were not meeting the target and low
numbers of children having the MMR vaccine had resulted in a recent outbreak of
measles in the community.



Page 3

This report had been widely distributed and a consultation period undertaken.
Although a low number of responses had been received, half of the respondents
had agreed that the correct priorities for Cheshire East had been identified and
90% agreed that resources should be directed to areas where they would make
most difference.

Governance arrangements would be made through a Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment Steering Group with representatives from the Primary Care Trust,
Local Authority, Third Sector, Crime and Disorder Partnership and Local Strategic
Partnership.  This Steering Group would report into the Local Strategic
Partnership, Local Area Partnership and Primary Care Trust Board on a regular
basis.

In discussing the report Members noted that adult participation in physical activity
was generally similar to the national average and suggested the Council should
aim to be above average. It was explained that some areas of the Borough had
high physical activity whereas in others it was very low. The Cumbernauld Arena
in Crewe had high numbers of attendance and Members were told that
Community Workers from the Council adopted a proactive approach to try to get
young people to join sports clubs. It was suggested that using existing sports
and activity groups to promote and encourage new groups to be set up could be
a useful approach. There were also a number of clubs run by volunteers who
could be eligible for grant aid and that this should be promoted. Funding was
also available through Connexions.

RESOLVED: That

(a) the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment be noted and the work undertaken by
the Primary Care Trust and Local Authority be welcomed;

(b) the Governance arrangements be noted and endorsed: and

(c) the Steering Group be requested to circulate relevant information to the Local
Area Partnerships at the earliest opportunity.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE REDESIGN - IMPLEMENTATION

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director — People on the
implementation of Adult Social Care redesign. The redesign would result in
localised services, control and choice in the hands of individuals; reduced
bureaucracy; improved preventative and information services and a change to
the shape and nature of provision. Service users could expect to understand
what they were entitled to and have more choice about how best to achieve
outcomes against assessed need.

In order to improve overall responsiveness and better local working six locality
teams were proposed with a variety of roles including the provision of information
and signposting, preventative services, assessment, support planning and
provision of advocacy. Each team would be mapped onto the seven Local Area
Partnership boundaries so in time their performance could be managed and
measured with other key partners within each locality.



Page 4

There would be an impact on provider services due to giving users more choice
and control and it was intended to develop more commercial and business-like
practice within current in-house providers and better value and choice for users.

The provision of transport was to be reviewed as most transport provided within
Adult Services was not an assessed care need and therefore did not have to be
provided directly by the Council.

The introduction of a personalised service meant that all users would be given a
Personal Budget based on an upfront and transparent Resource Allocation
System (RAS). Individuals would be told at an early stage in their contact with
the service the amount of resource to which they would be entitled. Needs would
be assessed and allocated points which were then converted into a numeric
allocation through a set formula. Users could decide to take this allocation as a
cash payment (Direct Payment) or continue to receive services direct from the
Council to the level determined in the RAS. The RAS would be used for all new
users and users requiring unscheduled reviews during 2009-10 and would then
be rolled out to existing users subject to evaluation that it w as an appropriate
method for ensuring correct outcomes for users and a stable financial situation for
the Council.

Reablement and preventative services were to be implemented as part of the
Redesign with the aim of increasing independence, improving quality of life and
reducing the call on the social care budget. Pilot studies were underway to
determine precisely how these services would be applied.

Joint working with Health partners was underway and a project involving the top
100 high intensity users of Council and Health services was being jointly
progressed to inform the future design of services.

A widespread consultation exercise had been undertaken by the former County
Council and responses received indicated overall support for more choice and
control, clear and transparent charging mechanisms, alternatives to current
services being available and greater flexibility.

During discussion of the report the following issues were raised:

B The Council had a duty to meet assessed care needs of those assessed
to have critical and substantial needs who were therefore eligible for
services through Fairer Access to Care Services criteria. Such users
would then be financially assessed to determine the level of contribution
they would be required to make towards their care;

B The Redesign would make savings through efficiencies not through a
reduction in service;

B What level of capital did individuals need to have before becoming eligible
for Local Authority help? In response the Committee was advised of an
approximate figure of £23,000 but this would be clarified and circulated
outside of the meeting;

m What were the timescales for assessments to be undertaken and were
these met? In reply Members were advised the timescale was
approximately 10 working days and this was usually met;

B Did enabling people to have a direct payment mean they were at greater
risk of being exploited? Members were advised that there could be an
increased risk but that the Council was required to offer direct payments
which did lead to far greater independence for service users. There was a



Page 5

responsibility on everyone to safeguard both vulnerable adults and
children;

B Could direct payments be spent outside of the Local Authority area?
Members were advised that those receiving direct payments were able to
spend them wherever they chose and that payments were made on a
monthly basis.

RESOLVED: That
(a) the consultation on Social Care Redesign be endorsed;

(b) the report to Cabinet be amended by the inclusion of additional
information in relation to Safeguarding to reflect the additional funding for new
posts within the Safeguarding Unit;

(c) the Cabinet be advised that the Committee supports the Redesign
proposals as outlined at the meeting; and

(d) an update be provided to a future meeting on progress following the
Redesign.

8 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS

The Committee considered a report of the Borough Solicitor on the Calendar of
Meetings for 2009-10.

The report outlined that the Committee was currently scheduled to meet on a
monthly basis but although the Committee had a high volume of business, it was
suggested that monthly meetings may not be sustainable. It was therefore
proposed that the Committee meet on alternate months on an 8 weekly cycle and
the other scheduled meeting dates be used for Mid Point meetings, involving the
Chairman, Vice Chairman and group Spokespersons.

RESOLVED: That the current Calendar of Meetings be amended so that the
Committee meets every 2 months on the following dates:

m 29 July;

B 16 September;
m 18 November;
® 13 January;
m 10 March

and other dates listed on the Calendar be used for Mid Point meetings.
9 SWINE FLU EPIDEMIC

The Committee was advised of the current position regarding the Swine Flu
Epidemic.



10

Page 6

Members were advised that Swine Flu was classed as a level 5 outbreak across
all countries and was not yet classed as a formal epidemic. Partnership working
was taking place to develop contingency plans in case an epidemic occurred and
Emergency Planning teams were involved. A Flu advice line was to be
introduced and Antiviral Collection points were being identified. Although current
numbers of cases were low there was an expectation that more cases would
occur in the Autumn.

RESOLVED: That the update on the current position regarding Swine Flu be
noted.

CENTRAL AND EASTERN PRIMARY CARE TRUST - FINANCIAL
SITUATION - MATTER OF URGENCY

In accordance with Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
Chairman agreed that the financial position of the Primary Care Trust (PCT) could
be considered as a matter of urgency on the grounds that the Primary Care Trust
Board had only recently approved a Sustainability Plan and it was important that
the Committee be informed of the PCT’s proposals.

The Committee was informed that the PCT was facing a difficult financial position
and had devised a Sustainability Plan that had recently been considered by its
Board. The PCT was currently predicting a budget deficit but was required to
have a balanced budget and the Sustainability Plan was designed to address
this.

There were various reasons for the financial difficulties including increasing
demand for Continuing Care, increase in secondary care especially at Mid
Cheshire Hospital Trust and significant numbers of people choosing to use the
NHS rather than opt for private care.

RESOLVED: That the update on the Primary Care Trust’s financial situation be
noted and considered further at the next Mid Point meeting.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.25 pm

Councillor A Richardson (Chairman)



Page 7 Agenda Item 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Cheshire East/Cheshire West and
Chester/Wirral Joint Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 7th May, 2009 at The Boardroom, Cheshire County Sports
Club, Plas Newton Lane, Upton, Chester

PRESENT

Councillor A Bridson (Chairman)
Councillor D Flude (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors C Andrew, G Baxendale, | Coates, A Dawson, P Donovan, J
Grimshaw, S Jones, P Lott, P Reisdorf, A Richardson, D Roberts, G Smith, R
Thompson and G Watt

Apologies
Councillors C Beard and S Taylor
1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED: That Wirral Councillor A Bridson be appointed Chairman of
the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED: That Cheshire East Councillor D Flude be appointed Vice
Chairman of the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Scrutiny
Committee held on 21 January be confirmed as a correct record.

4 ARRANGEMENTS FOR ESTABLISHING THE JOINT SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered a report of the Cheshire East Borough
Solicitor on proposals for establishing the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

The report outlined the background to the Joint Scrutiny Committee - a
Joint Scrutiny Committee had been in existence since 2004 between
Cheshire County Council and Wirral Metropolitan Council to scrutinise the
work of the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Trust (CWP) — the provider of
mental health, learning disability and drug/alcohol services across
Cheshire and Wirral. The Committee noted that Terms of Reference for



Page 8

the new Committee had been proposed based on those used for the
previous Committee and updated accordingly:

“1 to undertake the Scrutiny of, and report on, any matter relating to
the planning, provision and operation of services provided by the Cheshire
and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (including commenting on
the annual “health check” of the performance of the Trust) within the areas
of Cheshire East Council, Cheshire West & Chester Council and Wirral
Metropolitan Borough Council

2 to consider and comment upon any proposals submitted by the
Trust for substantial development or variation in the provision of its
services

3 to consider any matters referred to the Joint Committee by
Cheshire East Council Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee, or
Cheshire West & Chester Health and Wellbeing Select Panel, or the
Metropolitan Borough of Wirral’s Social Care, Health and Inclusion
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4 to consider any matters referred to the Joint Committee by the
appropriate Local Involvement Network (LINk).”

The report outlined the legal framework in relation to Substantial
Developments or Variations in service (SDVs) upon which health services
must consult Scrutiny bodies. It was noted that SDVs were not defined
but the key feature was that there was a major change to services
experienced by patients. The Committee discussed adopting a Protocol
to assist with dealing with SDVs based on three levels of changes to NHS
services that would require notification/consultation to Scrutiny.

The membership of the new Joint Scrutiny Committee comprised 6
Members from each of the 3 Authorities. It was proposed that the position
of Chairman and Vice Chairman should rotate on a yearly basis with the
Authority that did not hold one of those positions nominating a
Spokesperson. The Committee agreed quorum should be set at 6
Members representing each of the three Authorities. The former
Committee had allowed named Substitute Members and it was agreed
that this should continue.

The Committee discussed frequency of meetings and meeting venues. It
was also proposed that mid point meetings should be held involving the
Chairman, Vice Chairman and Spokesperson to meet with relevant
officers including from the Partnership Trust to identify and prioritise in
advance anticipated Committee business.

The Committee noted that the previous Joint Scrutiny Committee had had
co-opted Members from the former Patient and Public Involvement
Forum. This organisation had now been replaced by the Local
Involvement Network (LINK). It was agreed that the issue of co-option
should be considered at a later date.

RESOLVED: That

(a) the Terms of Reference be approved;



Page 9

(b) a Spokesperson from Cheshire West and Chester Council be

nominated to officers before the next meeting;

(c) updated Protocol and Procedure Rules be submitted to the next

meeting of the Committee;

(d) the principle of holding Mid Point meetings comprising the

Chairman, Vice Chairman and Spokesperson be approved;

(e) the quorum for the Committee be 6 Members with a minimum of 2

from each Council;

(f) a Briefing/Training Session be held on Thursday 18 June at

10.00am at the Trust Board offices.

The meeting commenced at 11.30 am and concluded at 1.00 pm

Councillor A Bridson (Chairman)



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11 Agenda Item 6

Central and Eastern Cheshire m

Primary Care Trust

Commissioning Strategic Plan 2009 - 2014

Better, Longer Lives



7.

Page 12

CONTENT

Foreword — Chair, Chief Executive & PEC Chair

Vision — Our Vision for the Future

21.
2.2.
2.3.
24,

Strategic Ambition

Lifecycle of Care

Our Values & Principles — ‘Golden Threads’
Our Strategic Goals

Context — Geographical and Organisational

3.1.
3.2.
3.3.
3.4.
3.5.
3.6.
3.7.
3.8.

Our Population - Demographics and Health Needs Assessment
Capturing Insights of Patients, Public and Staff

Our Current Performance and Quality

Expenditure on Commissioned Activity

Provider Landscape

Financial Position

National and Regional Drivers for Change

Equality and Diversity

Strategy — Improving Health & health Outcomes

4.1.
4.2
4.3.
4.4.
4.5.
4.6.
4.7.

Strategic Development Process

Desired Outcomes

Change Programmes (Initiatives)

Prioritisation Process

Overall Impact of Change Programmes on Outcomes
Specific Change Programmes and Impact
Investments

Scenario Planning — Adapting For The Future

Delivery — Implementing Our Strategic Plan

6.1.
6.2.
6.3.
6.4.

Organisational Development to Support Delivery

Resourcing our Strategic Plan

Governance & Performance Management of the Strategic Plan
Delivery of our Strategic Plan to drive ‘Healthier Horizons’.

Declaration of Board Approval

Attachment 1 — WCC Outcome Measures



Page 13
Strategic Ambition

“Work with others to achieve sustainable improvements in health and well-being of
the population and to reduce inequalities of health”

The strategic ambition is to be accomplished through the
Lifecycle of care

Mair)tain Encouraging
wellbeing and Staying
independence Healthy

during ill health

Appropriate
ease of access
& timely care
for life events

Strategic Goals
. Enable children to reach their full potential by making sure they are healthy
Ensure older people are supported when needed, so that they can maintain
independence for longer and enjoy good health
Develop High Quality Primary Care Services
Develop urgent care services, in the right place delivered at the right time
Improve equity of access to good health services for all our population
Develop comprehensive (Integrated) care pathways
Bring care closer to home
Excellent quality of care is delivered across all our commissioned services
Optimise resource use and health outcomes by making appropriate use of acute

facilities. @

Strategic Direction
17 Change programmes which deliver the strategic goals

-

Key outcome areas
Each change programme has a number of key outcome areas which show a demonstrable
improvement in health outcomes for the population

1l

World Class Commissioning Outcome Areas
10 chosen outcome areas will be used to demonstrate how the change programmes have
turned the dial to improve health outcomes for the population, indicating how we are
reaching our ambition of sustainable improvements in well-being of the population and
reducina health ineaualities

Underpinned by Golden Threads which are the basis of our values and
principles applied to all our work

uonique s16aje3s ano o} dn yoeq A;3oadip Yul| Sawos}no yjjesy paroiduwy



Page 14

1. Foreword — Chair, Chief Executive & PEC Chair

We are pleased to present this five year Strategic Plan. It focuses on ten outcomes that
reflect some of the key health needs in the communities that we serve.

The ten outcomes contribute to the achievement of our established ambition of:

“Work with others to achieve sustainable improvements in health and well-being of
the population and to reduce inequalities of health”

To deliver our work as commissioners, we have a set of values that mean we work with
stakeholders in an open, honest, ethical and inclusive way. We place a high value on
working with others because we know that we cannot effectively deliver this plan on our
own.

We believe that our PCT and our partners are well placed to deliver this Strategic Plan; we
have a proven track record of improving health and health services.

We hope that this Strategic Plan effectively tells the story of where we are now and where
we want to be in the next five years, in particular we believe that by reading this plan you
will have a better understanding of the needs of the communities we serve and the
opportunities we have to make a real difference to health and well-being.

We look forward to implementing the Strategic Plan and continuing to lead the PCT to
develop health and health services through, and with, our partners, including most
importantly, the population we serve.

Professor Pauline Ong
Chair

Michael Pyrah
Chief Executive

Dr Bill Forsyth
Medical Director/PEC Chair



Page 15

2. Vision

2.1. Strategic Ambition

As the local leader of the NHS, Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT (CECPCT) has an
ambition to:

“Work with others to achieve sustainable improvements in health and well-being
of the population and to reduce inequalities of health”

Our Strategic Plan, ‘Better, Longer Lives’, sets out how we will deliver our ambition and
overall vision.

2.2.Lifecycle of Care
To encompass all that we do, CECPCT has recognised that the services we commission will
be based upon a lifecycle of care:

Maintain
Independence & Encourage
well-being staying
during ill-health Healthy

Appropriate
access &
timely care
for life events

In order to meet this lifecycle of care we will, for example, encourage staying healthy
through working with the Local Authority and other local partners to commission services
which address the impact of environment, economic, transport and education on health to
increase healthy lifestyles. Through this work we aim to raise awareness, in the population,
of the early signs of illness and increase the early detection of disease through screening
(for example breast screening).

We will commission appropriate access and timely care for life events; for example,
good accessible primary care services to help people through short-term iliness, urgent care
services for accidents which occur during life, maternity services and for hospital care, for
example cataracts, removal of appendix from which a person will fully recover and carry on
their normal life.

We will commission services which will maintain independence and well-being during ill-
health for example good community services and support for people with long-term
conditions such as diabetes and stroke.



Page 16

2.3.0ur Values & Principles — ‘Golden Threads’

Delivery of CECPCT'’s vision is based on a set of values and principles, which we describe
as our ‘golden threads’. They run through all our work, and particularly underpin our
improvement programmes, to ensure a connected way of working. They are essential to
delivery of world class services to the people of Central and Eastern Cheshire.

We will :

Work in partnership to be a strong commissioner of high quality services (C.A.S.E.).
Engage and communicate with our patients, the public, stakeholders, clinicians and
staff to influence decision making.

Deliver integrated governance, which is open and transparent to ensure we are
accountable for our actions.

Strive to be a learning organisation, so we can continually improve what we do.
Empower clinicians and other staff to continually improve services and outcomes.
Make the best use of knowledge, information and technology to support our decision
making and delivery.

Take account of equality and diversity in all areas of our work.

Personalisation is evident in the services we commission.

We have developed a Quality Framework (C.A.S.E.) as a demonstration to our commitment
to continually improving the quality of care, ensuring patients’ views are sought, heard and
acted upon. C.A.S.E. enables this process and is used as part of the monitoring of clinical
quality.

Care — the patient experience must be positive. Patients should be treated as
individuals and afforded dignity and respect.

Accessibility — Patients must be able to readily access services. Services must be
designed to meet the different needs of communities and individuals to ensure equity of
provision.

Safety — it is vital that we protect our patients and staff, and manage all risks effectively.
Effectiveness — it is important that our interventions result in positive outcomes, and that

our work is cost-effective. Service must co-ordinate with other health and social care
services to ensure patients receive seamless care.



2.4.0Our Strategic Goals (for the next 5 years)

Page 17

We have developed a focused set of strategic goals to deliver our ambition. These have
been chosen by using a prioritisation process and developed by reviewing the health needs
assessment and national data sets, talking to our partners, stakeholders and the public
about outcomes they would want to see improved. We have also considered the National
and Regional priorities described in ‘High Quality Care for All’ and ‘Healthier Horizons’. Key
questions we asked when considering our strategic goals for the next 5 years were:

What is the overall performance of CECPCT?

o What factors contribute to health inequalities within Central and Eastern Cheshire?
o What are the issues that the public and patients are telling us about?
o What are the clinicians telling us are the priority areas?
o What's the national, regional and local context we are working within?
Strategic Goal Rationale
Goal 1 | Enable children to reach their full potential Improving the health and well-being of children and young
by making sure they are healthy people will have a positive health legacy for those
individuals as they grow and will reduce inequalities in
health

Goal 2 | Ensure older people are supported when We have the fastest growing older population in the

needed, so that they can maintain North West, which will have significant implications on the

independence for longer and enjoy good type of healthcare provision required. There will need to

health into old age be an emphasis on healthy aging and self-care to help
keep the older population well for as long as possible.

Goal 3 | Develop high quality primary care services; | Primary care should provide high quality personal care
and support, treating people when they are sick and also
helping them to stay healthy.

Goal 4 | Bring care closer to home; We want to develop our community hospitals as a network
that provides appropriate services away from secondary
care, and closer to people’s homes

Goal 5 | Develop the right urgent care services, in We want to commission an Urgent Care system built on

the right place at the right time; delivering high quality emergency and urgent care, closer
to people’s homes, which offers patients greater choice,
better information and value from an expanded range of
health and social providers.

Goal 6 | Improve equity of access to good health Services should meet the needs of every individual in a

services for all our population; diverse population; a service which feels personal to each
and every individual within a framework of equity and
good use of public money.

Goal 7 | Develop comprehensive and integrated care | Delivering effective and integrated care pathways for

pathways; people affected by poor health and limiting long-term
conditions will improve their health outcomes, improve
quality and value for money.

Goal 8 | Quality of care is delivered across all our Caring about care and putting quality at the core of all

commissioned services. commissioned services is one of our golden threads. Itis
also emphasised in Darzi’s ‘High Quality Health for All’,
which stated that quality should be the organising
principle for health services, and set out proposals for
quality accounts to be routinely drafted by all healthcare
providers in time.

Goal 9 | Optimise resource use and health outcomes | It is our aspiration to provide the right care at the right

by making appropriate use of acute place at the right time. All services, particularly our Acute

facilities services, need to be utilised optimally both to provide
patients with care in the most appropriate setting, and to
make the most efficient use of our resources.

To achieve these goals, we will be focusing our attention and resources over the next 5
years on a range of initiatives - a set of change programmes to deliver, develop and




Page 18

reshape local services — whilst ensuring value for money and targeting those most in
need. These Change Programmes are outlined in Chapter 4; each has a number of key
outcome areas to meet which will give tangible indicators to how we are achieving our
ambition of sustainable improvements in well-being of the population and reducing
health inequalities.

World Class Commissioning Outcome Areas

As part of the World Class Commissioning process 8 outcome areas have been chosen
plus 2 national areas to demonstrate how we have turned the dial to improve health in
key areas. These areas were selected through a rigorous process which determined
which outcomes would show the greatest change; as these are outcome areas for which
we are currently struggling to achieve against targets or our performance is lower than
expected. The chosen outcomes are:

8 Local Outcomes:

Infants Breastfed — “Make Breastfeeding the accepted norm”

To achieve an increase in breastfeeding initiation rates and make breastfeeding the norm in infant feeding in
Central & Eastern Cheshire.

Dignity & Respect for All -“Caring about care”

All users of health and social care services to be treated with dignity and respect and that commissioning of
services reflect the principles of dignity in care, including robust monitoring systems to ensure dignity and respect
underpins all care activity.

Transforming Urgent Care services - “Right (urgent care) services, in the right place at the right time”
To reduce emergency admissions due to ambulatory care conditions, placing the PCT in the top quartile against
national performance.

Alcohol Harm Reduction — “The population should know what equates to an unhealthy level of drinking”
To reduce the levels of alcohol health and social care related harm such as hospital admissions and death related
to alcohol and achieve systematic s@reening and assessment of patients who are harmful drinkers and provide
targeted pathways of care.

Cancer mortality - “Treating cancer quickly”
To increase the proportion of people who are diagnosed at an earlier stage of cancer and treat quickly and
effectively to positively influence <75 years cancer mortality rate.

Stroke — “Delivery of our stroke care pathway”
To increase the Percentage of Physiotherapy Assessment within 72 Hours, and to improve services for those who
suffer stroke and to intervene early to prevent stroke.

Mental Health — “Diagnosed earlier, treated better and independent longer”
60% of expected dementia sufferers are captured on a practice-based register and they have an active care plan.

CHD - “We have a systematic approach to diagnosis and treatment.”
We will reduce the CHD mortality rate for all ages.

2 National Outcomes:

Reducing Health Inequalities & Improving Life Expectancy - “Narrow the gap & move the mean”

To secure a reduction in health inequalities, improve the health of all but improve the health of the worst off (as
defined through life expectancy and poor health) faster.




Page 19

3. Context - Geographical and Organisational

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust is responsible for organising primary care
and community health services for the 453,000 residents across the former boroughs of
Crewe and Nantwich, Vale Royal, Macclesfield and Congleton; commissioning other NHS
organisations to provide services to our local people; and improving health and reducing
health inequalities. From 1% April 2009 the PCT will cover the new Unitary Authority of
Cheshire East and the population of Cheshire West and Chester Unitary Authority, mainly
located in the former Vale Royal borough area.

Our geography is spread across rural and urban communities, small and larger towns and

villages stretching from the southern Pennines in the east across the central Cheshire plain,
covering 1547 sq km of Cheshire.

Central & Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust Boundary

© POYNTON
@ WILM'SIEOW

® OALDERLEY EDGE
KNUTSFORD (6] BOLLING'iON

@ NORTHWIGH @ MACCLESFIELD

@ CONGLETON
@ SANDBACH

® ALSAGER

@ CREWE

O NANTWICH
e== CECPCT boundary

[ ] Cheshire West & Chester Council within CECPCT
[ ] Cheshire East Council outside CECPCT

CECPCT PHIT
Dotted Eyes ® Crown copyright and/or database right 2009.
All rights reserved. Licence number 100019918

The north east of the district is a commuter belt for Greater Manchester, with the affluent
towns of Wilmslow, Alderley Edge and Prestbury. The more rural areas consist of
villages still engaged in agriculture, which is mainly traditional dairy and orchard. Post
industrial towns such as Macclesfield, Congleton, Northwich, Winsford and Crewe are
regenerating with new industries.



Page 20

The Gender make-up within Central and Eastern Cheshire in 2001 showed 49% of the
population were males and 51% were female. This is similar to national average;
however there are more females within the older age groups and this is likely to
increase.

The 2001 census data which informed the Partnership Disability Equality Scheme across
Central and Eastern Cheshire found Disability and Long-term iliness within the North
West to be 20% of the total population, within Cheshire it is 17.4% of the total
population.

Our geographical area has a broad tourist base and includes places of historic interest
such as Nantwich. As with other geographically attractive areas there is a significant
retired community emerging as Cheshire has a higher than national average population
of over 65 year olds. We have the fastest growing elderly population in the North West.

Service Provision

Within our boundaries there are 52 GP practices, 90 pharmacies, 90 dental practices
and 59 ophthalmic practices. Cheshire East Community Health (CECH) provides
community services across the Central and Eastern Cheshire.

There are two District General hospitals within our area, Mid Cheshire Hospitals
Foundation Trust in Crewe and East Cheshire Trust in Macclesfield; three Community
Hospitals (Northwich, Knutsford and Macclesfield) and a major Mental Health partner,
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Foundation Trust. We work with a wide range of
partners in the community and voluntary sector.

Organisational Changes

There have been a number of complex reorganisations which have impacted on the

capacity and capability of the PCT to sustain stability and maintain relationships. The

PCT has recently undergone its third reorganisation since 2002:

¢ In 2002 Central Cheshire PCT was created from two Primary Care Groups (PCGs),
part of the South Cheshire Health Authority, and a Community NHS Trust. East
Cheshire PCT was created from two PCGs, part of South Cheshire Health Authority,
and Community services provided by East Cheshire Hospitals Trust and a
Community NHS Trust.

e In 2006 Central and Eastern Cheshire PCTs merged to create the current PCT.
In April 2008 our provider services, Cheshire East Community Health (CECH) were
established as an ‘Arms Length Management Organisation’.

A major reorganisation of one of our commissioning partners has had a significant
impact on delaying joint commissioning arrangements. Cheshire County Council (along
with the 6 local district councils) underwent a major reorganisation in 2009. This created
two unitary authorities from the previous two tier system. There is a renewed
commitment to partnership working, particularly at a strategic planning level to maximize
the opportunities presented by the new ‘single-tier system. As part of the creation of two
unitary authorities, the two Cheshire PCTs — ourselves and Western Cheshire PCT will
have to reorganise service delivery to reflect the lack of co-terminus approach with the
new councils. (See Map on page 9)

10



Page 21

3.1. Our Population — Demographics and Health Needs Assessment
This section describes the health of the population in Central & Eastern Cheshire and is
based on information derived from health needs assessments from three sources:

e Local Epidemiological information: CECPCT undertakes an iterative programme of
epidemiological comparative and corporate needs assessment.

¢ Joint Needs Assessment for 2008/09 was undertaken jointly with the County Council
and Western Cheshire PCT and was overseen by a steering group comprising of the
Director of Public Health, Commissioning, Adult Social Care and Children’s Services.

e Director of Public Annual Reports.

These assessments, and the more recent Director of Public Health Annual Report, which
focused on our PBC groups and GP practices will continue to influence our commissioning
decisions.

3.1.1. Population & Demographics - Key Issues 2008-13

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (CECPCT) has a population of 453,000
residents spread over rural and urban communities. Table 1 below illustrates that the PCT
has fewer young adults and a correspondingly higher proportion of people in all age
groups over forty than the national age distribution.

Table 1 - Population Pyramid for Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust

500% 4.00% 3.00% 200% 1.00% 0.00% 1.00% 200% 3.00% 4.00% 5.00%

Percentage of total population

Female @mEmMale =—DMaleEngland =—=Female England |

Source: Exeter download mid 2008 for CECPCT residents
CECPCT has the fastest growing ageing population in the North West. The overall

population is predicted to increase by 16% (70,200 people) by 2031. Over 80% of the
overall increase is predicted to occur in those aged 65 and over. Initially the population

11



Page 22

aged under 44 is predicted to decline but all age groups will increase over the total time
period from 2006 to 2031.

Nationally there has been a rise in fertility in all age groups since 2001. Similar increases
have also been taking place in CECPCT where between 2002 and 2006 the number of
live births rose from 4,413 to 5,064. CECPCT birth rates vary by age; with the highest
rates being seen in women aged 25 to 34.

The proportion of non-white ethnic groups has risen from 1.6% (7700) in 2001 to 2.8%
(13,600) in 2005. This population is distributed in the urban centres of Wilmslow, Crewe
and Winsford as well as a relatively high percentage (1%) in the rural areas surrounding
Crewe, Nantwich and Macclesfield. The highest number of non-white residents are within
the Macclesfield area, within 3 wards which includes, Dean Row - 11.59%, Hough - 9.1%,
Morley and Styal - 7.1% and Crewe/Nantwich includes two wards St Johns - 8.48% and
Minshall - 6.74% Borough’s. Some of our towns have experienced recent migration from
Eastern European countries; however this is a constantly changing picture as the national
and international economic situation shifts.

Further work will be undertaken to identify equality groups within the newly formed local
Area Partnership areas and area programme Boroughs and Neighbourhoods. Services
planned and delivered within deprived neighborhoods will evidence how they are meeting
the needs of the diverse population. By ensuring that all groups are able to access
appropriate health care services and appropriate health related information, we can help to
reduce health inequalities for all groups

3.1.2. Consequences of Population Ageing - Key Issues 2008-13

The impact of the rapid ageing of our population will have to be considered when planning
and prioritising service delivery over the next 5 years. Two issues, falls and long term
conditions are considered in detail.

Falls

Falls are common occurrences with increasing age and are strongly associated with
chronic/long-term conditions. In the UK falls, are the major cause of disability and the
leading cause of mortality due to injury in older people aged over 75 years of age. There
are significant costs to individuals, their families and public services due to hospitalisation,
social care, repeated falls, loss of independence, impaired mobility and isolation.

Table 2 on the next page shows the population forecast for people aged 65 and over in

CECPCT and the estimated number of fallers. In 2007, it was estimated that there were
23,601 fallers and of these 2360 had an injury and half of these had a fracture.

12



Page 23

Table 2 - Forecast of falls for Central and Eastern Cheshire 2007 — 2021

Year Population Estimate of Falls with Falls with
Forecast 65+ Fallers injury fracture
@30% @10% @5%
2007 78,670 23,601 2,360 1,180
2011 86,800 26,040 2,604 1,302
2016 100,100 30,030 3,003 1,502
2021 109,000 32,700 3,270 1,635

National evidence suggests that approximately 10% of all ambulance call outs are for
people aged 65 and over who have fallen, of which approximately 60% are taken to
hospital. Table 3 below demonstrates the top five ambulance call outs (taken from a spot
week comparator) for the North West for November 2007 and November 2008. Falls is the
greatest reason for call outs with 14% in 2008 and 13.8% in 2007.

Table 3 — Top 5 Reasons for an Ambulance Call Qut in the North West

NATURES By Activity O NWAS 05 November 2007 to 11 November 2007 m NWAS 03 November 2008 to 09 November 2008

2,500
2,000 -
1,500
1,000

500

0 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
FALLS (17) BREATHING PROBLEMS CHEST PAIN (10) UNCONSCIOUS / SICK PERSON (SPECIFIC
(06) FAINTING (NEAR) (31) DIAGNOSIS) (26)

Local data suggest that around 3500 to 4000 older people attend A&E each year as a
result of a fall. Out of a total of 55,103 people attending A&E at East Cheshire NHS Trust
between April 2007 and March 2008, 1484 (2.7%) were fallers over the age of 70 and 51%
of these were admitted onto a ward, 22% to fracture clinic, A&E review or GP follow up.
20% had no follow up.

Long-Term lliness Conditions

Table 4 on the next page shows the number of people affected by poor health with limiting
long-term illness (LLTI) and Table 5 shows the number of people aged 65 and over ‘Not in
Good Health’ with a LLTI within CECPCT. The numbers will increase roughly in line with
the size of the ageing population. Of the total population, over 17% have “limiting long-
term illness”. There is variation again between the districts both for the total population
and for those aged 65 or more. Vale Royal has the estimated highest proportions and
Macclesfield the lowest.

13



Page 24

Table 4 - Number of People affected by poor health with limiting long term illness

Total Population Not in Good Health and
All Age Groups in 2005 with Limiting Long-term lliness
Number % of Total
Population
Vale Royal 124,600 10,100 8.1%
Crewe & Nantwich 113,600 9,000 7.9%
Congleton 91,700 6,400 7.0%
Macclesfield 150,500 10,000 6.6%
4 Districts 480,500 35,500 7.4%

Source: Cheshire Council, Forecast of Health of Older People (2005-2021)

Table 5 - Number of People aged 65 and over affected by poor health with limiting

long term iliness

Age Group Total Not in Good Health and
65 or more Age 65+ with Limiting Long-term lliness
in 2005 Number % of Total Age 65+

Vale Royal 20,300 4,600 22.7%
Crewe & Nantwich 19,100 4,300 22.5%
Congleton 15,700 3,200 20.4%
Macclesfield 28,500 5,300 18.6%
4 Districts 83,600 17,400 20.8%

Source: Cheshire Council, Forecast of Health of Older People (2005-2021)

3.1.3. Child and Family Health - Key Issues 2008-13

Childhood Immunisation

Childhood immunisation up-take is generally good. MMR uptake however has remained at
or below 88% for the last seven years. This uptake level has been insufficient to prevent
sporadic cases or clusters of disease. Approximately 340 more infants need to be
immunised each year to achieve the target uptake of 95% that is required to prevent
outbreaks of disease. In 2007 there were 16 notifications of measles, 46 of mumps and 8
of rubella in CECPCT. We have recently had a significant outbreak of measles between
October 2008 and January 2009 with approximately 146 notifications of measles which
required a mass immunisation programme to bring it under control.

Breastfeeding

Breastfeeding rates are lower than the national average and lower than expected when
compared with levels achieved by similar PCTs. CECPCT achieved a 59.5% initiation rate
in 2007/08, compared to 76.8% achieved by the best performing PCT within the same
Office for National Statistics (ONS) grouping ‘Prospering Smaller Towns (c).
Breastfeeding significantly reduces occurrences of certain childhood illnesses such as
otitis media (ear infection), gastroenteritis, asthma and reduces the likelihood of obesity
later on in life. Breastfeeding also protects mothers from a wide range of ilinesses such as
breast and ovarian cancers, reduction in type 2 diabetes and an increased likelihood of
returning to pre pregnancy weight.

14



Page 25

Teenage Pregnancy

The predicted trend in teenage pregnancies means that the 2010 target may not be met.
This target is a 50% reduction from the 1998 rate to 20.2/1000 or 179 pregnancies for the
PCT. Crewe & Nantwich has the highest rate at 43.9 per 1,000 (or 95 per annum in this
borough). Teenage pregnancy shows the ftraditional links with deprivation, with the
deprived wards of Coppenhall, Delamere, Grosvenor, Maw Green and St Barnabas in
Crewe all have significantly higher rates of teenage pregnancy. There is a high rate of
conceptions leading to abortion (approximately 50%), particularly in Macclesfield and
Congleton boroughs.

3.1.4. Lifestyles - Key Issues 2008-13

Many of the major causes of premature death are influenced by individual health
behaviours and lifestyle issues. A persons decision or ability to adopt and follow a healthy
or unhealthy lifestyle is influenced by a number of factors such as social and
environmental influences, family income and size, age, area of residence, access to
physical activity opportunities and healthy food options as well as the availability and
opportunity of cheap alcohol, tobacco and illicit drugs.

Tobacco

Smoking remains the greatest preventable causes of morbidity and early death. In
England it is estimated that 87,000 people per year die due to smoking related illness.
Nationally and locally significant progress has been made to decrease the number of
smokers. In CECPCT there are estimated to be around 76,800 adult smokers equating to
20.1% of the adult population compared with the national average of smokers 21.0%.
Smoking prevalence is highest in urban areas and appears to be linked to high
deprivation. West Coppenhall and Grosvenor Middle Super Output Area (MSOA) in Crewe
has an estimated smoking prevalence of 36.2%, whereas smoking prevalence in the more
affluent Adlington and Prestbury areas are as low as 9.6% (at MSOA level).

Smoking in pregnancy is a particular issue for CECPCT. Our current rate of smoking
during pregnancy is 19.6%. National targets for smoking during pregnancy have been set
at 15% by 2009/10. CECPCT is carrying out work to address this issue.

Alcohol

The impact of alcohol misuse in CECPCT occurs at all levels of society. It results in
increased use of general practice consultations, increased attendance at A&E, ambulance
call outs, and out patient and hospital admissions. The chronic effects of alcohol use
includes liver cirrhosis, coronary heart disease, cancer and stroke. 5.1% (18,317) of
CECPCT adult population are estimated to be harmful drinkers (drinking above “safe
limits” — drinking more than 50 units per week for males or than 35 units for females).
Reported levels of binge drinking in CECPCT are 21.4%, higher than the national average
of 18.0%. As a PCT we have the 7™ hazardous drinking in the country and cost of
emergency admissions due to alcoholism are increasing by £1 million per annum. The
importance of the health system and in particular primary care in assisting people to
moderate the excessive but now normalized alcohol intake is understated.

15



Page 26

Obesity

In CECPCT children have their height and weight measured in Reception Year (aged
4-5) and Year 6 (aged 10-11). In 2007/08 more than one in five of the children measured
in reception year were either overweight or obese (20.4%). In Year 6 children this rate was
nearly one in three (29.5%). This is significantly better than the national average of
overweight and obese children in the same comparative age groups.

Current estimates of the prevalence of obesity amongst our adult population suggest that
89,200 (23.3%) of the adult population of CECPCT are obese, equivalent to the national
rate (23.6%). There is significant variation at town level ranging from 28.3% in Winsford to
19.5% in Wimslow. The benefits of health professionals promoting increased
consumption of fruit and vegetables, reduced salt and saturated fat intake is imperative.
Almost 70,000 premature deaths could potentially be prevented each year if UK diets
matched nutritional guidelines. Encouraging physical activity would also make a significant
difference. It not only contributes to well-being, but is also essential for good health.
People who are physically active reduce their risk of developing major chronic diseases
such as coronary heart disease, stroke and type 2 diabetes by up to 50%, and the risk of
premature death by about 20-30%. The estimated direct health care cost of physical
inactivity to this PCT is £7.5m per annum.

3.1.5. Main Causes of Early Death Key Issues 2008-13

Nearly 37% of all deaths within CECPCT are a result of cardio vascular disease (CVD) or
approximately 1600 deaths from CVD each year.

CVD is the biggest contributor to the life expectancy gaps experienced within all four
boroughs in both males and females (range 25.6% - 48.1%). Approximately 26% (1,245)
of deaths are premature and could be preventable with lifestyle modification. Almost a
third (31%) of these premature deaths would be eliminated if the health experience of the
worst MSOA were the same as the very best.

26.4% of deaths are a result of cancer (1160 per annum). Cancer deaths are one of the
main causes of death and therefore have a considerable impact on life expectancy. 50%
of cancers are preventable with lifestyle modification (smoking, obesity and alcohol), early
detection of cancer and improved care.

3.1.6. Life Expectancy — Key Issues 2008-13

CECPCT has a life expectancy that is just better than that of England. The latest data
between 2005-07 is indicated in Table 6 below:

Table 6 - Life Expectancy for England, Northwest and CECPCT

Males Females
England 77.7 years 81.8 years
North West 76.0 years 80.5 years
Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT 78.1 years 81.8 years

However there are very large differences within CECPCT. The summary on the following page
shows the gap in life expectancy calculated at MSOA level for 2005-07.

16



Page 27

e 13.5 years in Men

Range: 71.6 years East Coppenhall (C&N) to 85.1 years Wilmslow Town West

e 15.5 years in Women

Range: 77.9 years Central and Valley (C&N) to 93.5 years Wilmslow Town South

East

The largest gap inside a borough is 14 years for women in Macclesfield

When 95% Confidence Intervals are calculated there is still a significant difference in
males (7.9 years) and females (9.7 years) between the highest and lowest life

expectancy.

To inform priority setting and to identify the geographical areas of concern regarding male
and female low life expectancy and the factors that influence it, CECPCT has combined
MSOA'’s into five equal groups based on the overall life expectancy. This approach has:

e created a local CECPCT ‘spearhead MSOA group’ which identifies those MSOA areas
where there is a low life expectancy for either male or females whose poor health

experience will be the focus of further attention and;

e enabled CECPCT, and its partners, to look at the various factors that influence life

expectancy such as deprivation, poor lifestyles and access to services

Table 7 below identifies the CECPCT ‘spearhead MSOA group’ with male and female life

expectancy.
MSOA Code MSOA Name Male Female
Life Expectancy Life Expectancy
E02003813 Middlewich West 78.8 79.8
E02003821 Sandbach South 74.3 80.0
E02003826 East Coppenbhall 71.6 78.7
E02003827 West Coppenhall & Grosvenor 73.0 83.0
E02003828 St Barnabas 73.6 78.3
E02003830 Central & Valley 72.2 77.9
E02003832 St Johns 76.6 79.0
E02003833 Wistaston Green 78.1 79.5
E02003834 Alexandra 75.0 81.3
E02003839 West Nantwich 77.9 80.0
E02003868 Macclesfield Town East 75.5 80.9
E02003869 Macclesfield Town Bollinbrook & vy 77.4 79.5
E02003873 Macclesfield Town South 73.6 80.2
E02003882 Leftwich, Rudheath & Witton 753 80.0
E02003886 East Winsford 73.3 78.8
EQ02003887 North Winsford 75.6 81.2
E02003888 Winsford Central 73.6 78.5
E02003889 West Winsford 74.8 79.8

3.1.7. Patterns of Deprivation and Health Inequalities

Across CECPCT most of the local “town” areas have relatively less people affected by
income deprivation than the national average, except in Winsford where it affects both
children and older people and in Crewe where children are affected. More significantly,




Page 28

there are three fold percentage differences in income deprivation between our “town”
areas. This contributes to poor health and health inequalities which are closely linked to
life expectancy.

Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT LSOAs by IMD 2007 Quintile with Spearhead
MSOAs labelled

CENTRAL AND EASTERN CHESHIRE PCT LSOAS BY IMD 2007 QUINTILE,
WITH SPEARHEAD MSOAS LABELLED

Macclesfield Town
Bollinbrook & Ivy

Macclesfield
Town East

Macclesfield Town
Winsford Central Sy ] & South

West Winsford

Middlewich West ndbach South

East Coppenhall

Central & Valley ‘West Coppenhall

& Grosvenor

IMD 2007 by National Quintile
St Barnabas | cecpcTLSOAs

Wistaston Green St Johns [ 5 (125)

Alexand I
West Nantwich lexandra W2«
W 2

The link to variation in health (or factors that directly affect the health) of children is shown on
the next page:

18



Page 29

Inequalities in the health of children linked to

income deprivatjon
Low Birthweight

15%

Births to Teenagers 4% 30%

10% Income Deprivation

zh 20% | I Afecting Children
5% 0%
. High in Winsford & Crewe 10%
0% .
High in Winsford & Crewe b [T AR T s 0%
Low in Rural areas & Poynton A i_f = High in Winsford & Crewe
S % Lowin Poynton & Rural areas
o < §=
T
30% (.} i:;:j - ] 95%
o Adult Smokers o = MMR Uptake
i 90%
10% 7
= 85%
0% L ’

High in Winsford & Crewe 45 80%
Low in Poynton & Rural areas High in Nantwich
. . Low in Alsager, Middlewich
. Admission Rate for

Gastroenteritis

0
0% High in Winsford & Crewe
High in Crewe & Middlewich Low in Poynton & Alsager
Low in Wilmslow & Congleton

Whilst higher levels of deprivation are generally associated with a lower life
expectancy and hence larger ‘gap‘, MSOAs with low LE do have populations
consisting of the most affluent. A review of mortality trends by deprivation quintile
(undertaken for the new Local Authority area of East Cheshire) shows that whilst
death rates are reducing in our most deprived 40% those in the least deprived 20%
appear to be levelling off and may now be starting to rise. See illustrate below:

1000

800, R — Local and National

700 trends in mortality

e N rates (all causes)

500
400 +
300 -
200
100

0

n

©
(=3
o

death rate per 100,000 populatiol

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

—e—Most deprived areas —e—Least deprived areas
—e—Cheshire East —s—England

Most deprived = areas in the bottom
40% nationally = 701 (20%) of 3,591
deaths in East Cheshire in 2007

Least deprived = areas in the top
20% nationally = 1,329 (37%) of 3591
deaths in East Cheshire in 2007

t,

19



Page 30

Life Expectancy gap between most deprived and least deprived

quintile
100%

80% -

Olnfectious & parasitic diseases
OExternal causes

DODeaths under 28 days

O Digestive

@ Other

B Respiratory Disease

B Cancers

@ Circulatory Disease

60%

40%

20%

0%
Males  Females Males  Females Males  Females Males  Females

Congleton Crewe & Nantwich Macclesfield Vale Royal

As illustrated earlier Circulatory diseases (including coronary heart disease and stroke)
and cancers account for around 37% and 26% of deaths respectively in Central and
Eastern Cheshire PCT and are a major contributor to our gaps in life expectancy. If we
are to reduce variations in life expectancy; the PCT and its general practices need to
highlight and prioritise actions on the causes of ill health in the different towns and the
various lifestyle risk factors that influence the occurrence of disease.

Reducing health inequalities for all groups is a priority for Central and Eastern Cheshire
PCT (CECPCT). We intend to secure a sustained reduction in health inequalities, improve
the health of all but improve the health of the worst off (as defined through life expectancy
and poor health experience) faster.

The PCTs aim is ‘to improve health to become comparable with the best in England and
minimize the internal gaps in our health experience’. CECPCT has a higher life
expectancy (LE) than England and the North West, although there are important
differences between local authority areas. Two areas have a life expectancy for both
males and females that is worse than that for England (Crewe and Nantwich and Vale
Royal). Crewe and Nantwich have a relatively declining rate in men compared to nationally
over a long period of time and a particular worsening in females over the last three to four
years.

20



Page 31

Male LE - difference in years from England

1991-1993
1992-1994
1993-1995
1995-1997
1996-1998
1997-1999
1998-2000
1999-2001
2000-2002
2001-2003
2002-2004
2003-2005
2004-2006

1994-1996

z
o

=
>0
=
[0}

@
%)
I
>

—e— Congleton CD
—e— Crewe and Nantwich CD —e— Macclesfield CD
—e— Vale Royal CD

To improve life expectancy for men and women overall (from all groups — including black
minority ethnic, gay, lesbian, bisexual, transgender, disabled, religious background and age)
and to narrow the gap in life expectancy targeted action is needed across the whole PCT. Whilst
the challenge to improve is most noticeable in the more deprived areas even the more affluent
areas have substantial gaps in life expectancy and the most affluent have a static as opposed to
reducing mortality rates.

The Graph overleaf is an example of the work being undertaken looking at improvements in life
expectancy and avoidable deaths. If we improved the mortality experience of the bottom 4 life
expectancy quintiles to that of the best we could improve the chance of 343 males over 3 years
or 114 males per annum not dying prematurely across Crewe and Nantwich Borough.

‘Avoidable deaths’ have been defined by combining the number of ‘excess deaths’ from
Circulatory disease all ages, ‘excess deaths’ from external causes all ages and ‘excess
premature deaths’ from healthcare amenable cancers. The male picture reinforces the
importance of focusing on the spearhead areas where the maijority of lives can be ‘saved’ (e.g.
44 over 3 years in East Coppenhall).

21



Page 32

Crewe and Nantwich MSOAs - Difference between male life expectancy 2005-07 and
modelled male life expectancy to reflect prevention of avoidable deaths
(*= local spearhead area)

Life expectancy (years)

90.00 50.00
1 45.00
85.00 .32 42.85
' 1 40.00
55 [ { 35.00
80.00 204 u
1 30.00
252
75.00 1 : 1 2500
262
19.91, 2077 | 19.620.00
70.00 1
1551 i
1388 15.20 15.04 15.00
_ 1008 [+ 10.00
65.00 1 580 u
1 500
60.00 L 0.00
4 * ok &K x4 & S
NG P L. & & E& S
& SFSLS P & P N E
RO SFEeE
& & @ V¢ && I
QQ,{\Q ‘23;3 ° S g}%
S 2
MSOA Name

Excess Deaths

[ Male Life Expectancy

Modelled Male Life Expectancy

Excess Deaths

22




Page 33

3.1.8. Population Health and Drivers for Change
The following is a headline summary of health in the PCT area:

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (CECPCT) has the fastest
growing ageing population in the North West.

CECPCT has one of the highest life expectancy in the North West and a slightly
higher life expectancy than the England average however this masks the gaps in
life expectancy in individual towns.

Linked to life expectancy and health inequalities Cardio Vascular Disease (CVD)
and Cancer are the greatest cause of early death.

Smoking is one of the highest contributors to morbidity and early death. CECPCT
smoking rates are similar to the England average however rates are significantly
higher in Crewe, Winsford and Northwich.

Reported levels of binge drinking in CECPCT is higher than the national average,
with levels reported as 23% higher in Crewe & Nantwich Borough. Hazardous
drinking is significantly worse than England and the North West and averages 7"
highest in the country. The cost of emergency admissions for alcohol are growing
by over £1m per year.

Current estimates of the prevalence of obesity suggest that 23.3% of the adult
population of CECPCT are obese which is equivalent to the England average, with
significant variation from town to town.

In the CECPCT area more than one in five 4-5 year olds are overweight or obese
and more than one in three 10-11 year olds are overweight or obese. This is
significantly better than the national average.

Breast feeding rates are lower than the national average and are much lower than
those Primary Care Trust’'s (PCTs) with similar populations (60% v 77%).

Uptake of vaccination in CECPCT is generally good however Measles, Mumps and
Rubella (MMR) vaccination has been historically low over the past 10 years and
has lead to sporadic outbreaks of disease, with a recent significant outbreak of
measles.

There is a high rate of teenage conception with approximately 50% leading to
abortions. Crewe & Nantwich has the highest rate of teenage pregnancy at 43.9
per 1000.

The increase in the number of older people and those with health conditions that
reduce independence will result in a proportionate increase in the number of fallers
(26,040 by 2011) and associated fractures (1,302 by 2011) in those aged 65 and
over.

The numbers of emergency ambulance call outs due to a fall are significant (6332
in 2007). The cost to the PCT for ambulance call related to falls is approximately
£2 million - £315 per fall.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 23
Better, Longer Lives



Page 34

e Within CECPCT 17% of the population have a limiting long-term illness which will
increase roughly in line with the size of the ageing population

This section on population health has painted a picture of the make up and health of our
population. The local health needs assessment have identified the following 3 key
issues:

| 1. Rapidly ageing population

The size of the population with a limiting long-term iliness (long term condition) will increase in
line with the size of the ageing population

This means:

Higher CVD rates with stroke as a particular issue
Higher rates of dementia

High rates of falls

Higher rates of cancer

Higheﬂrequirement for intermediate care services
Increasing reliance on Primary Care and community services
Need for improved care pathways

J

In order to reduce long term iliness towards middle and older age emphasis needs to be placed
on keeping the population healthy and improving lifestyles particularly around action to reduce
levels of obesity, reduce tobacco harm and reduce alcohol harm and increase physical activity
and healthy eating habits.

| 2. Wide gaps in Life Expectancy between town areas

CVD and Cancer are the greatest cause of early death

This rgaans:

Significantly worse hazardous drinking rates than the national average
High rates of smoking in some town areas

High ithpact urgent care services

Reduce the gaps further emphasis on working with partners on improving lifestyles and improving
primary prevention in primary care practices.

| 3. Health Inequalities are having a significant impact on Health

Lower than expected rates of breastfeeding
Lower uptake of Measles, Mumps and Rubella Vaccination
High teenage conceptions

This leads to a need to: Improved maternity and children’s services to increase health outcomes
Develop primary care services

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 24
Better, Longer Lives




Page 35

These Key issues together with views from patients, public, staff and assessment of key areas
of service development are the drives for change in terms of influencing the strategic direction
of the PCT and its prioritized work programmes.

The following diagram shows the link between key health needs and strategic goals:

KEY ISSUE

STRATEGIC GOAL

CHANGE PROGRAMME

Ageing Population

J

Increase in long term condition

J

Higher CVD Rates with stroke
particular issue

Higher rates of dementia
Higher rates of falls

Higher rates of cancer

Develop High Quality
Primary Care services

Bring Care Closer to Home

Develop the right urgent care services
in the right place at the right time

Improve Equality of access to good
health services for all our population

Develop comprehensive Care
Pathways

Quality of care is delivered across all
our commissioned services

CP1 Lifestyle

CP2 Urgent Care
Modernisation

CP3 Intermediate
Services

CP4 Deliver Comprehensive
care pathways for Long
Term Conditions

CP6 Improving Dementia Care

CP7 Redesign of Stroke
Services

CP8 Developing Community
hospital project

CP9 Improve Cancer
Outcomes

CP10EnNd of Life Care

CP11 Primary Care
Development

CP14 Reduce CVD & Improve
Cardiac Services

CP15 Transforming
Community services

CP17 Dignity & Respect

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

25




Page 36

KEY ISSUE

STRATEGIC GOAL

CHANGE PROGRAMME

Wide gaps in Life Expecta
between
town areas

J

Significantly worse hazardous
drinking rates

Higher rates of smoking in
some town areas

Develop High Quality
Primary Care services

Develop the right urgent care services
in the right place at the right time

Improve Equality of access to good
health services for all our population

Develop comprehensive Care
Pathways

Quality of care is delivered across all
our commissioned services

CP1 Lifestyle

CP2 Urgent Care
Modernisation

CP9 Improve Cancer
Outcomes

CP11 Primary Care
Development

CP14 Reduce CVD & Improve
Cardiac Services

KEY ISSUE

STRATEGIC GOAL

CHANGE PROGRAMME

Health Inequalities are hay
a significant
impact on Health

Lower than expected
rates of breastfeeding
Lower uptake of Measles,
Mumps and Rubella

High teenage conceptions

Develop High Quality
Primary Care services

Bring Care Closer to Home

Develop the right urgent care services
in the right place at the right time

Improve Equality of access to good
health services for all our population

Develop comprehensive Care
Pathways

Quality of care is delivered across all
our commissioned services

CP1 Lifestyle

CP2 Urgent Care
Modernisation

CP5 Deliver Improved
outcomes for maternity &
children’s services

CP8 Developing Community
hospital project

CP11 Primary Care
Development

CP12 Modernising Healthcare
at Styal Prison

CP13 Implementation of
Sexual Health Strategy

CP14 Reduce CVD & Improve
Cardiac Services

CP15 Transforming Community
services

CP17 Dignity & Respect

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

26




Page 37

3.2.Capturing Insights of Patients, Public and Staff

Engaging with patients and the public is one of the PCT’s ‘Golden Threads’. The
PCT believes that the experience of patients and the views of the community we
serve are an essential component of commissioning high quality care.

The PCT has a good track record of community and patient engagement and will
seek to build on this to improve what we do. Examples of work we have done to
capture the insights of patients and users include:

e Discussion with group of community representatives on determining the
strategic priorities of the PCT. This was supplemented with a stakeholder
bulletin survey seeking views on what the priorities should be. This process
identified the following as areas as priorities:

Respect and dignity

Cancer Treatment

Physiotherapy Assessment following a Stroke
Waiting Time at A&E

MMR Immunisation

Mental Health—Dementia

Breastfeeding

Coronary Heart Disease - Controlled Blood Pressure

O 0O O O O O OO0

e Community Panels set up for each of our primary care developments.
Membership for the panels is drawn from patient representatives at the GP
practices covered by the developments. The Panels provide reference groups
for the PCT to test proposals and developments with prior to formal consultation;

¢ The PCT has patient representatives on standing groups of the PCT, for example
Dignity and Respect, Healthcare Governance and risk and groups looking at
specific service developments such as the urgent care centres and community
hospitals.

e There has also been engagement with the public, staff and community groups on
the race, gender, disability schemes and most recently on the Single Equality
Scheme. People from local black and minority ethnic groups, gay and lesbian
groups and migrant worker groups were all involved in the consultation process.
This engagement has continued and has recently involved Bangladeshi women,
deafness support and the disability information bureau in Macclesfield.
Comments received have been developed into action plans to develop and
improve services to meet the individual needs of patients

The PCT acknowledges that it can strengthen its approach to community and patient
engagement. The following are the key areas to be addressed to improve our
community and patient engagement:

» Build - up a Community Reference Group — a cross section of the local
population to act as a sounding board for the PCT and provide input on the
development of strategic priorities for example.;

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 27
Better, Longer Lives



Page 38

» Establish a cycle of involvement linked to the business cycle of the PCT;

» Increase the ways in which the community can interact with the PCT — for
example, through the website and the introduction of a stakeholder bulletin;

» A more systematic approach to patient experience: link activity with priorities and
ensure we can demonstrate that we make use of the feedback we receive and
demonstrate the influence this has on the commissioning of services;

» For each of our change programmes identified there will be a communications
and engagement plan to ensure these are embedded in our priority areas and
reflect their status as ‘Golden Threads’;

» Ensure we use the feedback from the national patient surveys — GP, 18 weeks
and acute etc. to identify areas for improvement; and\

» Ensure our approach to engagement is inclusive and we reach all sections of the
community including seldom heard groups such as young people and black and
minority ethnic groups.

The PCT will enhance the opportunities for patients and public to be involved with
the PCT and will seek at all times to be innovative and adopt good practice. We will
support people to be involved in the PCT by having a transparent policy on involving
patients. This will cover expenses and provision of training.

A system — wide approach to engagement will be developed by working with
partners including providers, LiNKs, the new Cheshire East and Cheshire West
Council, voluntary/third sector and other public sector partners. This will ensure we
avoid consultation overlap and duplication as well as using the expertise of others to
build capacity and capability in the PCT.

The PCT will ensure providers are routinely taking account of patient experience and
that this is reported to us through contract monitoring. Providers will be asked to
demonstrate how they use feedback from patients to improve the quality of care.

A Patient Experience Group will be established to act as a focal point for overseeing
all patient experience activity, developing our approach to seeking patient views and
for monitoring how effectively we are using the feedback we receive. The Group will
also develop the expertise in tools and techniques to ensure the PCT adopts good
practice in seeking patient engagement.

The PCT’s integrated Communications and Engagement Plan describes in details
the actions we will to take to improve and enhance how we deliver these functions
and how they support the delivery of the PCT’s priorities.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 28
Better, Longer Lives



Page 39

3.3.0ur Current Performance and Quality

How we manage the delivery of our objectives:
We have developed three systems to support organisational effectiveness and
manage performance monitoring:

e A management plan
(‘How to Guide’) has been developed for each area of our 54 roles and
functions. These plans detail the way each role and function is delivered and
set out the action to be taken to develop competence. The plans support the
WCC commissioning competencies and will build into the annual
organisational development plan.

e Project plans
As part of the management planning process we have identified a number of
key ‘Change Programmes’ (initiatives) which are crucial to achieve our overall
vision and goals. Each key ‘Change Programme’ has an agreed project plan.
Within the project plan the action plans are monitored on a monthly basis by
our Leadership Team.

¢ Knowledge and Performance Management
During 2009/10 we will be establishing a Directorate of Knowledge and
Performance Management. This will enable us to concentrate on the
development of our business intelligence and to reinforce our delivery
management structures to ensure that our strategic objectives are achieved.
This will fit neatly into our existing governance and reporting structures.

Performance, Outcomes and Activity

¢ Performance against local and national targets (including Standards for
Better Health)

We are committed to regularly reviewing our performance against all national and
local targets, vital signs, quality and outcome measures. We recognise that there
over 350 indicators which we need to manage.

All local and national targets (vital signs) are within the Operational Plan 2009 -10
[insert link to revised Operational Plan] to ensure that monitoring is captured and
tracked regularly. The governance of performance monitoring is through the
Leadership Team (executive and senior managers which meets every two
weeks) and Performance Committee (sub committee of Board with Executive and
Non Executive Directors representation which meets on a monthly basis) using
information from the performance management system and detailed analysis of
risk areas.

Performance data is also used to inform and manage the contract monitoring
monthly processes for activity, quality and finances for the two major acute
service providers (MCHFT, ECT), the Partnership Trust (CWPFT) and the PCT
Community Services (CECH).

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 29
Better, Longer Lives



Page 40

In 2007/8 we achieved all our major targets. However, there are some targets
which we have continued to struggle to achieve (or our performance is below our
expected level). These challenging performance targets have been reflected in
our World Class Commissioning outcome areas for next 5 years. They include
mental health services for dementia patients, cancer mortality, breastfeeding
initiation rates, alcohol, CHD mortality, treatment of stroke patients and urgent
care.

We have also challenged ourselves as part of the delivery of our strategy to
improve dignity and respect. This has become one of our strategic goals as well
as being a priority outcome.

The Assurance for the Board of the quality of compliance is monitored through
the Governance and Audit Committee. The annual declaration of compliance
across all standards is discussed at informal Board meeting (seminar) before the
formal agreement of the full Board. We are separating compliance for our own
directly provided services (CECH) and the Commissioning functions. This is to
support CECH to become a self-managing arm’s length unit in line with
Transforming Community Services

2008/09 Acute Activity Performance against Plan

A number of Acute Providers have shown increased activity against plan. The
contract with Mid Cheshire Hospitals Foundation Trust overspent for 2008/09. It
accounted for the largest single over-performance, although other Trusts also
over-performed.

MCHFT over-performed significantly in non elective work. The MCHFT and the
PCT continue to work together to understand the issues being encountered
within Emergency Care with a full review in 2009/10 of the services offered and
the methods of coding and counting being used by the Trust

In general the PCT is seeing elective activity increasing due to increased GP
referrals, the increase in activity to meet the 18 week referral to treat pathway
and the introduction of new services such as ophthalmology services for patients
with Age Related Macular Degeneration.

Quality of Service — Performance

All main provider contracts have significant quality schedules within them for
2009/10 covering dignity challenge, essence of care, patient experience, infection
rates, clinical audit, patient safety, risk, complaints, as well as clinical outcomes,
mortality rates, re-admission rates etc. We have also included quality themes for
each monthly contract monitoring meeting (with clinicians present) e.g. Maternity
services, Smoking Cessation, Orthopaedic services etc. These elements of the
quality contracts are supported through a Clinical Quality Team that ‘shadows’
each provider to build a detailed knowledge base of all elements of quality. A
quality summary report is provided each month to challenge the provider Trusts.
In future quality monitoring will follow our CASE approach to quality monitoring:

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 30
Better, Longer Lives



Page 41

C are-the patient experience must be positive. Patients should be treated as
individuals and afforded dignity and respect

A ccessibility - Patients must be able to readily access services. Services must
be designed to meet the different needs of communities and individuals

S afety - it is vital that we protect our patients and staff, and manage all risks
effectively,

E ffectiveness - itis important that our interventions result in positive outcomes,

and that our work is cost-effective. Services must co-ordinate with other
health and social care services to ensure patients receive seamless care

MCHFT was a pilot for the Advancing Quality Project, which is an initiative by
NHS North West, in conjunction with Premier Health in the USA, to look at the
clinical quality of services being provided in our hospitals. Mid Cheshire Hospital
Foundation Trust has been collecting data since April while East Cheshire NHS
Trust is in the 2" wave and is now starting data collection.

There are 4 topics covered by the project, Heart Attacks, Hip & Knee
Replacement, Heart Failure and Community Acquired Pneumonia. Information
being collected has been chosen by clinicians on the basis that it will accurately
reflect the true quality of care being provided. This will also include diversity
information.

We are actively involved in the project and will be monitoring its implementation
and using the results as part of the commissioning process to ensure that both
hospitals are providing the best possible care to the residents of Central &
Eastern Cheshire.

Risk Management

Risks are identified by all members of staff, patients or public and are reported on
a bi-monthly basis to the Healthcare Governance and Risk Committee. The key
strategic risks to the organisation are identified by senior managers and directors
which, along with operational risks, formulate the basis of the risk register and
are on the Assurance Framework via Performance Accelerator. A control
mechanism is identified and the PCT Board seeks assurance that the control
works. The Keele modified Australian/New Zealand risk methodology is used for
risks looking at the ‘“likelihood” of the risk occurring and the “consequence”
should it happen, resulting in a score to prioritise extreme, high and moderate
risks.

Risks are mapped utilising the Assurance Framework, in compliance with
national guidance. Directors and Senior Managers identify/demonstrate on the
Assurance Framework that controls are in place and assurance that the controls
are effective. The Assurance Framework is reviewed by the Leadership Team
and the Governance and Audit Committee, which reports directly to the Board.
The High Level risks are reported to the Board on a quarterly basis.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 31
Better, Longer Lives



Page 42

Current Organisational Challenges

The Panel assessment in November 2008, with regard to the WCC competencies
and the on-going review of organisational effectiveness have highlighted a
number of key areas which will be addressed in a review our management
structure and operational arrangements, these areas are:

Board Development — the need to utilise the newly procured WCC Board
Development programme to meet the needs arising from the WCC
assessment.

Communications and engagement — the implementation of our newly agreed
Communication and Engagement Plan.

The production of intelligence to support effective management. We recognise
the need to fully integrate local initiatives with the Contracting Information
Support Services (CISSU) and the proposed North West Intelligence
consortium.

The development of a local Health Economist function to ensure we are able
to better match investment to outcomes.

The development of effective joint management and commissioning
arrangements with our new unitary Local Authority.

The development of a more focussed approach to ‘delivery’ ensuring that
proposed changes happen and are sustained.

The implementation of Transforming Community Services

The ongoing development of the 3 PBC clusters and the way in which the PCT
adapts and utilises capacity to be out ward facing

The PCT intends to move all 5 level 1 WCC competencies to at least a level 2
and ensure all level 2’s are maintained and improved.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 32
Better, Longer Lives



Page 43

3.4. Expenditure on Commissioned Activity
The majority of expenditure (and associated activity) is within primary and
secondary care as shown below:

3.4 Detailed Analysis of 2009-10 Budget

Commissioned Healthcare

£496.6m

Other £0.8m Prescribing £87.1m

Primary Care £79.6m

3.5. Provider Landscape

The health system in Central and Eastern Cheshire is complex, primarily
because many of the Towns that make up the area do not have any affinity with
any single major City conurbations. This pattern is reflected in the specialist and
tertiary service configuration with our population accessing services in
Manchester, Liverpool and Stoke-on-Trent.

This situation is further complicated as we border two other NHS SHA regions
(East Midlands and West Midlands). We therefore have complex Clinical
networks. Our two local NHS trusts do not have natural partnerships, but have
established collaborations in some areas e.g. Diabetes and Pathology. We have
traditionally been part of the Cheshire and Mersey grouping of PCTs, however,
much more of our work relates to Greater Manchester. It is important to
recognise that we do not (on the whole) share the same health needs or social
characteristics as the rest of the North West (as identified in ‘Healthier Horizons’
for the North West 2008).

Provider Trusts (Acute Care)
The majority of acute Healthcare is provided by two Acute trusts — Mid Cheshire
Hospitals Foundation Trust (MCHFT) and East Cheshire Hospitals Trust (EHCT).

MCHFT is a Foundation Trust which aims to grow its share of the acute services
market. Whilst ECHT is a small District General Hospital based Trust, seeking
to be a Foundation Trust

Both Trusts face similar challenges which affect the health economy:

e The effect of greater ‘specialisation’ for example the impact of the
implementation of the Cancer Improving Outcome Guidance (I0Gs).

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 33
Better, Longer Lives



Page 44

The impact of the proposed significant changes as a result our key strategic
‘Change Programmes’. Both Trusts are likely to be seeking to be the provider
of both urgent care and intermediate care services; however both ‘Change
Programmes’ are subject to procurement processes.

The impact of the development of Payment by Results (PbR) and our initiative
to improve the commissioning of Non-PbR services. Over 25% of the Trusts’
income is outside PbR. We are committed to improve its commissioning
arrangements for these services.

The future management arrangements of our provider services.

The impact of Practice Based Commissioning (PBC).

Some specific challenges for MCHFT include:

The systems inability to effectively forecast activity — currently 08/09 activity is
significantly over plan.

The impact of the potential re-provision of the Victoria Infirmary Northwich
(Strategic Goal 4 — Care Closer to Home).

The future organisational arrangements for East Cheshire Hospital Trust.

The need for the Trust to continue to develop effective clinical networks
including the full roll out of the Map of Medicine software to support the use of
agreed care pathways in Primary Care.

Some specific challenges for ECHT include:

The impact of the potential re-provision of the Knutsford Hospital and the
Congleton War Memorial Hospital.

The future management arrangements of our provider services — ECHT in
particular are keen to explore the potential for vertical integration.

The implications of the Trusts FT bid failing. We are currently exploring the
strategic implications for ECHT with the SHA.

The need for the Trust to continue to develop effective clinical networks.

Provider Trusts (Mental Health)

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership foundation Trust (CWPFT) is a successful
Mental Health Trust being one of the first in the country to achieve FT status. The
key challenges for the Trust and therefore the health economy are:

The need to demonstrate equity of provision across the population served (as
part of our strategic ambitions).

The impact of PBC.
The implications of not having PBR for Mental Heath Services.

The impact of the Local Government Review Changes particularly if the two
new LA’s take different approaches to the commissioning of Mental Health
and Learning Disability services.

Limited choice for patients (only provider of Secondary Care in the area).

PCT Provider services
We commission services from our ‘Provider Arm’ to provide a wide range of
community based healthcare services in various settings such as GP surgeries,

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 34
Better, Longer Lives



Page 45

health centres, clinics and patients’ homes. Circa 1800 people are employed in
the Provider ‘Arm’, with more than 1600 providing community-based healthcare,
involving a broad range of nursing, medical and therapy services.

In line with the DoH Operating Framework for 2007, our Provider Services was
set up as an arms length managed organisation (ALMO) from 1% April 2007. On
1% April 2008 the Provider entered a 12 month ‘autonomous period of operation’
becoming ‘Cheshire East Community Health’ (CECH) with a Shadow Board and
agreed plans to develop separate governance arrangements. During this ALMO
period, the CECH Shadow Board is strengthening its organisational
arrangements in readiness for separation whilst assessing the viability of various
organisational models for the future provision of community health services.

The PCT has begun the changes required under ‘Transforming Community
Services’ (TCS), which is central to delivering the vision for Primary and
Community Care set out in the NHS Next Stage Review.

The TCS Programme will see CECH (our main provider of community services)
move its relationship with the PCT to a purely contractual one. TCS will require
providers to consider what type(s) of organisations would best meet the future
needs of patients and local communities, and how change can be managed to
support the transformation of services to patients.

Three key elements feature in the TCS programme of change:

e The development of a Quality Framework for community services, giving a
high priority to enabling the transformation of clinical practice by
disseminating best practice and investing in developing clinical and
leadership skills;

¢ Transform the commissioning of community services through World Class
Commissioning and provide commissioners with the tools they need to drive
service improvement i.e. a new standard contract, guidance on costing and
pricing, information and metrics; and

e The need to ensure that the organisations providing the community services
are fit for purpose. Organisations are needed which enable and empower
front line staff to innovate and free up their time to care for patients.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 35
Better, Longer Lives



Page 46

The following table highlights the proportion of income received by our four main
providers compared to the total contracted income:

CECPCT Contract Total Contract Proportion %
Income(‘000) Income
‘000

CECH 45,162 45,162 100
ECT 72,175 84,437 85
MCHST 110,361 117,202 94
CWPFT 31,694 98,491 32

Independent Contractors

General Practices - We are served by 52 GP practices. We have only one
single handed practice. We have the lowest number of over 65 year old GPs still
practising. However our practices do face some common challenges:

e The potential impact of changes to the Minimum Practice Income Guarantee
(MPIG).

The effect of the PCTs Urgent Care Modernisation Change Programme (CP2).
The development of Practice Based Commissioning (PBC).

The demoralisation of the workforce.

The increase in the drive towards specialisation.

Pharmacies — We are served by 90 Pharmacies in the PCT area and all have an

NHS contract.

The key challenges for our pharmacy contractors are as follows:

e Our desire to ensure a common range of services across the PCT area
(including the roll-out of a comprehensive Minor ailments scheme).

e The impact of the pharmacy White Paper.

e The impact on community pharmacy of the development on the new Medical
centres in, Knutsford, Congleton, Northwich, and Middlewich.

Optometry providers — We are served by a total of 64 independent Optometry
Contractors.

Key challenges are as follows:

e The continued development of the Diabetic retinopathy screening programme.
e The impact of the new General Ophthalmic Services (GOS) contracts

e The implementation of practice premise inspections on a 3 year rolling
programme

General Dental Practitioners - We are served by 90 dental practices; across

these practices there is a variety of NHS dental contracts.

Key challenges are as follows:

e Uncertainty regarding the continuation for restricted Personal Dental Service
Agreements e.g. those contractors who only see children and have a three
year agreement which is due to end in March 20089.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 36
Better, Longer Lives



Page 47

e Practice premises that could be deemed unfit for purpose e.g. fail to meet the
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) standards or decontamination
requirements.

e Loss of ‘Goodwill’ from the sale of their practices, should the commissioners
consider it inappropriate to continue with an NHS contract at that particular
practice.

Local Authority (LA) - Local Government in Cheshire has been the subject of a
Local Government review and reorganisation. The new Local Authority —
Cheshire East Council was established on 1 April 2009. We are working with the
LA to agree the establishment of a Joint Commissioning unit. We will also be
working with the new LA to determine the arrangements for integrated provision
and public health and wellbeing delivery. The known key challenges for the new
LA are as follows:

e Financial position.

e The impact on planning and delivery of the new LA.

e The continued difficulty in recruitment for LA provider and commissioned

services (see below).

Local Area Agreements (LAA)

The PCT is also a partner in the Local Area Agreement. Following individual
discussions with partners through the Cheshire Partnerships Framework and
GONW it was agreed that a “severable” transitional LAA, to include
disaggregated targets where appropriate, for East and West Cheshire for at least
2008/9 would be agreed that would also set a longer-term direction of travel for
2009-11 for the new unitaries and their partners. This required an important
balance to be struck between planning for a longer-term horizon whilst ensuring
the two new local authorities and their partners are not hidebound by
inappropriate targets set by their predecessors.

Key local target areas for health:
People killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents (DfT DSQO)
Obesity in primary school age children in Year 6 (DCSF DSO)
Achieving independence for older people through
rehabilitation/intermediate care (DH DSQO)
Healthy life expectancy (at 65)
Under 18 conception rate
Substance misuse by young people
All-age all cause mortality rate
Mortality rate from all circulatory diseases at ages under 75 (DH
DSO)
Stopping smoking

Independent Sector (IS) providers - We have contracts for service provision

with a number of Independent sector providers. The key challenges for our

Independent Sector (IS) providers are:

e The impact of the extension of Patient choice — patient feedback on IS
services continues to be very positive.

e The development of local care pathways and the full implementation of ‘Map
of Medicine’.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 37
Better, Longer Lives



Page 48

e The impact on the traditional private sector of reduced waiting times.

Other key Providers including third sector provision - We have a range of

contracts with Nursing homes, and other providers for community services, the

key issues for these providers are as follows:

e The impact of recruitment difficulties (one existing community care provider is
recruiting from Eastern Europe only).

e The impact of our strategy to develop commissioning from third sector
organisations.

e The impact of Local authority (and potentially PCT) boundary changes.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 38
Better, Longer Lives



Page 49

3.6. Financial Position

e 2006/07 Financial Year

We were formed as a PCT on 1 October 2006 from the merger of two
predecessor organisations (i.e. Central Cheshire Primary Care Trust c. £325m
and the Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust c. £250m).

For the financial year 2006/07, covering the whole twelve month period from 1
April 2006 to 31 March 2007, as a new PCT we reported a small surplus of
£630,000 on a turnover of £575m or 0.1%. However, this small surplus was only
generated following delivery of an ambitious in year Recovery Programme of c.
£10m which was devised, and implemented, post formal establishment.

In addition to being financially challenged in our first year, it also was clear that
the two predecessor PCTs were funded at different levels to target level, as
calculated by the Department of Health.

Distance from Target
Using 2007/08 Allocation

Central Cheshire PCT

Eastern Cheshire PCT

“New” Central & Eastern + £7m +1.2%
Cheshire PCT

e 2007/08 Financial Year

For the financial year 2007/08, covering the twelve month period from 1 April
2007 to 31 March 2008, we reported a surplus of £1,007,000 on a turnover of
£582m, meaning the surplus equated to approximately 0.2% of turnover. This
reported surplus being in line with the figure previously agreed with the Strategic
Heath Authority.

Unlike many PCTs, we were not in a position to lodge any surplus monies with
the SHA over and above this declared balance.

e 2008/09 Financial Year
For the financial year 2008/09 the PCT is reporting a small surplus of £1,007,000
(i.e. similar to surplus for 2007/08). However, not included within this position are

a number of disputed invoices with East Cheshire totalling £1.7m. The reported
surplus equates to 0.2% of turnover (£620m).

e PCT baseline funding, target funding and distance from target
The Department of Health allocates monies to PCTs based on a funding formula.

As can be seen from the table on the previous page, for 207/08, the PCT
received circa £7m more than its fairshare (i.e. over target).

However, during 2008/09, the impact of the new Allocations Formula became
clear.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 39
Better, Longer Lives



Page 50

As can be seen from the table below, the impact of the new formula was to
reduce the PCT’s “over target” income, from £7m in 2007/08 to £3.7m in
2009/10.

However, similarly, to previous years, the PCT has continued to receive the
lowest rate per head when using crude population, in the North West (i.e. £1427
per head compared to a regional average of £1675).

REVISED NATIONAL FORMULA FIGURES

REVISED NATIONAL FORMULA FIGURES 2009/10 AND 2010/11

ALLOCATIONS :- 2009/10 2010/11
Recurrent Baseline allocation (£000's) 645,100 679,543
National Target Spend
(£000's) 641,337 677,116
Over target
Distance from Target(DFT) :-  (£000's) 3,763 2,427
Over target % 0.6% 0.4%
POPULATIONS :-
CECPCT Crude Population 452,016 454,786
CECPCT Weighted
Population 417,366 421,278
Allocation per Head (£'s):- CECPCT Crude 1,427 1,494
SHA Average
Crude 1,675 1,758
Highest Crude- Liverpool
PCT 2,031 2,137
Lowest Crude - CECPCT 1,427 1,494
CECPCT
Weighted 1,545 1,613
SHA Average Weighted 1,522 1,597

As can be seen, using crude population rather than weighted, if the PCT was
funded on par with Liverpool, which has virtually identical numbers of persons,
we would receive an additional £273m annually. The funding difference is
designed to target the relative needs of the local population but they do lead to a
number of local challenges, especially where all PCTs are required to provide

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 40
Better, Longer Lives



Page 51

universal NHS Services (NICE guidance etc) and are subject to national tariffs
and programmes (i.e. PbR, QOF and A4C).

e The impact of funding to General Practice level

In order to stimulate Practice-based Commissioning (PBC), during 2008/9 we
have endeavoured to use the allocation tool provided, which is different to the
PCT funding formula, in order to allocate monies directly to Practices.

Using the 2008/09 Recurrent Allocation (c. £602m), and our published Budget
Book, it has been possible to allocate approximately 50% of expenditure directly
to Practices (i.e. Payment by Results activity and Prescribing). However, it should
be noted that Non Payment by Results activity, Specialist Activity, Learning
Disabilities and a number of other areas, remain apportioned (c. £300m).
Therefore, whilst initial results would indicate variations in the region of only +/-
10% for individual Practices, these disparities become greater when reported at a
Cluster level, as outlined above:

Allocation
e
£m

Macclesfield Cluster

South Cheshire +35
Cluster
Vale Royal

What is effectively demonstrated, is that the Macclesfield and South Clusters still
spend in excess of its fair share allocation, (although this is potentially under-
estimated in the table above due to the level of apportionments), and that further
work is required, both internally and externally with Providers, in order to refine
this level of analysis.

Local Government Reorganisation

Cheshire East Council became effective on 1 April 2009. It took over
responsibility for all local government services from the former boroughs of
Crewe & Nantwich, Congleton and Macclesfield, and half of Cheshire County
Council.

Cheshire East has a population of 358,800. The age structure of Cheshire East is
slightly older than that of England & Wales and 17% of the population are under
14; 18% are aged 65 or more and the number of people aged 85+ is expected to
double between 2006 and 2026.

The financial scenario for local government is challenging and this is likely to be
the position for Cheshire East. Elected Members and officers are working
together to develop the financial scenario for the new authority and to build
service structures which can be afforded within available resources.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 41
Better, Longer Lives



Page 52

The final budget and council tax levels were set at the full Council meeting in
February 2009.

Despite the intention to continue joint planning and commissioning, during
2008/09, work has been difficult to plan ‘long-term’ due to uncertainty and lack of
identified officers able to commit resources until appointments were made. The
position continues to improve and the PCT will be maximising the opportunity of
working with both Cheshire East and Cheshire West and Chester City Council
Local Authorities in the near future.

3.7. National and Regional Drivers for Change

3.7.1. National Priorities
In developing our Strategy we have reviewed the priorities identified within the
Darzi report ‘High Quality Care for All’and the NHS Northwest response to this
report ‘Healthier Horizons’.

A focus of the Darzi report was about improving the quality of services and
making sure people have greater influence and control over their health and
healthcare. Specifically:

e Creating an NHS that helps people stay healthy through comprehensive
wellbeing and prevention services, better partnership arrangements, CVD
screening, workplace schemes and family support.

e Creating a more responsive NHS through extended GP choice, everyone with
a long-term condition having a personalised care plan and guaranteed access
to clinically cost effective drugs.

3.7.2. Regional Priorities
The NHS North West’s response to the Darzi review identified the need to
address inequalities in life expectancy driven by unhealthy lifestyles. A number
of priorities within the North West are relevant to Central and Eastern Cheshire:

Staying healthy:

(Linked to all 9 Goals. Linked to Change Programmes — 1, 8, 9, 11and 14)
Address CVD mortality and screening, implement the North West Cancer Plan,
reduce the impact of alcohol, deliver social marketing solutions and continue to
address tobacco control.

Children:

(Linked to all Goal 1 - Children. Linked to Change Programmes — 1, 5, 11 and 15)
Tackle impact of inequalities on children and strengthen focus on children and
young people through commissioning.

Urgent Care:

(Linked to all Goal 5 — Urgent Care. Linked to Change Programmes — 2, 3, 8 and
M)

Develop streamlined and integrated services across pathways and develop
intermediate care models.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 42
Better, Longer Lives



Page 53

Planned Care:

(Linked to all Goal 9 — Elective Care. Linked to Change Programmes — 16)
Ensure a range of good quality providers is available to all, increase personalised
care, implement evidence-based clinical pathways and improve accessibility.

Long-Term Conditions:

(Linked to all Goal 2 — Older People. Linked to Change Programmes — 4, .7 .8,
11 and 17)

Put patients in charge of their care and improving coordination of care, improve
pathways to take account of co-morbidities and use care plans to reflect this.

Mental Health:
(Linked to all Goals 4,5,6 and 7. Linked to Change Programmes — 1 and 6
Recognise mental health and prevention, including among young people.

End of Life:

(Linked to all Goal 2 — Older People. Linked to Change Programmes — 10 and
17)

Ensure integrated commissioning arrangements are in place, improve the
standard and consistency of care to support patient’s and carers needs.

3.8. Equality and Diversity

We recognise that some people do not get an equal chance in life and that this
can affect their health. Our foremost aim is to promote equality and diversity to
help to close the gap in health inequalities. We also know that people do not fit
into neat categories. Indeed some people present with multiple characteristics.

In recognition of this we have developed a holistic view of equality and human
rights in the form of the Single Equality Scheme. The scheme is a demonstration
of our compliance with equality legislation and continuing commitment to equality
for all groups in our population, to ensure services are suitable and of a high
standard for everyone.

Our Single Equality Scheme sets out the vision for Equality and Diversity within
Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT. As a result of the Scheme, Equality and
Diversity is be embedded in the culture of the PCT to ensure that while it strives
to achieve universal health for all and serves all its users, social cohesion,
stability and economic prosperity will remain important goals and where possible
will be advanced to improve the social and economic wellbeing of the
communities the PCT serves.

As an employer and commissioner of health care services, we recognise the
diversity of people and communities in and around Central and Eastern Cheshire
and we are committed to:

e Making continuous progress in establishing equality for all.

o Tackling areas of potential discrimination and social exclusion, so that the
way we commission and deliver our health care services, employment
arrangements and staff opportunities are fair and appropriate.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 43
Better, Longer Lives



Page 54

Making sure all levels of our workforce reflect the communities we serve. All
job applicants and employees receive fair treatment and our recruitment
process is easy for our local population to access.

e Making sure our information and services are accessible to diverse groups.

¢ Involving staff, local communities and partners to assist us to develop and
apply our equality goals.

e Auditing our services and maintaining effective monitoring arrangements to
identify areas for improvement.

As a PCT we can begin to improve peoples health by making sure that our
populations can access information to help make the best health choices for
themselves, and access health services without undue delay that are responsive
and sensitive to their individual needs

We have an Equality Monitoring Group (chaired by a non-executive director)
reporting to the Performance Committee and Board on progress made against
Equality and Diversity, and the Single Equality Scheme Action Plan. Our main
acute provider contracts are required to report monthly on equality and diversity
(schedule 5).

The organization aims to ensure that the impact of functions and policies does
not discriminate against race, disability, gender, sexual orientation; religion/belief
and age. Therefore Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) are undertaken on all
policies and public documents by way of limiting the health inequalities that exists
between people from different ethnic backgrounds.

We have undertaken an Equality Impact Assessment the Strategic Plan, ‘Better,
Longer Lives’, and identified the following:

e Health inequalities data should be analysed to inform the Change
Programmes

e The need for consultation and engagement with key minority groups

o Equality to be clearly outlined in service specifications and contract clauses

e Performance management systems should review equality outcomes

Equality Impact Assessments will also be undertaken on all Change
Programmes.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 44
Better, Longer Lives



4. Strategy

Page 55

4.1. Strategic Development Process

The process of developing our Strategic Plan has been rigorous. It has involved
patients, the public, partners, stakeholders, clinicians and staff. The Plan has
been shaped by key issues that are underpinned by a range of national and more
local information sources (‘Next Stage Review’, ‘Healthier Horizons’), the Joint
Strategic Health Needs Assessment and engagement with the public and our
partners. Ultimately the PCT Board have steered the Strategic Plan.

The process began with the development of a local and then joint health needs
assessment that identified our key health needs. The outcome of this work was
shared amongst our partners, stakeholders and the public.

4.2. Desired Outcomes

CECPCT has identified specific outcomes measures which link our strategic
goals, focus our actions and monitor our long term success.

The PCT Board and Professional Executive Committee (PEC) reviewed and
selected the final WCC outcomes that would be the best measures to track
delivery of our strategic goals. The following table presents the selection with
supporting rationale:

STRATEGIC GOAL

WCC OUTCOME MEASURE

RATIONALE
FOR OUTCOME CHOSEN

Strategic Goal 1:
Enable children to reach
their full potential by
making sure they are
healthy.

We will increase breastfeeding initiation
rates and 6-8 week maintenance and
make breastfeeding the norm in infant
feeding in Central and Eastern Cheshire.

Health legacy for both mother
and baby.

Reduction of health inequalities.
PCT currently not meeting
national target.

Strategic Goal 2:

Ensure older people are
supported when needed,
so that they can maintain
independence for longer
and enjoy good health into
old age;

We will transform the quality of dementia
care by ensuring 60% of expected
dementia sufferers are captured on a
practice based register, with an active care
plan.

Fastest growing elderly
population in Northwest — 2.5%
increase every 5 years.

Higher than average
requirement for dementia care
Evidence that the PCT are not
finding and effectively managing
all people with dementia

PEC and PBC priority area.

Strategic Goal 3:
Develop high quality
primary care services;

We will reduce the CHD mortality rate for
all ages from 83.94 per 100,000 (2007) to
56.50 per 100,000 by 2013.

We will reduce the <75 cancer mortality
rate from 112.55 per 100,000 (2007) to
81.07 per 100,000 by 2013.

CVD is largest cause of death
and premature mortality across
Central & Eastern Cheshire

Cancer is a key health issue
and significant cause of death
across Central & Eastern
Cheshire.

Strategic Goal 4:
Bring care closer to
home;

We will reduce the <75 cancer mortality
rate from 112.55 per 100,000 (2007) to
81.07 per 100,000 by 2013.

Improving cancer mortality will
improve life expectancy and
reduce the inequalities gap.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

45




Page 56

We will reduce the rate of alcohol -related

Strategic Goal 5: e Identified as a PEC priority
Develop the right urgent hospital admissions by 4,000 over 5 years. | ¢  North West worst position on ill-
care services, in the right health from alcohol and
place at the right time; We will transform Urgent Care services CECPCT is poorly performing.
and reduce emergency admissions due to (7th worst for hazardous drinking
ambulatory care conditions. nationally)
Strategic Goal 6: We will reduce the CHD mortality rate for | ¢  Major health issue for our
Improve equity of access | all ages from 83.94 per 100,000 (2007) to population
to good health services for | 56.50 per 100,000 by 2013. e Identified as a PEC priority
all our population e Links to LAA
Strategic Goal 7: We will increase the percentage of stroke e  Major health issue for our
Deliver comprehensive admissions given a physiotherapy population
and integrated care assessment within 72 hours. ¢ Identified as a PEC priority
pathways; e Highlighted by patients and the
public as a key area of concern
o LAAtarget
Strategic Goal 8: We will improve patient and user reported e Underpinning value of the PCT
Quality of care is measure of respect and dignity by e Board and PEC priority.
delivered across all our ensuring all providers are in the top 20% e Key concern for patients and the
commissioned services when benchmarked against similar public
organisations.
Strategic Goal 9: We will transform Urgent Care services e Desire to transform and improve
Optimise resource use and reduce emergency admissions due to urgent care and ensure the
and health outcomes by ambulatory care conditions provision of urgent care is
making appropriate use of accessible, safe and effective.
acute facilities e |dentified as a PEC priority
We will improve Life Expectancy for men e Mandatory
and women overall and to narrow the gap e  Priority area for PCT
by targeted action across the whole PCT. e Significant internal variations in
LE and measures of health &
illness.
We intend to secure a sustained reduction | ¢  Mandatory
in Health Inequalities, improve the health e  Priority area for PCT
of all but improve the health of the worst off | o Significant internal variations in

faster.

LE and measures of health &
iliness.

Attachment 1 provides an overview of each of our WCC outcomes measures, the
baselines, trajectories and benchmarks for each.

4.3.

Change Programmes (Initiatives)

Our initiatives are the specific programmes of work that we will carry out to help
us achieve our strategic goals. Within each initiative there are several
components, or project therefore we refer to the initiatives as ‘Change
Programmes’ (CP). In many cases these Change Programmes already form part
of the work of the PCT. However, in light of World Class Commissioning we have
taken the opportunity to review each programme to ensure it will contribute to our
strategic goals. All Change Programmes are supported by a project plan. The
table below shows how each Change Programme links back to our strategic

goals:

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

46




Strategic Goals

Change Programme SG 1: SG 2: SG 3: SG 4: SG 5: SG 6: SG7: SG 8: SG 9:
Children Older Primary Care Urgent Equity | Care Quality | Acute
People Care Closerto | Care Pathways Facilities
Home

CP1 — Health4Life (Lifestyle) v v v v v v v v v
Programme
CP2 - Urgent Care v v v v v v v v v
Modernisation
CP3 — Intermediate Services v v v 4 v v v v
CP4 — Developing 4 v v v v
Comprehensive (Integrated)
Care Pathways for LTC
CP5 — Deliver improved v v v v v v
Maternity and Children’s
Services
CP6 — Improving Dementia v v v v v v v
Care
CP7 — Redesign of Stroke v v v v v v v v
Services
CP8 — Developing Community v v v v v v v v v
Hospitals Project
CP9 — Improve Cancer v v v v v v v v v
Outcomes
CP10 — End of Life Care v v v v v v v v
CP11 — Primary Care v v v v v v v v v
Development
CP12 — Modernising Healthcare v v v v
at Styal Prison
CP13 — Implementation of v v v v v
Sexual Health Strategy
CP14 — Reduce CVD and v v v v v v v v
improve cardiac services
CP15 — Transforming v v v v v v v v v
Community Services
CP16 — Development of v v v v v v v v
Orthopaedic Care Pathways

v v v v v v v v v

CP17 — Dignity & Respect

,G abed



Page 58

4.4, Prioritisation Process

The Change Programmes (CP) have been identified by considering our local
population need, areas of poor performance and consideration of national
guidance. The PCT has a priority setting framework that has assisted in
prioritising the Change Programmes in order to deliver our strategic goals. We
have assessed relevant information from national and local datasets, and
compared these with the perspectives of key stakeholders, including patients and
the public. The priority setting framework is based upon the following principles,
while also being firmly focused on ‘caring about care’:

We will give priority in our choices to:

¢ National targets and local targets that are based upon local identified needs
and demographics.

e Equity based on assessed need, which at times may result in differential
distribution of resources.

e Health outcomes: we will prioritise needs for which effective interventions
exist, and that offer the greatest benefit for our population. We will use
validated clinical and economic measures (e.g. Health Technology
Assessments and National Institution for Clinical Excellence evidence)
alongside patient-related outcome measures.

o Cost effectiveness: choosing those interventions that have a robust evidence
base for the return on investment.

In pursuing these priorities we will be cognisant of:

e Disinvestment: we will continually review the services we commission in order
to improve efficiency (within our overall plan) so that resources can be re-
invested more appropriately

e Innovation: we will encourage innovations that can provide evidence of
improved outcomes, that have assessed risks and demonstrate an
understanding of how new ways of working affect other current services or
interventions within the NHS and beyond.

e Quality: we will commission services that deliver outcomes that are
meaningful to patients and carers, and that demonstrate their commitment to
dignity and respect.

e Resources: we will remain within our resource limits, and this may mean that
not all services that are clinically effective and cost effective can be
commissioned.

We have also used multi-criteria analysis technique — a scoring system aimed to
assess priorities against an agreed set of criteria. The benefit criteria used were
themed against the following headings:

Impact Assessment (40 points)

Financial (20 points)

Engagement (30 points)

National Requirements (10 points)
Addressing Unmet Identified Need (20 points)
Only treatment or Alternative (10 points)
Achievability (10 points)

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 49
Better, Longer Lives



4.5.

Page 59

Overall Impact of Change Programmes on Outcomes

By reviewing the impact of each Change Programme against each outcome we
will deliver:

An additional 241 infants breastfed per year

60% of expected dementia sufferers captured on practice based registers
Reduce deaths from CHD by 282 per year

138 fewer death <75 per year from cancer

4,000 fewer alcohol related admission over 5 years

Fewer deaths within 30 days of an emergency admission to hospital with a
stroke.

CECPCT will move to the top quartile for reported patient experience
1,300 fewer (emergency) ambulatory care conditions

Such changes will increase life expectancy to 79.8 years (male) and 83.3 years
(female) by saving 419 deaths per year by 2013. This will also reduce the gap in
life expectancy between the lowest quintile.

Each Change Programme was also assessed against their level of impact on the
outcomes and given a Low, Medium or High rating. The table below gives a
summary of this assessment:

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 50
Better, Longer Lives



CHANGE PROGRAMMES (INITIATIVES) - IMPACT ON OUTCOME MEASURES (H= High, M=Medium, L=Low)

Change > o
) L}
Programmes Impact over 5 Years - 2 .2 2 5 = 8 E
(Initiatives) BEl S S 88 ¢ | £3 < | & o £5
S E |2F% % 0 Sal 8 522 028 ®T
s [ IO ®O = 2ol 2 O =X o9
o0& a OS| O » o < DOl Juw| £
CP1 — Health4Life e Increase positive lifestyle choices e.g. 241 more infants breastfed p.a. H H H H H M H H H H
(Lifestyle) Programme e 4,000 fewer alcohol related admissions
. Increase in early detection of cancer
CP2 — Urgent Care e Reduction in emergency bed days (10-20% reduction in av. LOS) L M H M H M H H H H
Modernisation e 6,500 fewer A&E attendances
. Reduced emergency admission due to Ambulatory Care Sensitive
conditions from 14.48/1000 population to below 11.50/1000
CP3 — Intermediate e Improved health and well-being due to appropriate care and support in L M L L H H L H M H
Services most appropriate environment — supporting independence
. Improved quality of life by maximising rehabilitation and re-ablement
. Increased control and choice by enabling service users involvement in )
care planning as
CP4 — Developing ¢ New model of health and social care in place L H H H H H H H H E
Comprehensive . Reduced inappropriate admissions [o)
(Integrated) Care o))
Pathways for LTC P
CP5 — Deliver improved | ¢  Performance dashboards in place across services H L M M L H M H H H
Maternity and Children’s | ‘Baby Friendly Initiative’ (BFI) achieved in both local providers
Services . Enhanced community support for pregnant women and breastfeeding
mums
CP6 — Improving e All staff trained within 1° and 2° care setting L |H M L M H H H L H
Dementia . Improved early diagnosis of dementia — tools and training in place
Care . 3,860 people with dementia will be captured on a dementia register
CP7 — Redesign of e All patients admitted with a stroke will have a physiotherapy assessment M L M L H H L H H H
Stroke Services within 72 hours
e All patients will suspected stroke will be assessed within 1 hour of
contact with NHS services.
CP8 — Developing e  Existing services operating from new purpose built facilities L H M M H H L H H H
Community Hospitals . Improved access to diagnosis to support the 18 week pathway
Project . Reduced average length of stay for people aged 65+
CP9 — Improve Cancer e  Improved life expectancy for CECPCT residents H L L H L H H M H H
Outcomes . Reduced lifestyle related illness
. Earlier detection & treated more quickly
CP10 — End of Life e  More people support to die in their preferred place. L H H H M H M M L H
Care . Bereavement and psychological support more widely available




CHANGE PROGRAMMES (INITIATIVES) - IMPACT ON OUTCOME MEASURES (H= High, M=Medium, L=Low)

Better, Longer Lives

Change > o
o [
Programmes Impact over 5 Years - 2 .2 2 5 = 8 E
(Initiatives) BEl @ S 88 £ £8 < |3 H e
S E |2F% % 0 Sal 8 522 028 ®T
= [ IO ol S = 0 = @ & X o9
o0& a OS| O » o < DOl Juw| £
CP11 — Primary Care e Relocate a further 14 practices into new multi-use centres H H H H H M M M H H
Development e Continue to improve GP access
. Introduce more outcome initiatives to build on the LeQOF ‘Excellence in
Primary Care’ — stretch targets
CP12 — Modernising e Improved access to services L L M M L M H L M H
Healthcare at Styal . Reduced inequalities
Prison . Improved quality of services
CP13 — Implementation | ¢  Improved care pathways M L L M L L M M M H
of Sexual Health o Timely and easy access to psychosexual and sexual dysfunction
Strategy therapies
. Reduced unintended pregnancy rates
CP14 — Reduce CVD e Improved detection of people with CHD & CVD L L H M H H M H H I:I.U
and improve cardiac . Improved speed to and quality of treatment offered )
services . More comprehensive care for people with CHD & CVD ‘A
CP15 — Transforming e  Delivery of the Commissioning Strategy for TCS H H M L H H L H H D
Community Services . Market analysis and understanding »
(TCS) . Met 5 key gateways =X
CP16 — Development of | e  Increased patient choice L L L L L M L H M M
Orthopaedic Care . Increased orthopaedic capacity
Pathways . Reduced waiting times
CP17 — Dignity & e  PCT in upper quartile of all PCTs against patient experience in relation to L H M M M H L M M M
Respect (D&R) D&R
e All major contracts have D&R embedded within them
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 52




Page 62

4.6. Specific Change Programmes (Initiatives) and Impact

CP1 - Health4Life (Lifestyle) Programme
The aim is to increase the uptake and maintenance of healthy lifestyle choices by Central
and Eastern Cheshire Population. It will:

= Reduce the levels of Health and Social Care use caused by specific risky behaviours
e.g. Alcohol, smoking, unhealthy weight, unsafe sex

» Increase positive lifestyle choices e.g. Breastfeeding, Physical Activity, Healthy
Eating, Cancer awareness

» Increase knowledge and awareness about lifestyle choices and risks

» Increase early detection i.e. cancer

» Reduce prevalence of lifestyle related ill-health and disease.

The steps in programme development are: assessment of need, mapping of current
initiatives and services, Identifying gaps and potential cost savings, reviewing, redesigning
and developing services, using social marketing deliver targeted interventions. Lifestyle
risk by practice and PBC cluster has already been assessed and presented to GPs and
PBC groups.

This programme contributes to all of the prioritised outcomes. This programme will lead to
more activity within services that support good health such as leisure facilities and those
that offer support and advice (e.g. stop smoking clinics). The programme will reduce the
need for treatment services.

CP2 - Urgent Care Modernisation
This Change Programme aims to inform the effective commissioning of an Urgent Care
System.

Within 5 years Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT will commission an Urgent Care system
built on delivering high quality emergency and urgent care, closer to people’s homes,
which offers patients greater choice, better information and value from an expanded range
of health and social providers.

The Main Objective of the Change Programme is to achieve:

a reduction in the rate of Emergency Admissions due to Ambulatory Conditions from 14.48
/1000 population (above national average) to below 11.50 / 1000 population placing the
PCT in the top quartile against national performance.

This will deliver the following outcomes:

o 6500 fewer A&E Attendances

e Over 100,000 patients will receive an initial assessment within 30 minutes of arrival
at an Urgent or Emergency Care Centre. Benchmarked against current activity
level

e Over 1000 patients per year will access a new integrated respiratory service
benchmarked against current activity level

e 500 patients who fall, will be managed at home rather than conveyed to hospital

e Approximately 1300 fewer emergency admissions due to Ambulatory Conditions

53
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 63

The PCT will invest over £3.5 Million in developing services to support its strategy for
Urgent & Emergency Care. Over £125 million /year is currently invested in Urgent Care by
the PCT through its baseline.

However, investments will be complemented by decommissioning of existing acute
services with an aim that the total financial impact will be cost neutral. There will be
movement of resource between providers to allow the PCT to deliver the proposed
outcomes.

Stakeholder events were held last year to inform the development of the urgent care
centres. Further patient and staff involvement will be organised in the pathway work and
implementation by means of focus groups and questionnaires. Patient representatives are
members of the Urgent Care Network that will be over seeing this programme.

CP3 - Intermediate Services

This Change Programme aims to Commission care closer to home to meet the needs of
the population in 5 years time using a range of intermediate services that focus on prompt
time-limited interventions to support older people in their own homes or in community beds
to avoid unnecessary hospital admissions or support early discharge from hospital. .

We will commission:

¢ Intermediate services hubs alongside each urgent care centre and hospital

¢ Intermediate bed based services in each key town — see Community IBBS by Borough
and Type

¢ Intermediate home based services

This Programme is a key project within the Urgent Care Plan 2007 — 2011 and forms part
of the Healthcare Services in a Community Setting programme. Its outcomes are critical
to the delivery of our reductions in Emergency Bed Days.

The planning to support this change programme has looked at what level of health and
social care services will be required, for the population of central and eastern Cheshire, if
we continue to provide care in the same way as we do today for the growing numbers of
older people. Using 2007 as the baseline this has shown that by 2016 we would
have/require:

414 additional hospital admissions each year

11 additional acute hospital beds each year

74 admissions to care homes each year

123 additional people living in care homes each year

The planning also shows that if the type of services and the way we provide them were
changed through the use of intermediate services we would have/require:

255 additional hospital admissions each year, which is 159 less

5 additional acute hospital beds each year, which is 6 less

30 admissions to care homes each year, which is 44 less

41 additional people living in care homes each year, which is 82 less

54
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 64

Bed Requirements across Central and Eastern Cheshire by 2012

Bed Type Beds Northwich | Winsford Macc- Knutsford | Congleton | Crewe | Total Beds
in 2008 lesfield (2012)

Intermediate 18 30 36 26 30 22 162
Services

Specialist Rehab. 8 8 8 8 32
General Palliative 6 6 6 8 26
Care

Total Intermediate 115 32 30 50 26 44 38 220
Services

The current intermediate care services have a joint health and social care budget of

£6,415,000 in 2007/08.

This is a whole system plan so the involvement of stakeholders is critical to its success.
The Cheshire Intermediate Work stream involved all health and social care organisations
and consulted with the public and third sector organisations. Whole system events and
specific events for key players, e.g. primary care, are planned for key stages in the

commissioning.

Table 3 below identifies the outcomes using the Cheshire “Every Older Adult Matters”

Framework.

The outcomes of this programme can be defined as:

¢ Reductions in the forecast hospital admissions
¢ Reductions in the forecast admissions to ling term care
e Reductions in delayed discharges

Outcome Intermediate services will:

Improved Provide appropriate care and support in an environment that is

health and most conducive to promoting independence, health and well-being;

wellbeing Rapid response elements of services will optimise recovery;
Prevent admission to hospital where appropriate and therefore
minimise risk of increased dependency or hospital acquired
infections.

Improved Provide care at home or as close to home as is possible to

quality of life enhance quality of life;
Will maximise rehabilitation and reablement with a view to
maximising independence and therefore quality of life.

Making a Prevent premature admission to long term care enabling

positive opportunities for greater local engagement;

contribution Maintain independence and home based support.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

55




Page 65

Outcome Intermediate services will:
Increased Enable service user involvement in care planning and the setting of
choice and personal outcomes;
control

Facilitate links to mainstream community services and third sector
organisations.

Freedom from
discrimination

Ensure equity of access and clear assessment and eligibility
criteria;

Ensure access on the base of need not age or condition.

Economic Enable smooth transition through reablement to optimise levels of

wellbeing independence and therefore a persons potential to make an
economic contribution to their local community.

Maintaining Improve people’s experience of hospital care;

5?'3?"3' d Provide more care at home where an individual has greater control

r;g::Ztan and confidence to work with service providers.

CP4 - Developing Comprehensive (integrated) Care Pathways for LTC

This Change Programme aims within 3 years to ensure that all patients with a Long Term
Condition receive personalized care, providing the most intensive care, in the least
intensive setting.

The main objectives are:

e All patients with a LTC will have a personalised care plan, putting the person with the
LTC and/or their carers in charge.

e All care plans with individuals will be supported by multi-disciplinary teams focused
around PBC/practice clusters.

o District Nursing services are recommissioned to take a leading role in the treatment
and management of house bound patients with LTC

e Programmes promoting knowledge of prevention will
increasing individual independence.

be widely implemented

* New Integrated Respiratory Services and Neurological Nurse specialists will be
commissioned to provide specialist care in the community.

This Change Programme will deliver the following outcomes:

e A new model of health and social care will have been introduced with services
commissioned to meet the 3 levels of need described with the LTC strategy.

e There will be a significant reduction in patients inappropriately admitted with a LTC
(see ACS condition outcome).

The PCT will meet the objectives of this change programme through the redesign and
recommissioning of existing services and by stimulating the market.

Stakeholder events were held during 2007-08 to inform the development of the Long Term
Conditions Strategy, which is instrumental in delivering the programme. Further patient

56
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 66

and staff involvement will be involved in the pathway work by means of focus groups and
questionnaires to gather views.

Patient and staff focus groups and questionnaires will seek the views of patients on
proposed implementation plans, ensuring views are taking into account.

This programme requires commitment across the whole health economy and particularly
the development of health and social care partnerships.

CP5 - Deliver Improved Maternity and Children’s Services

Maternity Services

The aim is to ensure maternity services are delivered to high standard and are compliant
with ‘Maternity Matters’ and the national ‘Standards for Maternity Care’. A locally agreed
set of standards for maternity & obstetric services within the acute trusts will be agreed.
Access to maternity care will be improved, antenatal care developed. Women will be
offered a choice of place of birth. Place of postnatal care will be reviewed. All women will
have access to support from a known and trusted midwife. Maternity Services Liaison
Committees in both Central and Eastern Cheshire are involved. There are
interdependencies in relation to the configuration Health Visiting services, which will be
taken into account within the ‘Transforming Community Service’s’ Change Programme.

Children’s Community Nursing

Children’s & Women’s Community Nursing Services aim to improve the health outcomes
of children, young people and women through prevention, early intervention and ongoing
management.

The objectives are to review the outcomes, structures and resources for children, young
people and women’s community nursing services. Work is being undertaken to establish
the desired outcomes, proposed interventions, resources required, implications of a
change in delivery and establish monitoring systems. The process should lead to a
prioritizing of activity based upon need and what makes a difference. Meetings with
stakeholders have already been undertaken and a small working group has been
established.

Paediatrics

Paediatric services development aims to improve the health outcomes and management
of sick children and young people. The objective is to establish a locally agreed set of
standards for all elements of paediatric care within the acute trusts and relay these in a
performance dashboard. A piece of work is underway between joint commissioning and
public health to understand patient flows across primary care, community and the acute
trusts.

Across all three services of this Change Programme outcome measures will be integrated
and described within the performance dashboards and will cover areas such as staffing,
activity, clinical indicators and environment.

CP6 — Improving Dementia Care

The aim is to raise awareness of the public and professionals to dementia combating
stigma, ensure people are diagnosed as early as possible and raise the quality of care for
people with dementia.

The main objectives of the Programme are:

57
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 67

Training to be rolled out to all staff working within health settings
¢ People with dementia to be diagnosed earlier in their condition to allow them to be
more involved in decisions and to facilitate better planning of their care.
e Support and advice to be given to carers particularly with regard to end of life care.
e High quality care and support in hospital

This Change Programme will deliver the following outcomes:

In five years time it is envisaged that 60% of the total expected numbers of people with
dementia will be captured on a dementia register with an active care plan.

Baseline 37% of expected prevalence 2008 2200
Year 1 42% of expected prevalence 2009 2590
Year 2 47% of expected prevalence 2010 2942
Year 3 52% of expected prevalence 2011 3345
Year 4 60% of expected prevalence 2012 3860

Based on expected prevalence the 2012 figure is over 75% of the baseline figure, due to
the expected prevalence increasing over these years.

CP7 — Redesign of Stroke Services

The main aim is to improve services for those who suffer stroke and to intervene early to
prevent Stroke. There are approximately 700 new strokes per year in CECPCT. In addition
there are 150 TIAs admitted to hospital but the total number of people having TIAs is much
greater and could be double or triple this number.

A fully comprehensive service for people with stroke and TIA will reduce future mortality
and morbidity. Prompt interventions will speed recovery and reduce the burden of disease.

The main objectives are:

e to map current service delivery across the whole health economy in order to
identify gaps and develop an action plan to ensure the delivery of services across
the whole pathway complies with the 20 Quality Markers identified in the National
stroke strategy.

e To ensure at least 90% of patients who have a stroke are firstly admitted to a
dedicated stroke unit and subsequently receive physiotherapy assessment within
72 hours. Although, the main outcome is about physiotherapy assessment, the
PCT will ensure all other therapy assessments are carried out in the first few days

e Develop an overall PCT stroke action plan, following two recent stakeholder events
(2008) to ensure all people who have had a stroke follow timely, rapid and clinically
appropriate pathways.

e The PCT has already asked the providers to transfer appropriate patients to
rehabilitation within 19 days, if clinically appropriate. This work began in April 2009
and is linked to the PCTs rehabilitation plan.

This will deliver the following outcomes:
e Sept. 2009 - 90% all patients suspected of having a stroke will be assessed within
1 hour of contact with the NHS in a hospital setting.

58
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 68

e 2009-2010 - 90% and

e 2010-2011-95% and

e 2011-2012 - 100% of patients admitted with stroke will have Physiotherapy
assessment within 72 hours

CP8 — Developing Community Hospitals Project

This Change Programme aims to develop our community hospitals as a network that
provides appropriate services away from secondary care, and therefore closer to people’s
homes

The main objectives are:

e Use healthcare resources (money, staff, buildings) more effectively and draw in
additional resources, if possible, to improve patient services and reduce inequity of
service provision.

e Improve the quality of facilities available locally to meet identified patient need.
Develop a greater range of local services that staff can influence and take a pride in
delivering to patients.

o Develop a joint plan for identified communities of need, that describes the vision of
healthcare services locally, bringing a range of service providers together to better
meet patient needs.

The key principles for these developments include:

e The development of modern primary care and community hospital facilities in
Knutsford, Congleton and Northwich;

e The delivery of “Care Closer to Home” through the provision of flexible, integrated
clinical services across the main towns of Central and Eastern Cheshire

e Increased access to a range of intermediate tier services, both in patients’ own homes
and in purpose-built community bed facilities.

o Expanded community teams to support people with long term conditions in their
homes and avoid unnecessary admission to hospital.

¢ Increased access to diagnostic and outpatient facilities in the community.
Community-based mental health teams to support service users in their homes.
This will deliver the following outcomes

This Programme will deliver the following outcomes:
o Existing services operating from new purpose-built facilities.
New services bringing together clinical teams across primary, community and
secondary care, with shorter care pathways and local access wherever possible.
Improved access to diagnostics to support delivery of 18-week pathway.
Reduced acute hospital admissions in people aged over 65 years (against trajectory).
Reduced average lengths of stay in people aged over 65 years.
Reduced admissions to long term care.
Reduced outpatient attendances
Reduced A&E attendances
Improved recruitment and retention of staff
Local ownership of new multi-purpose facilities encouraging access to services by
young people and supporting healthy lifestyle choices.

Stakeholders have been engaged from the “ideas” stage, to the development of plans and
the appointment of developers and preferred providers. The Acute and Community Trusts
and Social Services representatives, have been members of the Healthcare in a

59
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 69

Community Setting Strategy Group and have participated in the “Task and Finish” group
that determined the community bed model. A multi-agency group across Cheshire
developed the model and activity planning, involving patients and third sector groups.
Large public meetings have been held in Knutsford, Northwich, and more recently in
Congleton to engage the wider public at an early stage. This approach to engaging the
public has been commended by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Full formal public
consultation will be required for the health centre schemes in due course.

CP9 — Improve Cancer Outcomes
This Change Programme aims to:

¢ Increase by 20% the proportion of people who are diagnosed at an earlier stage of
cancer.
Offer rapid and effective treatment for cancer following diagnosis.

e Reduce <75yrs deaths from cancer per year by 2014 by 18 per 100,000 of our
population.

The main outcomes of the Change Programme are to:

e Reduce the premature cancer mortality by 24% (137 deaths per year) within the areas
of low life expectancy. Tackling these health inequalities would result in an increase of
almost 9 months in male life expectancy to 78.8 years and an increase of almost 11
months in females to 82.7 years

¢ Reduce proportion of women never screened for cervical cancer from 5.4% to 3%
(current range 3.4%-7.0% at town level). We will reverse decline in cervical screening
coverage, and increase to 85% (82.3% in 2007/08, 78.6% nationally)

e Reduce proportion of women never screened for breast cancer from 8.4% to 4%
(current range 5.4%-11.2% at town level). We will Increase breast screening coverage
to 87% (83.1% in 2007/08, 76.7% nationally)

¢ Increase bowel screening coverage to 66% (62% in 2008, 57% in C&M)
e Use informed choice in PSA testing to reduce number of tests undertaken

e Ensure waiting times from screening to first appointment (assessment) meet and
exceed current standards of 90% within 3 weeks for breast screening and 90% within
8 weeks for cervical screening.

¢ Reduce smoking prevalence - this links directly to the Health4 Life Change
Programme.

e Reduce prevalence of obesity, specifically in women (as breast cancer determinant) -
this links directly to the Health4 Life Change Programme

On average around 2,140 local people develop cancer each year before the age of 75 and
578 people die early from this disease. By 2013, we expect an additional 84 premature
deaths will occur, due to the aging population.

60
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 70

Actual VBSO03 plan WCC stretched plan
(DSR per 100,000) (DSR per 100,000) | (DSR per 100,000)

2007 112.55 (597 deaths)

2008 106.56

2009 101.23 100.89

2010 99.06 95.52

2011 96.93 90.43

2012 91.53 85.62

2013 87.53 81.07

CP10 - End of Life Care

This Change Programme aims to commission an integrated whole system approach to
end of life care, that will ensure a personalized approach, support choice and facilitate
easy access to services for patients and their families.

It also aims to fully implement the key recommendations within the National End of Life
Strategy and Healthier Horizons for the North West.

The main objectives of the Change Programme are to:

Ensure that 10% less people die in hospital by 2012, and a greater portion of people
die in their preferred place of care.

Work with the Nationally recognized Marie Curie Choice Toolkit to review unmet need,
local demographics and forecasts.

Increase the use of all End of Life Care Tools through all care settings for patients at
End of Life regardless of diagnosis.

Extend the use of the Gold Standard Framework in Primary Care for ALL End of Life
patients.

Ensure comprehensive education and training availability for professionals working
with patients at End of Life.

Raise the profile of death and dying in a positive manner within the local population,
particularly working closely with local schools.

Review rapid discharge pathways for people choosing to die at home or in a setting
outside of hospital.

This will deliver the following outcomes:

More people will die in their preferred place of care and have had a positive
experience of their last days of life.

Hospital death rates will be reduced

Use of the End of Life Care tools will be increased

Rapid discharge pathways will be in place and working

Marie Curie toolkit in use and demonstrating effective use of resources, facilitating
patient choice and demonstrating value for money by less urgent care episodes and
less unnecessary hospital admissions.

The impact of the Change Programme on activity levels:

10% less people will die in Hospital by 2012

61

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 71

Increased people will die in their preferred place of care.
Community Care activity will rise.

End of Life Care Tools — full uptake through all care settings
Urgent Care — support to prevent unnecessary hospital admissions

CP11 - Primary Care Development
This Change Programme will support the modernization of primary care services,
specifically with regard to GP practices in Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT

Services will be commissioned from GP practices which support the patients of our PCT to
maximize health and wellbeing, consequently sustaining improvement in health outcomes
and reduction in health inequalities, ultimately to enable the population to have a choice of
at least 2 high quality GP practices, with the aspiration that patients in Central and Eastern
Cheshire PCT will have access to the best primary care service in England

The main objectives of the Change Programme are to achieve:

e consistently high quality primary care across the PCT’s population as defined by
the PCT’s CASE approach to quality. The intention is to improve health and
reduce health inequalities using a sound knowledge of health care needs and a
robust evidence base

¢ high quality primary care services close to patient homes and to commission
appropriate health care services by actively involving community and patients
views.

The updated balanced scorecard will set out the key outcomes for this Change
Programme

This Change Programme should reduce secondary care activity over time e.g.
inappropriate A&E attendances, inappropriate referrals to hospital and in time should
reduce costs associated with non electives especially A&E attendances, and elective
activity.

CP12 — Modernising Healthcare at Styal Prison

This Change Programme aims to:

e improve the standard of services and health outcomes;

e deliver the Styal health development plan; and

o streamline the contracting and accountabilities, having appointed one provider
organisation for the delivery of primary and community healthcare services in Styal
Prison.

The main objectives of the Change Programme are:

o to deliver a range and quality of services equivalent to that offered to people outside of
Prison and to work toward ‘mainstreaming’ prison health at every opportunity;

e to ensure that integrated services are provided;

e to ensure that services are accessible and responsive;

¢ to ensure that prison health services are needs evidence based and clinically effective;
e to ensure resources are used effectively;

62
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 72

e to secure a pace of change that will avoid destabilisation of the wider prison regime
and allow developments to be thoroughly established and evaluated;

¢ to recognise both the Prison Service and NHS agendas and to achieve a balance
between security requirements and health provision.

This will deliver the following outcomes:

Improved access

Reduced inequalities

Developed capacity to meet need

Better value for money

Improved quality

Improved integration with mainstream services

Within this Change Programme, stakeholder involvement has been evident, working in
partnership with the Prison Governor and Cheshire Community Voice (a voluntary
organisation) throughout the tender process. Some of the women at Styal have also been
involved in the tender process, as part of focus groups and participating in the bidder day.
Prisoner involvement in service design and delivery was a key feature of the service being
tendered for.

CP13 - Implementation of Sexual Health Strategy

This Change Programme aims to enable people to access a full range of high quality,
integrated, person-centred and culturally sensitive sexual health services, to reduce both
the number of sexually transmitted diseases and teenage conceptions.

The Main Objective of the Change Programme is to achieve:

e Establish high quality community based integrated sexual health care (with sufficient
capacity) that promotes equity and has a single point of access for service users.

o Modernise services provision by developing clear service user care pathways,
ensuring greater choice, enhanced efficiency and equity in care. This will include
developing capacity and expertise in general practice and primary care settings.

o To provide timely and easy access to psychosexual and sexual dysfunction therapies,
and to provide prompt and easy access to a high quality sexual assault referral centre
(SARC).

e To develop and implement an education and sexual health promotion framework which
conforms to equality and diversity requirements, and that prevents unintended
pregnancy and sexual infections (including HIV).

o Toincrease active user participation and involvement in the planning, organisation and
evaluation of services

e To reduce unintended pregnancy rates by linking to the Cheshire Teenage Pregnancy
Strategy, to ensure sexual health services are accessible to young people and national
standards are met.

The outcomes for this Change Programme are currently being developed.

CP14 — Reduce CVD & Improve Cardiac Services

This Change Programme aims, over the next five years, to reduce CVD Mortality through
its prevention, management, reduce the incidence of Stroke and Cardiac Events and
improve access to essential Cardiac services.

63
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 73

Tackling vascular disease will be key to achieving the national 2010 health inequalities
target relating to life expectancy.

The directly standardised mortality rate for Cornoary Heart Disease (CHD) was 83.94 per
100,000 (683 deaths) in 2005-07. We will reduce this rate by 282 deaths per year. This
will result in a directly standardised rate of 56.50 per 100,000 by 2013.

This reduction in CHD deaths will reduce the directly standardised rate for Circulatory
Disease from 199.96 per 100,000 in 2005-07 to 158.11 per 100,000 in 2013. Thisis a
reduction of 21%.

The main objective(s) of the Change Programme are to:
¢ Improve detection of people with CHD and CVD
¢ Improve speed and maximise quality of treatment offered
e Ensure comprehensive care for people suffering from CHD and CVD.

This will deliver the following outcomes:
¢ Reduction in the number of Stroke, Emergency AAA’s and Heart Attacks.

¢ Increase the number of risk assessments performed.

e Increase the number of patients identified on the hypertension registers in General
practice.

¢ Increase the number of patients prescribed anti-Hypertensive drugs.
¢ Increase the number of patients called for annual review.

Increase in the number of patients setting a quit day.
¢ Reduction in Heart Failure Readmissions
Reduction in subsequent Cardiac events following improved access to Cardiac
Rehabilitation.
Achievement of the Advancing Quality targets
Increase in patients receiving Revascularisation
Increase in the number of Pacemaker inserted locally
Reduction in out-patient follow ups
Improve Thrombolysis access times
Increase the number of patients receiving Primary Angioplasty.

CP15 — Transforming Community Services (TCS)
This Change Programme aims to deliver on the Transactional and Transformational
agenda of Transforming Community Services (TCS)

The TCS program is central to delivering the vision for Primary and Community Care set
out in the NHS Next Stage Review.

Three key elements feature in the TCS program of change:

e The development of a Quality Framework for community services (due June 2009),
giving a high priority to enabling the transformation of clinical practice skills;

e Transform the commissioning of community services through World Class
Commissioning and provide commissioners with the tools they need i.e. a new
standard contract, guidance on costing and pricing, information and metrics; and

64
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 74

o The need to ensure that the organisations providing the community services are fit for
purpose. Organisations are needed which enable and empower front line staff to
innovate and free up their time to care for patients.

The main objectives of the Change Programme are:
¢ Meet the 5 key gateways:
- Separation
- Strategy and Commissioning
- Service Viability and Productivity assessment
- Infrastructure Strategy
- Organisational option
o Develop a 5 year commissioning strategy - focused around the 7 key pathways
- High quality care for children and families
- High quality care in services for long term conditions
- High quality care in acute services closer to home
- High quality care in services for rehabilitation and long term
neurological conditions
- High quality in end of life care
- Promoting health and well being and reducing inequalities
- High quality care in Mental Health (North West only)
Development of procurement plan
Development of market analysis
Development of contestability plan
Review the options for the most appropriate organisational forms that best suit local
need and circumstances.

This will deliver the following outcomes:

¢ Delivery of the commissioning strategy.

e Clear market analysis undertaken and thus clear understanding of gaps/arrears/risks
to deliver.

o Meeting the 5 key gateways and proposing the type of organisation for community
services.

The TCS programme of work is in accordance with the National drivers for the
modernisation of community providers. Consideration will be afforded to the other national
initiatives which include:

Healthier horizons North West (2009)

End of life strategy (2008)

World Class Commissioning

Healthier Lives Brighter Futures (2009)

(This is not an exhaustive list)

TCS is a national programme and has to be delivered - to ensure this the 5 year
commissioning strategy will be developed.

Stakeholder involvement has been key at the very start of this Programme. A launch
event, took place on 13" March 2009. Linked with this all the key pathways leads and
overall TCS lead will demonstrate public involvement.

CP16 — Development of Orthopaedic Care Pathways

65
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 75

Demand for acute Orthopaedics is forecasted to continue to grow during 2009/2010,
creating concerns over the level of available capacity and ensure compliance against 18
week performance. Analysis of population trends suggests that referrals will continue to
increase.

Both local Trusts have failed to achieve the 18 week target for orthopaedics during
2008/09, even though they both met the overall 18 week target. The Health Economy
invests over £18 million / annum in the provision of Orthopaedic services.

The aim is to develop a robust approach to commissioning of Elective Orthopaedic
services, that stimulates market competition, leads to improved patient access, choice and
quality of care.

The main objectives of this Change Programme are:
e to ensure that Orthopaedic capacity is matched to future demand,
o to ensure providers are compliant with the 18 week access targets
e to commission services which maximizes patient choice, ensuring value for
money.

The PCT’s current annual expenditure across all orthopaedic services is £18 million, which
also includes a number of IS contracts.

Improved outcomes include:

1. Increased patient choice.

2. Increased orthopaedic capacity across the health economy.

3. Reduction in waiting times for orthopaedic procedures, leading to

4. Improved performance against the 18 week targets for orthopaedics.

CP17 - Dignity and Respect
This Change Programme aims to demonstrate, in five years time, a level of patient
experience in relation to dignity and respect that is in the upper quartile of all PCTs.

The main objectives of the Change Programme is to:

¢ build on existing targets in relation to dignity and respect and agree further targets with
providers on an annual basis;

¢ identify priority areas/services based on health needs assessment, results of local
audits/surveys and national studies;

¢ identify core standards based on evidence from national guidance and directives and
local/national best practice;

e devise a commissioning framework around dignity and respect that includes KPls
relevant to different population groups;

e agree targets and ways of monitoring and evaluating dignity and respect with local
providers including through contract monitoring;
identify measurable patient-centred outcomes;

o develop a plan to ensure dignity and respect remains high on everyone’s agenda;

¢ link with SHA/Universities re-commissioning/provision of professional training to
ensure dignity and respect are a core element in the curriculae;
identify dignity champions’ focus groups for each of the priority areas/services.

e evaluate project at the end of each year and make any necessary amendments to
project plan.

66
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 76

+ final evaluation at end of year to a) demonstrate robust commissioning process in
place in relation to dignity and respect; b) demonstrate year on year improvement in
patients’ experiences against an agreed baseline in year 1; c) outline core standards
that apply to all groups and specific standards that apply to individual services and
sectors; d) robust monitoring and evaluative process that demonstrates year on year
improvement

This will deliver the following outcomes:
¢ In five years time the PCT will be able to demonstrate improvements for patient
experience in relation to dignity and respect that is in the upper quartile of all PCTs.

e By the end of year one all major contracts will have standards and targets in place with
year on year increases in the number of provider service contracts involved so that by
year 5 every contract will have dignity and respect embedded within.

In order to ensure the programme is developed a Steering Group involving key individuals
with appropriate skills and perspectives (e.g. Local Dignity Champions) will be established
at an early stage. They will agree the Project Plan, including timescales for completion,
project outcomes and will meet on a monthly basis to guide and steer the project. There
will be some Investment required to support patient and public feedback processes.

It is not anticipated this initiative will have a direct impact on activity since it is focussed on
improving quality and patient experience rather than efficiency of services.

Stakeholder involvement in developing and implementing this Change Programme is vital.
There will be patient and public involvement through detailed surveys, audits, focus groups
and analysis of complaints etc. Key stakeholders will be represented on the Steering
Group including Dignity Champions, Lay Representatives, Key Commissioning Managers
and Staff representatives. Awareness-raising sessions with key stakeholder groups will
also be undertaken. There will also be involvement of stakeholders in an annual
evaluation process.

The main risks to the Change Programme are that Providers may not be able to deliver
year on year improvements in dignity and respect in care within resources; there is a lack
of consensus amongst stakeholders regarding a) appropriate indicators b) target levels
required: a lack of stakeholder time to fully contribute to initiative.

4.7. Investments
As can be seen from the table below, the PCT is not planning to invest significant amounts
of new money but rather to focus on using the existing expenditure in a more targeted
fashion. The following table shows the new investments in two programmes with the
remainder of funding being drawn from existing sources.

Change 2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012/13 Total
Programme £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
CP1 — Lifestyle 100 0 0 0 100
Programme

CP2 - Urgent Care 1180 1180 0 0 2360

Modernisation

Total 1280 1180 0 0 2460

67
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 77

The following Table represents an overview of how each of the 9 Strategic Goals link to
the 10 WCC outcomes and the 17 Change Programmes.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives

68



VISION Encourage staying Healthy Appropriate access & timely care for Maintain Independence & well-being during ill-
life events health
Enable Ensure Develop high Improve Develop the Optimise Bring care Develop Quality of
children to older quality Equity of right urgent resource use closer to Comprehensive | careis
reach their full | people are primary care | access to care and health home (Integrated) delivered
potential by supported services good health services, in outcomes by Care across all our
GOALS making sure when services the right making Pathways commissioned
they are needed place at the appropriate services
healthy right time use of acute
facilities
Breast Dementia - CHD mortality — Urgent Care - Alcohol - Stroke — Dignity &
feeding - 60% of Reduce CHD mortality for all Reduce emergency Reduce the rate of Increase % of Respect —
Increase expected ages admissions due to alcohol related stroke All providers
WCC OUTCOME MEASURES initiation rates sufferers ambulatory care hospital admissions admissions in top 20%
and 6-8 week | captured on conditions given a physio against all
maintenance practice assessment National
register Patient
Cancer Survey
Mortality — indicators
Reduce <75
cancer
mortality

Deliver sustained reduction in Health Inequalities, improve the health of all but improve the health of the worst off faster

Improve Life Expectancy for men and women overall and to narrow the gap by targeted action across the whole PCT

CHANGE PROGRAMMES (linked to Strategic Goals)

CP1 — Health4Life (Lifestyle) Programme

CP2 — Urgent Care Modernisation

\/

CP3 - Intermediate Services

CP4 - Deliver comprehensive and integrated care
pathways for Long Term Conditions (LTC)

NESENEN

ANRNANEN

ANRNANEN

CP5 — Deliver improved outcomes for maternity and
children’s services

CP6 — Improving Dementia Care

CP7 — Redesign of Stroke Services

CP8 — Developing Community Hospitals Project

CP9 — Improve Cancer Outcomes

SANENENERNERENENENAN

CP10 - End of Life Care

CP11 — Primary Care Development

ASANANENENEN

ANENANENEN

AN

A AR AVANAVERENEENENENAN

CP12 - Modernising Healthcare at Styal Prison

ANRNENENANENEAN

CP13 - Implementation of Sexual Health Strategy

ANRNANENANAN

CP14 - Reduce CVD & improve cardiac services

CP15 — Transforming Community Services

AN

CP16 — Development of Orthopaedic Care Pathways

CP 17 — Dignity & Respect

ANENRNAN

N R R R R AR R A SR AR
N R R R AR A RS R AR

SRR
ANENANANAN

NAAER

ASESANAN

ARSI SRS ANAYAYASNANASEERN EERNENENERN

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives

g/ abed



Page 79

5. Scenario Planning — Adapting For The Future

We have considered various scenarios that MAY affect the delivery of our Strategic Plan in
an ever changing environment, and tested out the robustness, resilience and recoverability
of the plan under different scenarios.

The Health Needs Assessment section (Section 5, on pages 17-32) sets out the current
assessed needs of our population. Whilst this assessment takes account of forecast
changes in need and demand (e.g. through changing demographics) it is vital that our
Strategic Plan is also able to adapt to other changes which may impact on both supply and
demand.

In determining our Strategic Plan (and in particular our specific outcome plans) we have
undertaken a detailed PESTEL analysis looking at possible impacts in:

Political
Economic
Social
Technological
Environmental
Legal

Terms

Each of our project plans (for both the World Class Commissioning outcomes and the key
PCT ‘Change Prgrammes’) have been subject to a PESTEL analysis. However we
recognise that this analysis will inevitably reflect the current ‘known impacts’ and that we
must engage in more ‘blue sky’ analysis in order to make sure our strategic plan is able to
adapt to significant external factors in the medium and long term.

We have therefore used the North West SHA Scenario Planning work to engage Clinicians
and Managers in discussions about the future and in supporting the PESTEL analysis.
This work has led us to identify the following factors which we have included into our
strategic plan for the next 5 year timeframe:

1) The impact of the increased use of technology. In particular we believe that the
development of WEB 2.0 will have a huge impact on the way services are delivered
and how we interact with our patients and, most importantly, patients and public
interact with each other on health and healthcare issues. We have been an early
adopter (in conjunction with our two main provider Trusts) of the Patient Opinion web-
site. We now recognise that we must better understand the potential impact of WEB
2.0 as the ‘my space’ generation grows older and the whole of society recognises the
Web as an interactive tool.

2) The development of the NHS constitution. In particular we believe that the society
will move from perceiving that the NHS is free at the point of delivery to recognising that
it is paid for by the population through taxation. Over time this may lead to users
thinking both as patients, but also as citizens i.e. developing a better understanding of
the difficult balance between individual and population needs. There may be a growing
awareness of shared responsibility for the cost-effective use of limited resources and a
move towards the ‘fully engaged scenario’ (Wanless 2002). We have identified two
immediate challenges:

70
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 80

I. We need to define the responsibilities of our providers to deliver high quality
services; and define the responsibilities of the users of the services to use them
appropriately.

II. The need to assess the impact of these changes on equity and reducing inequalities.
Will we continue to be able to justify different services for different communities?
What will be the effect of any change in co-funding rules for more affluent
populations?

3) The impact of National Global Economics. We have experienced significant
migration into Crewe and this has had unpredictable affect on services, for example
the migrant community are used to a service that is delivered from a secondary care
base resulting in low use of primary care services. The level of migration now appears
to be falling as some individuals and families are returning to their homelands.

As a result of changing economic circumstances in Britain and across the globe, we
need to work with partners to model future migration patterns as these are not as yet
fully factored into our demographic projections. We are working with partners to
understand these trends, and in particular we will commission research to look at the
effect of greater job mobility on health in our more affluent communities. In addition to
studying this we must also factor into our plans the general effect of the financial
position on our communities (One of our largest employers ‘Bentley Motors’ have
recently — 05/09/08 -announced the introduction of a 3 day week).

4) The development of new health technologies. In particular we need to understand
the impact over the next 5 years on the development of Gene Therapy, robotics,
minimally invasive surgery, enhanced monitoring (telemedicine), ref. Sc2, Sept 2008.

5) The implications of different approaches to commissioning. We need to better
project the impact on activity and care pathways of our improved approach to
commissioning. In particular we need to model the likely impact of the ‘Advancing
quality’ initiative as it is rolled out across the Northwest.

6) The implications of an increase use of the Private sector and in ‘private sector’
behaviours. The increase in Private sector provision as an NHS partner has been
factored into our Strategic Plan; however we need to do further work to understand the
implications of the policy and behaviours on traditional Health Service providers. In
particular we need to recognise that our GP practices feel ‘threatened’ by some recent
developments and therefore their traditional position in the NHS family may change.
We also need to understand how NHS Foundation Trusts will develop as they focus on
their future business viability as well as on Healthcare provision. We are keen to work
with partners across the North West to develop new approaches to promote the social
responsibilities of NHS organisations recognising that the State and the Private sectors
can only function effectively with a strong and innovative social sector.

7) The impact of developing Healthcare systems worldwide. We will ensure that we
keep abreast of healthcare system development across the world. All health systems
are looking for answers to the problems caused by rising demand and rising costs —
we need to ensure that we learn from good practice and innovation elsewhere as we
have done with the ‘Advancing Quality’ initiative.

7
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 81

6. Delivery - Implementing Our Strategic Plan
6.1. Organisational Development to Support Delivery

We recognise the importance of developing an organisation that can function effectively. To
this end our Organisational Development Plan is designed to ensure that we will focus equally
on:

— planning — what we intend to do and why

— competencies — our ability to deliver

— performance — what we actually deliver, and
— culture - how we do things

In doing this we deliver the business and create an environment and relationships that make
people want to work for us and with us. We regard ourselves as a commissioning
organisation in which everyone has a contribution to make directly or indirectly.

We recognise from the WCC panel report and our own reflections, that we need to
concentrate our efforts and build on our developments so far to become “world class”. The
WCC assurance process has given us an external view of our current abilities and highlighted
areas for further development. This balanced with our internal and stakeholders’ perceptions
is a powerful insight.

We will actively respond to the challenges in the next 12 months in order to be able to
demonstrate at the next panel visit in 2010 that we have made significant progress on the
development continuum and we will address the non green areas within the governance
elements.

We recognise that our staff are highly committed and go the ‘extra mile’. This is also true of
clinicians and local people who get involved with the work of the PCT. We place a high value
on this and know that we could not be effective without it.

Organisational Development for the commissioning part of the organisation is significantly
different from that envisaged at the end of 2006. The WCC competencies have refocused the
way the PCT needs to work and how it develops and deploys the capability and capacity it has
in order to deliver the business of commissioning. In this context we have looked at a number
of areas to determine what we need to do to increase our ability to deliver the Strategic Plan.

Examples of these are:

e The development work undertaken by the Board, PEC, Leadership Team and Directorates
since the beginning of the PCT, using external OD consultants and internal resources.
This along with, for example, staff surveys and HR data, has been used to inform our
organisational needs for culture, people, processes, systems and structure. This has been
valuable as the building blocks for this process.

e The views of staff as part of our commitment to staff influence.

e The Board self certification

e Competency sessions undertaken both with staff, Executive and Non Executive Directors.

72
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 82

e The report from the WCC panel has provided us with an external and different view of our
current abilities and highlighted areas for further development, in particular the 5
competencies that were scored at level 1 by the panel. This, along with stakeholder
feedback and our own further reflections has provided a further and powerful insight.

The Organisational Development Plan identifies clear action that needs to be taken (most
already underway) to ensure we are able to deliver this Strategic Plan, the action is focused
on the following areas:

Structure

Outcome: To have in place a structure that is aligned to the delivery of the aspirations of
WCC and achievement of the separation of the provider unit.

The structure is underpinned by a culture which promotes a ‘flat’ way of working with ‘freedom
to act’ balanced with accountability.

Actions for Structure:

e The PCT Board will undergo a development process in line with the emerging national
programme — this will also consider how the organisation is structured including
committees of the Board to ensure effective delivery.

e The Directors will continue with the review of the management structure, taking into
account the World Class Commissioning Competencies, Local Government Review,
provider separation and PBC for the best use of our capability and capacity. This will build
on the review of Directors portfolios in early 2009. The current portfolio of Directors has
been revised to reflect WCC competencies including Partnership work, Performance
Management, Finance and Public Health. The skill shortage of health economist will be
addressed in 2009 as capacity becomes available. The Directors have already begun to
recruit to key roles based on weaknesses identified in the SWOT analysis done in 2008.

o Staff who are going to work fully with CECH transferred from April 2009 and others who
will continue to work across the two will have SLA’s

e For PBC, a workshop was held in December 2008 as the start of a process to identify what
was required in terms of resources to support the development of the 3 PBC clusters. An
action plan is being implemented to take forward the recommendations from the workshop
to refocus commissioning to become PBC facing

e Putinto place programme/project and matrix working arrangements - an internal
development process has been devised to support staff to understand what matrix working
means and how it can add value to achieving projects.

¢ Build into performance management reporting — not just to report on what but also to
include reference to how, e.g. did we set up a cross functional team as part of the initial
project management plan for commissioning xyz?

Systems

Outcome: To have in place robust systems that enable the organisation to make decisions,
plan, execute and manage at world class level.

73
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 83

We are and will further develop the Management systems in place to support the delivery of
this operational plan

Actions for Systems:

e Take forward the recommendations from the external review of Communications and
Engagement

e Take forward the recommendations of the internal review of our performance management
system and information to manage - this emerged as a key issue in an externally
facilitated development process for the Leadership team. We will also be increasing our
capacity in the area of performance monitoring and management to reflect the needs of
the organisation’s responsibilities.

Staff

Outcome: To ensure we are best placed to recruit, develop and retain staff to deliver the
Strategic Plan

Actions for Staff:

o We will review the current recruitment and selection process across the PCT and assess
the process fit into the competency toolkit according to level and occupation. The
development of a proactive PCT wide Recruitment and Retention Strategy will provide
managers with a clear guideline to attract and retain high quality talent against external
competitors within current financial constraints. Further work is ongoing on competencies
where we will review all post profiles under the Key Skills framework linking into the World
Class Commissioning Competencies.

e Effective succession planning will ensure that we have a pool of internal talent that can be
deployed to meet our future business needs. Use of the NHS North West Academy toolkit
is being considered and we will be actively encouraging the usage of the SHA mentoring
Scheme for our employees.

¢ We will develop an action plan linked to the Talent Management strategy by exploring the
best fit tools to provide clear criteria of how to identify and develop our future leaders.

o We will optimize employee engagement and address key areas such as retention,
wellbeing and recognition by building on existing staff communication tools such as the
recently established staff forum for commissioning staff, to enable us to measure
employee engagement and identify key drivers and execute action plans to address those
areas requiring close attention. The 2008 Staff Survey results are currently being
analysed and have been broken down into a provider / commissioning split allowing for
greater analysis of the results. An Action Plan is being developed to ensure continued
progress.

e We will develop a formal staff engagement strategy to address frequency of
communications and feedback, staff involvement and improve our utilisation of staff survey
data providing feedback for a two way engagement process, incorporating key
employment issues raised via communication forums and staff surveys into working
objectives at organisation, divisional and individual levels.

e We will continue to monitor contract and procurement processes to ensure the inclusion
of workforce criteria from our providers.

74
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 84

Skills

Outcome: To have a workforce that collectively has a comprehensive breadth and depth of
skills across the WCC competencies

Actions for Skills:
o We will review options for programmes to support the development of clinical leadership
e We will look to the NHS NW Leadership Academy programmes to support the
development of existing and aspiring leaders in the organisation
¢ We will explore the possibility of using a team learning needs assessment tool linked into
the WCC competencies and if this is not suitable, develop an internal assessment model.
e We will develop our managers’ and leaders’ coaching skills so that staff development
forms an integral part of their managerial style
¢ We will develop a programme of learning events to increase skills to support WCC
competencies. In particular we will focus on:
— Health needs assessment
— Understanding PBC
— Procurement
— Market development and management
— Contract negotiation and management
— Project management
— Political awareness
— Financial management
— Change management
— Communicating and engaging with stakeholders
The design of these will be short sessions using key internal experts where appropriate
e Look to developing key competencies for all job roles taking into account KSF outlines
e Develop a strategy to assist Bands 1- 4 to utilise current learning opportunities in particular
NVQs
e Produce and implement a Skills For Life strategy so that English and Maths assessment
is embedded at recruitment

Governance to Oversee Organisational Development (OD):

Governance arrangements for OD were established early in the life of the PCT. This continues
to be through the Directors and the Governance & Audit Committee (a sub committee of the
Board). The lead is the Associate Director for Organisational Development and the Director for
Governance and Strategy is the accountable Executive.

6.2. Resourcing our Strategic Plan

The financial template starts with the actual position for 2007/08, as per our published audited
accounts, and covers the next 5 year period (i.e. from the current year 2008/09 through to
2012/13). The template is underpinned by a number of assumptions, most notably on income,
expenditure and activity changes. Where guidance has been provided, by either the Strategic
Health Authority or the North West Specialist Commissioning Team, these assumptions have
been reflected in their entirety within the plan.

In addition, the PCT Board had already adopted a 3 year Financial Plan (covering the period
2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11) during the last financial year. Accordingly, where possible,
this new 5 year strategy is simply predicated on this earlier model.

75
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 85

Finally, the impact of the recently announced transfer of Learning Disability, Social Care
funding to Councils has not been reflected within this plan.

Delivering a surplus
We have always aspired to balance its income and expenditure, seeing a large surplus as a
significant failing as a large deficit.

Accordingly, in previous years, the surplus has ranged from £286,000 in 2005/06 on a
turnover of £506m, to £1,007,000 in 2008/09 on a turnover of £620m.

Therefore, within the plan, and in line with the Strategic Health Authority guidance, it is
envisaged that an annual surplus of £1,007,000 is achieved in each successive financial year,
on a turnover ranging from £621m in 2008/09, to £747m in 2012/13, although this requires
significant Cost Improvement and Demand Management Savings to be delivered.

Financial Context

Whilst the PCT are really pleased with the progress recently made to improve the health of the
people of Central & Eastern Cheshire, together with improvements to the healthcare systems,
there are some significant financial challenges that we face for the coming financial year.

This is because we have significantly over performed during the current year (2008/09) on
both the levels of acute hospital activity purchased (circa £12m), and also on the amount of
NHS Continuing Care provided (circa £5m).

However, during 2008/09 we have been able to deliver a number of one off, non recurrent,
savings through either the sale (re-use) of assets or by delaying planned expenditure.

This level of over performance is anticipated to continue with little, or no, room left for any
further non recurrent savings. Therefore, 2009/10 will be challenging. In addition, the
emerging public sector funding position is unlikely to resolve these pressures.

What is therefore required is not another “quick fix”, but a sustained focus upon our finances,
with all staff, and contractors, questioning every pound we spend, or commit to spend.

Financial Recovery

With regard to the “Unidentified Demand Management Savings” for 2009/10 work remains
ongoing within the PCT focusing on Recovery, to both target the additional £13,120k savings
required, and also to effectively manage the Cost Improvement Programs (£5,309k) and the
High Risk Demand Management Savings (£8,000k).

In addition, there is a degree of clarification required, and ongoing work, with regard to the
PCT’s two main Contracts, namely Mid Cheshire Hospitals Foundation Trust and East
Cheshire Trust, which may ameliorate the headline recovery required. The PCT is currently
using the following five point plan to aid the focus of attention, namely:

e establishing a Task Group focusing on Demand Management issues (including
analysis of activity and coding trends);

e producing a comprehensive list of areas which are discretionary, in order that
expenditure can be reviewed against the PCT’s Priority Setting Framework (before

76
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 86

June 2009). (NB. These areas may have a significant impact on existing service
delivery);

¢ analysing where the PCT’s expenditure is greater than expected compared to either
Budget, Allocation or expected (using benchmarking data). This to include core and
recent developments and to include options for addressing any imbalance;

e an extensive Communications Strategy both internally and externally, to ensure the
financial situation is thoroughly understood;

¢ arobust management of the Recovery Planning process, possibly including the short
term appointment of a Recovery Director, should this be required

The PCT investment plan

Secondary & Tertiary Care (i.e. Payment by Results) — links to Goal 9
The largest investment in financial terms is the additional monies being invested into secondary
care (i.e. hospital) services, equating to an additional £12m in 2009/10 (pre recovery).

The main components of this increase (in 2009/10) being an assumed 2.2% inflationary uplift,
plus the impact of the migration to Healthcare Resource Group 4.0.

Specialist Commissioning — links to Goal 9

In terms of percentage increases in expenditure, the Specialist Services receive the largest uplift
totalling circa 10%, for 2009/10 and 2010/11. This investment being a reflection of both the growth
in treatment able to be provided (i.e. earlier intervention) and also a remedy of historic under
investment, principally due to geography (i.e. local services).

Urgent Care Centres — links to Goal 5
As part of our strategy to tackle urgent and unplanned care, both capital and revenue investments
(circa £1m 2009/10 and £1m 2010/11) are being targeted to tackle this particular issue.

Whilst a small reduction in hospital activity is envisaged, the major driver remains the focus on
improving both quality and access.

Primary Care Premises Developments — links to Goal 3

The only major change to our previously adopted 3 year Financial Plan is the movement from
2009/10 and 2010/11 to 2011/12 and 2012/13 of a number of Primary Care developments (i.e. to
“push out”).

This is, in part, due to a reflection on current progress and a realistic rebasing of when these new
premises are likely to actually open (circa £1m and £1.5m).

New Services — Improving Access to Psychological Therapies — links to Goal 2
Following a successful bid to the Department of Health, it is envisaged that the PCT will receive,
and invest, a total of £1.5m per annum between 2009/10 and 2011/12.

However, there is currently a degree of uncertainty surrounding the 2012/13 financial year (i.e.
“pick up”) as to whether this scheme will be continued to be centrally supported.

77
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 87

Continuing Care — links to Goal 2

An additional £1m per annum, over and above inflation, has been factored into the Financial Plan
to meet the assessed needs of our more dependent population. For 2008/09 this expenditure
totals circa £15m, and this investment reflects a significant increase.

WCC Outcomes

The investments required to achieve our WCC outcomes have been factored into our 5 year
financial plans. A proportion of this investment will be shown separately in the Financial Plan.
However some of the resources will be included under more generic headings (e.g. secondary
care activity, or Primary Care developments).

78
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives



Page 88

Underlying Assumptions And Risk
PCT Allocation Uplift (Income)

2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012/13

PCT 5.5% 5.5% 4.0% 4.0%
Uplift

As previously noted, these percentage uplifts have been received from the Strategic
Health Authority and are considered to be prudent, although should the economic
climate result in lower growth it is anticipated that pay awards and inflation will also be
reduced correspondingly.

We remain optimistic that the imminent revision to the current PCT “needs based”
funding formula may lead to increases in excess of this amount.

Inflationary Uplifts (Expenditure)

GP Contract 1.7% 2.8% 1.0% 1.0%
Dental Contract 1.7% 2.8% 1.0% 1.0%
PbR 2.2% 2.8% 1.0% 1.0%
Non PbR Tariff 2.2% 2.8% 1.0% 1.0%
Prescribing 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

These percentage uplifts have been received from the Strategic Health Authority and are
considered to be robust, although similarly to the allocations, should the economic
climate result in lower growth it is anticipated that inflation will also be reduced
correspondingly.

However, these uplifts are after an assumed 3% annual cost improvement programme
across the board on all expenditure headings (i.e. PbR Tariff pressures are
acknowledged to be 5.2%, but we will only fund 2.2% with a further 3.0% assumed to be
found internally by Providers from efficiency savings).

This assumption of 3% year-on-year savings look increasingly “harsh”, especially in the
later years of 2011/12 and 2012/13 when inflationary pressures are estimated to be circa
4%, yet only 1% will be actually funded (i.e. 3% to be found internally).

In addition, given the recent rises in inflation, these assumptions may need to be
revisited which, without increases in the PCT uplift, would result in pressures within the
Plan.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 79
Better, Longer Lives



Page 89

Activity Growth

Within the secondary care activity, a significant amount of modelling work has been
undertaken, led by the Cheshire & Merseyside Contract & Information Shared Services
Unit (CISSU).

This modelling work has focussed on individual hospital activity at a healthcare related
group (HRG) level starting with 2003/04 and running through to 2007/08.

This activity has been then used as a basis on which to estimate future growth, and also
applied to the non PbR activity.

Accordingly, it has been assessed, as a prudent estimate, to use a 2% year-on-year
growth in activity for both 2009/10 and 2010/11, when using previous trends. However, it
is considered that these increases will plateau in 2011/12 and 2012/13 with a reduced
increase of only 1% for these two years respectively.

Further work is now being undertaken to examine the actual impact of our demographics
(i.e. reduced children and increased elderly) but modelling this through the actual PbR
costing system.

6.3. Governance and Performance Management of the Strategic Plan

We will ensure that strategic objectives are achieved and targets delivered through our
existing robust performance management systems.

The current infrastructure and reporting arrangement for governance will support the
governance of the implementation of our strategic plan.

The Strategy has been developed into detailed project plans. The detailed project plans
will be monitored by the Performance Committee (on behalf of the Board) and the
Leadership Team (executive and senior managers), to give full assurance to the Board
that strategic objectives will be achieved.

The Governance and Audit Committee will, as part of their reviews of services,
incorporate the governance arrangements for each project into their annual timetable.

This approach ensures both governance and performance are monitored by both
executive and non-executive directors in detail, outside of a formal Board meeting. The
detailed monitoring will give the Board full assurance that implementation of the Strategy
is taking place or that risks are being mitigated.

The monthly formal Board meetings will receive and consider reports setting out the
progress made in delivering the plan, these reports will focus on the achievement of the
agreed outcomes and impact of the strategic plan on the health of the communities we
serve and the health services we commission.

6.4. Delivering Our Strategic Plan to Drive ‘Healthier Horizons’

‘Healthier Horizons’ is the North West strategy for transforming health and
healthcare, the strategy sets out 10 “Touchstones” through which individuals will be
able to ‘judge’ improvements in health and healthcare, see below.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 80
Better, Longer Lives



Page 90

I will receive more
of my care closer
o my home

| will be given
higher quality
clinical care

I will be living a
healthier lifestyle

1 will get o
mare integrated @
seamless care, when | '
need help from mare than 0
one organisation o
> ¢

1 will

| will receive more
personalised care

patient experiance

My family will have
a better opportunity
to live a longer and

have better Customer
care and an improved

| will be more
involved in decisions
made by the NHS

My NHS
will maintain a healthy
financial position and
perform the best
in class

healthier life

| will receive the
maost informed
technologies as part
of my care

Our Strategic Plan has been designed to deliver these ‘touchstones’ and thereby
contribute to the overall transformation across the North West. Each of the
Touchstone tests will be adopted by us as an integral part of our Strategic Plan
success criteria.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives



Page 91

7. Declaration of Board Approval

Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT’s Trust Board have been fully involved and
engaged throughout the development of the Strategic Plan. The Board has regularly
reviewed the progress of the plan and spent focussed and dedicated time on it's
development. We have also revisited Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT s vision,
goals and outcomes, set out our commissioning intentions and agreed a five year
financial plan.

The Board therefore fully endorses and accepts its responsibility to ensure that the
improvements in health outcomes it describes are delivered. It will do this by
identifying and mitigating the risks, overseeing a system of effective governance and
developing a world class performance and learning culture within the organisation to
benefit the people of Central and Eastern Cheshire.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 82
Better, Longer Lives



Page 92

Attachment 1 — WCC Outcome Measures

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14
Better, Longer Lives

83



We will increase breastfeeding initiation rates and make breastfeeding the norm in infant feeding in Central and Eastern Cheshire.

Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark
An additional 106 PCT ECT MCHT | | MCHFT have been successful in gaining DH Inequalities | The highest rate
initiations year on year funding for 09/10 — 2011/12 (3 years) to achieve Baby | within the
for MCHFT, 79 year on 2007/08 Friendly status. An increase has therefore been set of 3% | CECPCT’s ONS
year for ECT and 26 Annual | 61% 67% 54% per year. group - prosperous
year on year for our 2008/09 | 65% 71% 59% small towns (c) - is
other providers. Q1 ECT has not received additional funding and therefore the | currently at 79%.

Q2 63% 65% 59% national target of 2% has been set.

Q3 64.6% | 67.9% | 60.3%

Q4 66.2% | 73.7% | 59.5% | | Other Providers — A small number of mothers receive

2008/09 | 64.7% | 69.7% | 59.2% maternity services from providers, other than MCHFT and

Annual ECT. An increase of 2% per year at these providers will

give a year end initiation rate for the PCT of 77%

This gives a PCT increase of 13% over the 5 year
project.

We will transform the quality of dementia care.

Outcome Measures

Baseline

Trajectory

Benchmark

By 2014 60% of
expected dementia
sufferers will be
captured on a practice
based register, with an
active care plan.

Currently we have 2,200 people
registered with our practices. It is
expected that there are in the region
of 3,900 people undiagnosed. This is
37% of the expected number
registered with a GP practice.

End of year 1: Increase of people on dementia registers
by 5%

Clear plan, based on local population and services of how
to redesign, recommission and invest in memory services
in order to provide world class commissioning memory
services and dementia registers.

End of year 2: Increase in dementia registers by a further
5%

Working with MH trust to incorporate new pathways, and
develop the planning done in year one. Looking at
redesigning and or recommissioning current services

End of year 3: Increase in dementia registers by a further
10%

CECPCT is the
only PCT that has
chosen Dementia
as one of its WCC
objectives.
However it is
possible to
benchmark against
other PCT areas.

The average % for
those people
diagnosed with

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

83

£6 obed



Look at further investment to enhance and develop further | dementia and on a

memory services register against the

End of year 4: Increase in dementia registers by a further | expected

10% prevalence is 35%.

Implementation and contract monitoring CECPCT is slightly
above that at 37%.

Looking beyond
the Northwest
Dartford will be
used as a
benchmark as they
have 52% people

diagnosed with
dementia and on a
register.

We will reduce the CHD mortality rate for all ages.

Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark

6 ebed

We will achieve equity | Within Central and Eastern Cheshire Year CHD Rate/100,000 WCC stretched pan | | Compare

by reducing the CHD around 37% of deaths are rate <75 | | ourselves with
mortality rate. This will | specifically related to CHD. years/100,000 European rates,
increase male and 2002 122.28 local Cardiac
female life expectancy. | Current 2007 directly standardized 2003 110.81 Network PCT
death rate for CHD person all ages is 2004 109.92 rates, like PCT'’s
83.94 per 100,000 (683 deaths) 2005 104.56 and national rates
CECPCT currently ranked 56" out of | | —2000 95.72
152 PCTs (1 being the lowest rate 2007 83.94
nationally). 2008 78.58
2009 73.56
2010 68.86
2011 64.46
2012 60.35
2013 56.50
Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14 84

Better, Longer Lives




We will reduce the <75 cancer mortality rate.

Outcome Measures

Baseline

Trajectory (incl. baseline)

Benchmark

To increase by 20%
the proportion of
people who are
diagnosed at an earlier
stage of cancer. This
will positively influence
CECPCT <75 years
cancer mortality rate.

Current 2007 directly standardised
death rate for cancer in persons
aged under 75 is 112.55 per 100,000
(597 deaths).

CECPCT currently ranked 65" out of
152 PCTs nationally (1 being the
lowest rate).

Year Cancer VBSO03 plan WCC
mortality rate stretched
<75 yrsy rate <75 yrs plan rate
/100,000 /100,000 <75 yrs

/100,000
2002 119.47
2003 109.78
2004 112.11
2005 113.75
2006 106.2
2007 112.55 112.55
2008 106.56
2009 101.23 100.89
2010 99.06 95.52
2011 96.93 90.43
2012 91.53 85.62
2013 87.53 81.07

Vital sighs metrics
indicate delivery
against most new
and existing
targets over the
next 5 years

Cancer Intelligence
system (cancer

registry)

Registrars office
death data

Cheshire &
Merseyside Cancer
Network Cancer
Screening Group

We will increase the percentage of stroke admissions given a physiotherapy assessment within 72 hours.

Outcome Measures

Baseline

Trajectory

Benchmark

April 2009 - all
implementation  plans
for stroke approved by
the Boards.

Patient Surveys
Achievement of targets

Taken from 2007 Sentinel audit:
East Cheshire Trust - 59%
compliance with target. Mid Cheshire
Hospitals Foundation Trust - 98%
compliance to target. More accurate
data shows 80% compliance. Both
hospitals achieve this on the
stroke units only and figures
taken in first quarter of 2008/09

Physiotherapy assessment within 72 hours for all patients

suspected of having a stroke

e September 2009 - 90% all patients suspected of
having a stroke will be assessed within 1 hour of
contact with the NHS in a hospital setting.

e September 2009-2010 - 90% of patients admitted with
Stroke will have physiotherapy assessment within 72
hours

e September 2010-2011 - 95% % of patients admitted

Compare
ourselves with
European rates,
local Stoke
Network PCT
rates, like PCT’s
and national rates.

National Sentinel

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

85

G6 abed



show only 25% compliance in
both hospitals when all stroke
admissions are taken into account.
Some of the issues may be due to
current data collection problems at
the hospitals.

with Stroke will have physiotherapy assessment within
72 hours

e September 2011-2012- 100% of patients admitted
with stroke will have Physiotherapy assessment within
72 hours

Audit for Stroke
(2008)

We will improve patient and user reported measure of respect and dignity in their treatment. All providers will be within the top 20% of
benchmarked against similar organizations in relation to all indicators in the National Patient Survey.

Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark
By 2014 all Providers’ 2007/2008 National Patient Survey End of year 1: All major provider’s performance, including | The National

performance, including
Independent
Contractors, will be
within the top 20%
benchmarked against
similar organisations in
relation to all indicators
in the National Patient
Survey.

results for CECPCT, MCHfT, ECT,
CWPST. (NB. No current
benchmarking data available for PCT
Community Services, however, a
National Patient Survey is planned
for 2009/10.)

independent contractors, will be within the top 80%
benchmarked against similar organizations in relation to
all relevant® indicators in the National Patient Survey. (l.e.
Providers’ scores will not feature in the lowest 20% for any
of the indicators.)

End of year 2: All providers’ performance, including
independent contractors, will be within the top 65%
benchmarked against similar organizations in relation to
all relevant indicators in the National Patient Survey.

End of year 3: All providers’ performance, including
independent contractors, will be within the top 50%
benchmarked against similar organizations in relation to
all relevant indicators in the National Patient Survey.

End of year 4: All providers’ performance, including
independent contractors, will be within the top 35%
benchmarked against similar organizations in relation to
all relevant indicators in the National Patient Survey.
*Relevant indicators are those questions that relate directly to services

that are directly within the power of the organization to influence. These
will be agreed with Providers.

Patient Survey
Programme, co-
ordinated by the
Healthcare
Commission,
gathers feedback
from patients on
different aspects of
their experience of
care they have
recently received,
across a variety of
services/settings®,
with a particular
focus on dignity

and respect.
*Services/settings
covered include:
Inpatients, Outpatients,
Emergency care,
Maternity care, Mental
health services, Primary
care services and
Ambulance services.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

86

96 abed



We will reduce the rate of alcohol-related hospital admissions by 4,000 over 5 years.

Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark
Achievement of 1% | In 2006/07 the rate of hospital | 1% reduction in percentage changes year on year from | Compare
reduction target | admissions for alcohol related harm | baseline (2006/07) ourselves

described above in the PCT area was 1604.87 per | [ Year Trajectory Target of | Admissions | | regionally and
Increase in the number | 100,000. In 2007/08 this rate rate/100,000 | +1% to prevent nationally using
of hazardous/harmful | increased to 1820.01 per 100,000. decrease per Local Alcohol
drinkers being given year Profiles and data
brief interventions to Rate/100,000 from the National
reduce their drinking 2008/09 2063.82 2009.55 244 Drug Treatment
Improve access for 2009/10 2340.3 2218.46 548 Monitoring System.
people  with alcohol 2010/11__| 2653.81 2426.92 1021
related _proplems to 201112 | 3009.33 2630.69 1704
appropriate services 2012/2013 | 3412.47 2825.26 2643

2013/2014 | 3869.61 3005.97 3887
We will transform Urgent Care services
Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark
A reduction in the rate | 14.48 ACS admissions / 1000 Year Trajectory  rate/1000 [ Approx NHS Comparators
of Emergency population. population Admissions data repository.
Admissions due to to prevent Benchmark
Ambulatory Conditions 2008/09 14.48 0 information from
from 14.48 /1000 2009/10 13.80 200 the GP Out of
population (above 2010/11 13.00 400 Hours national
national average) to 2011/12 12.20 200 benchmark.
below 11.50 /1000 5012/13 11.40 300 Focus groups

population placing the
PCT in the top quartile
against national
performance.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

87

/6 8bed



Health Inequalities

Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark
Reduce premature Reduce premature cancer mortality An increase of almost 9 months in male life expectancy to
mortality from by 24% (137 deaths per year) within | 78.8 years and an increase of almost 11 months in female
conditions amenable to | the areas of low life expectancy. life expectancy to 82.7 years.
prevention or treatment
— ‘preventable deaths’.
Reduce premature CHD mortality by | An increase of over 14 months in male life expectancy to
38% (282 deaths per year) within the | 79.3 years and an increase of over 11 months in female
areas of low life expectancy. life expectancy to 82.7 years.
Life Expectancy
Outcome Measures Baseline Trajectory Benchmark

Increase life
expectancy in the 18
spearhead MSOA
areas, which have the
lowest life expectancy.

2005-07 the Life Expectancy in the
lowest life expectancy quintile was
76.2 years for males and 79.8 years
for females.

An increase in life expectancy in this quintile to 79.5 years
for males and 84.5 years for females, equivalent to life
expectancy in the highest life expectancy quintile.

Central & Eastern Cheshire — Strategic Plan 2009-14

Better, Longer Lives

88

86 abed



Page 99 Agenda ltem 7

Central and Eastern Cheshire m

Primary Care Trust

HEALTHCARE
SUSTAINABILITY
PLAN

2009/10

Previously known as the “Financial Recovery Plan”

As presented to the Trust Board
on
Tuesday 30 June 2009

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 1 of 51



1.0
2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0
11.0
12.0

Page 100

Overview

Executive Summary
Financial Analysis

Commissioning — Acute Services
Contract Management }

Joint Commissioning (inc NHS Continuing Care)
Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing)
Bespoke Care

Corporate Services — PCT Infrastructure
Escalation Plan

Communications Action Plan

Information to Manage

Performance Management of the Plan

Accountability
Arrangements

Project Board

Project Board
Project Board
Lead Director
Lead Director
Lead Director
Lead Director
Lead Director

Associate Director

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc

Page 2 of 51

Page No.

15
20

24
27
32
34
37
46
48
50

VERSION 6



Page 101

Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT

Healthcare Sustainability Plan 2009/10

Overview

Whilst the PCT is really pleased with the progress recently made to improve the health of the
people of Central & Eastern Cheshire, together with improvements to the healthcare
systems, there are some significant financial challenges that we face for the coming financial
year (2009/10).

This is because we have significantly overperformed during the previous financial year
(2008/09) on both the levels of acute hospital activity purchased (circa £13m additional), and
also on the amount of NHS Continuing Care provided (circa £5m additional).

However, during 2008/09 we were able to deliver a number of one off, non recurrent,
savings through either the sale (re-use) of assets or by delaying planned expenditure.

As you will appreciate, this level of overperformance is forecast to continue with little, or no,
room left for any further non recurrent savings during 2009/10.

Therefore, this year (2009/10) is looking really difficult, and will involve us all questioning
every pound we spend.

In addition, the emerging public sector funding position is also not likely to resolve these
pressures.

What is therefore required, is not another “quick fix”, but a sustained focus upon our
finances, with all staff, and contractors, questioning every pound we spend, or commit to
spend.

Accordingly, it is suggested that in order to get back into financial balance, and to avoid the
inevitable “knee jerk” cuts in our expenditure, we all focus on improving quality whilst
reducing our costs, and looking to deliver innovative solutions in all areas of healthcare.

| therefore look forward to your support in delivering this ambitious, yet achievable,
Healthcare Sustainability Plan.

Mike Pyrah
Chief Executive

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 3 of 51



Page 102

1.0 Executive Summary

1.1 Introduction

Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust is proud of its achievements in improving
health and healthcare, we also appreciate the significant developments that our three local NHS
Trusts have made in improving the quality of services. Our aim is to utilise the resources
allocated to us (approximately £633m) to ensure that the health services provided for the
population served by the PCT are the best in the country. This ambition is achievable; however
we do recognise that financial stability is the key to the sustainable delivery and development of
services.

In 2007/08 the PCT and our Trusts achieved financial stability, allowing Mid Cheshire Hospital
Trust to secure Foundation Trust status and East Cheshire Trust to achieve a trading surplus.
However, during 2008/09 some costs have risen dramatically, in particular the cost of Acute
Hospital Care rose by £13m and the cost of NHS Continuing Care rose by £6m. The PCT
managed to offset these cost increases by achieving reductions elsewhere, and by securing
some non-recurrent income. We now, however, face a significant challenge to stabilize the
position for 2009/10.

In setting the budgets for 2009/10 the PCT has identified a potential shortfall in the region of
£20m. In order to achieve this, the PCT Board has agreed a detailed plan, this plan is
traditionally known in the NHS as a Financial Recovery Plan. However given that the action we
need to take will effect all elements of the Healthcare system, and that it is crucial to the longer-
term sustainability of our local NHS we are calling our plan the Central and Eastern Cheshire
Healthcare Sustainability Plan.

Whilst the plan is focused on the challenge for 2009/10 it is also important that we plan for the
impact of any possible recession on NHS funding.

The detailed plan will be presented to the Trust Board on 30 June 2009, (this has already been
accepted in principle by Board Members in May 2009), and will therefore be in “the public
domain” in mid-June when the Board papers are formally published.

This summary, therefore, sets out the component parts of the Healthcare Sustainability Plan,

and highlights the action being taken to achieve a sustainable future. We hope these plans will
be endorsed by all of our partner organisations.

1.2  Setting the PCT Budget for 2009/10

Our estimate is that if we did not take any action the PCT budget (£663m) would overspend by
approximately £20m. In order to reduce expenditure, we have therefore produced a detailed
plan. The savings driven by this plan have been deducted from the appropriate budget lines,
however, it is important to note that a series of principles have been adopted in setting the
2009/10 budgets, namely:

1.2.1 the budget is set at a balanced position (delivering a small surplus as required by
the NHS) without the inclusion of an “unallocated Cost Improvement”. This is
important given the need for long-term sustainability;

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 4 of 51



1.2.2
1.2.3

1.24

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.2.8

Page 103

all Contracts with our key providers have been agreed, and signed off;

for all Contracts, activity has been agreed at the “outturn” (ie, end of last year
position). There is always a temptation to try and agree contracts which make
heroic assumptions of reducing activity, we have avoided this temptation;

we have, however, assumed that there will be no further growth in activity above
the 2008/09 level, this represents the key risk to the plan;

we have included the full (estimated) impact of the latest changes to the Payment
by Results system, using the new Healthcare Resource Group (HRG) version 4;

we have added inflation to all our contracts — NHS inflation is set at 1.7% and for
some NHS contracts there is a 0.5% Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
(CQUIN) allowance (an additional payment for the achievement of agreed quality
indicators);

we have limited the funding of new developments to an absolute minimum, only
including:

¢ the costs of the ElImhurst development;
¢ the national specified increases to Specialised Services; and
¢ the costs of the new Leighton Hospital Urgent Care Centre.

we have made a positive decision to reduce some budgets. A small number of
budget lines have not been funded at outturn plus inflation, but have been set a
real-term reduction target, these include:

¢ Prescribing — our plan is to significantly reduce expenditure below the
2008/09 level; and

¢ PCT infrastructure — we are planning to reduce our infra-structure costs by
£1m compared to 2008/09 levels of spend.

1.3 Key Proposed Cost Reductions

Each Budget Holder has produced a detailed action plan setting out the action that is being
taken to deliver a balanced budget and to ensure that activity is maintained at the 2008/09 level.
Set out below are some of the key plans:

1.3.1 Commissioning — Acute Services.

implement the Orthopaedic Referral Management System;

implement the integrated Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) service;
commission the Crewe Urgent Care Centre;

implement action plans to reduce admissions for a range of conditions which could
be managed in the community;

review the systems, and processes, for managing patients who use Accident &
Emergency (A&E) and urgent medical services in our hospitals;

support GPs to manage more care in Primary Care and ensure that only patients
who need hospital services are referred for them;

ensure that Hospital Consultants are prescribing according to agreed prescribing
protocols;

complete the implementation of the new Stroke pathway, enabling more care to be
provided in intermediate care and sooner in patients’ homes; and

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 5 of 51



Page 104

implement the Glaucoma monitoring and referral service in Primary Care.

1.3.2 Contract Management

commence a review of service redesign to look to reduce the level of first to follow
up outpatient referral rates;

implement maternity costing review;

implement Better Care/Better Value indicators where the PCT is not in the upper
indicator for benchmarked efficiency; and

implement more robust system for practices, and the PCT, to check that the correct
charges are being made for patient care.

1.3.3 Joint Commissioning of Non Acute Services (inc NHS Continuing Care)

review all out-of area Mental Health/Learning Disability placements to implement
better care/better efficiency proposals;

review/deliver solutions for the sustainability of several community schemes (eg, the
Falls Service);

review all aspects of NHS Continuing Care (ie, costs and process); and

serve notice on some existing Care in the Community Contracts and seek Preferred
Provider status for the allocation of new contracts.

1.3.4 Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing)

maximising the use, and income, of the new Medical/Health Centre developments;
setting of individual practice based prescribing challenges, our aim is to be amongst
the best performing PCTs as measured in the Better Care, Better Value indicators
(BCBV);

reduction of inappropriate referrals;

development of community based services to replace services currently provided in
a hospital setting;

introduction of new “efficiency based” practice incentive system; and

implement practice based minor surgery plan.

1.3.5 Bespoke Care — Services Not Covered by Standard NHS Contracts

implementation of a more effective process for the management of morbid obesity;
implementation of the new system for the reduction in treatments of limited clinical
value;

review appropriateness of high cost drug recharges; and

implementation of a prior approvals process for treatments that are not covered by a
standard contract.

1.3.6 Corporate Services — PCT infrastructure

implement vacancy control/vacancy freeze programme. This to also include the
suspension of the use of outside consultants; and

implement an agreed rigorous non-pay cost reduction programme.

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 6 of 51



Page 105

14 Escalation Plan

We are confident that this plan will ensure that the Central and Eastern Cheshire Health system
is able to continue to improve services within the allocated resources. However, it is also
important that we have a Contingency Plan should the measures set out above fail. The
success of the plan will be reviewed as soon as we have reliable financial data for the first
quarter (April to June 2009). This review will produce recommendations for the Board meeting
on 28 July 2009. Should we need to escalate the plan the following may be implemented, we
recognise that some of these changes will require a notice period and also many will require
formal consultation.

1.4.1 Primary Care

serve notice to withdraw local enhanced services;

review future of current PMS contracts;

review funding of current clinical engagement arrangements;
reduce overall Dental expenditure by 5%; and
terminate/suspend work on all planned premises developments;

1.4.2 Prescribing Medicine Management
e serve notice to withdraw Minor Ailments Scheme;
¢ introduce charging for Nicotine Replacement Therapy; and
¢ serve notice to withdraw other Pharmacy enhanced services.

1.4.3 Community Services
¢ suspend the procurement of “beds outside hospital”;

¢ suspend the new Community Hospitals developments in Congleton, Knutsford and
Northwich;

¢ reduce overall Cheshire East Community Health (CECH) expenditure by 5%;
¢ identify list of community services for Tendering; and
« review all current expenditure with the 3™ Sector.

1.4.4 Acute Services
¢ withdraw approval for all Consultant to Consultant referrals;

¢ introduce central Referral Management System including centralised Choose and
Book;

¢ reduce non-Payment by Results (PbR) expenditure by 5%;
¢ identify acute services to Tender; and
¢ implement decommissioning programme (detailed programme being prepared).

1.4.5 Infrastructure
e reduce PCT costs by a further 10%;
¢ reduce shared services cost by 10%;
¢ delay implementation of “Connecting for Health”; and
¢ reduce the cost of IT “Network” expenditure by 10%.

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 7 of 51



Page 106

1.5 Delivering the Plan

1.5.1 Communication
It is vital that this plan is accepted as a health community plan, and therefore the following
action will be undertaken:

¢ the development of regular and comprehensive briefing documents. It is proposed that
the plan is presented to each Partner organisation;

¢ the presentation of the plan to each GP practice and Practice Based Commissioning
Consortia;

¢ the delivery of a formal consultation exercise focused on the Plan and the Escalation
Plan involving members of the existing Health Economy Recovery Team (HERT); and

¢ the production of service specific “what does the plan mean for us” briefing packs.

1.5.2 Information to Manage
In order to be able to effectively manage the performance against this Plan, and the targets
set, it is critical to have both accurate and timely information. Accordingly, it is proposed to:

develop a daily/weekly/monthly corporate activity dashboard;

improve the monthly PCT/Provider Performance Management report;

develop a monthly urgent care and elective core performance report; and

develop accurate and timely activity and financial reporting to individual practices and
Practice based Commissioning clusters.

1.5.3 Performance Management of the Plan

The performance management of this Plan can be split into two distinct elements, namely
the governance of the overall process and also the responsibility for management of the
actual delivery of the Plan, within the agreed timescales and financial targets.

e Governance
The governance is provided by the monthly Trust Board, supported by the associated
financial reporting.

In addition, more detailed scrutiny will be provided via the monthly Performance
Committee, being a formal sub committee of the Trust Board, again supported by a
regular report.

e Management/Reporting
The Chief Executive will personally lead the delivery of this Plan on behalf of the Trust
Board.

He will be supported on a day to day basis by a small Project Office, led by the Associate
Director of Finance.

The management will be carried out via regular fortnightly Leadership Team

meetings, supplemented by three distinct monthly Program Boards. Namely:

¢ Secondary Care (inc Commissioning, Acute Services and Contract
Management);

¢ Joint Commissioning (inc NHS Continuing Care); and

¢ Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing).

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 8 of 51



2.0

2.1

2.2

Page 107

Each of these Program boards being chaired by either the Chief Executive, or an
Executive Director, and reporting directly into the Leadership Team.

In addition to these Program Boards, all other areas will also be led by a nominated
Director, who will be held accountable.

A number of these “Key” Projects, are also supported by a further detailed Project Plan,
outlining the milestones and targets, to further aid the management of the process.

Financial Analysis
- the need for a Healthcare Sustainability Plan

Introduction

The PCT’s Budget Book has now been finalised for 2009/10, following agreement of the
Contracts with Secondary Care Providers.

This Budgetary position has largely been built upon the previous iterations of the financial
position, and also now reflects the audited outturn position from 2008/09.

Process

e Purchase of Outturn

The first call on the PCT’s additional allocation of £32.6m (5.33%) has been to
effectively fund the overperformance, on both Secondary Care Contracts (circa £13m)
and NHS Continuing Care (circa £5m), in order to buy the outturn position.

e Assumption of No Growth in Activity for 2009/10
It should be noted, however, that no budgetary provision has been made to fund any
further anticipated growth in activity during 2009/10.

This represents a significant risk to the PCT, as Secondary Care activity has
traditionally grown by circa 2% per annum, which would account for a further £9m. In
addition, the forecast growth for NHS Continuing Care, if left unabated, is for an
additional circa £3m (ie 15%), of which, it is proposed, only £1m is funded within this
Plan.

e The Impact of HRG

The migration to Healthcare Resource Group (HRG) 4 tariffs, has also necessitated a
substantial investment in order to essentially buy the same level of activity (ie the
removal of the 50% abatement for emergency activity, and the transfer of the obligation
to fund patient transport services from Secondary Care to PCTs).

e Inflation on Outturn (2008/09)

The final piece of the jigsaw has been to fund an additional 2.2% (ie 1.7% inflation plus
0.5% CQUIN) on all Secondary Care budgets, and 1.7% on all other budgets, on the
2008/09 outturn position.

This principal of funding an uplift on 2008/09 outturn position, has been rigorously
enforced, with only a number of limited exceptions, both of positive and negative
impact, namely:

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 9 of 51



Page 108

o Elmhurst part year impact 2008/09;

o adifferential budget reduction for Medicines Management of £4m due to
Prescription Pricing Regulation Scheme (PPRS) national price reductions and the

NHS Better Care Better Value indicators;

o the investment of an additional £1m in NHS Continuing Care, in recognition of the

inherent pressures, over and above inflation;

o income from sale of Legal Charges in 2008/09 likely to be non recurrent;
o National Specialist Commissioning Advisory Group (NSCAG) substantial increase

for 2009/10 agreed nationally;

o additional costs likely to follow from the implementation of International Financial

Reporting Standards in 2009/10; and

o the already agreed plans to open the MCHFT Urgent Care Centre part way through

2009/10.

Therefore, for all other areas, the budget for 2009/10 has been based on the 2008/09

outturn position, plus a small amount of inflation, which has the impact of making non

recurrent savings delivered in 2008/09 recurrent.

Again, this is a considerable risk to the PCT in that a number of budgets have already

committed expenditure to their previous implied Recurrent level, and subsequently they will
now have a savings target to be delivered, possibly through the in year renegotiation of

Contracts.

¢ Areas of Pressure

In adopting such an approach, of only funding outturn plus inflation, it has effectively

resulted in creating a “savings target” on a number of budgets.

The main areas being:

RECOVERY PLAN (BUDGETS RESET OUTTURN +1.7%/2.2%) £000's | £000’s | NOTE
- DISTRIBUTION OF UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS USING AGREED METHODOLOGY

COMMISSIONED HEALTHCARE 14,879

CONTINUING CARE 1,678

LEARNING DISABILITIES POOL 700

PRESCRIBING 0 (1)
GENERAL MEDICAL SERVICES — Savings already offered -538 (2)
EARMARKED BUDGETS 679

CORPORATE FUNCTIONS — Savings targets already set -527 (3)

16,872

(1) Prescribing — As outlined previously, Medicines Management has already generated

a £4m saving, and therefore has not been allocated a share of the outstanding
£16m balance. A further £2m efficiency target is being targeted around Statins

which is reflected in budgets being allocated to practices;

(2) General Medical Services — Setting the budget based on the 2008/09 outturn
position, this results in a reduction in the anticipated budget of £1.7m, which

combined with this methodology, (ie, offset by savings previously offered up of

£538,000) results in a net budget reduction of £1.2m over, and above, the position

previously planned for; and

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc

Page 10 of 51

VERSION 6




23

24

25

Page 109

(3) Corporate Functions — The budget for corporate functions has been reduced by a
further 2%, over and above the outturn position (circa £0.5m). This entry simply
reflects savings of £527,000 previously accounted for in earlier versions of this plan.

Rationale

The rationale for this process has been based upon the PCT having an allocation of circa
£663m in 2009/10 and in only spending up to, but not beyond, this level (ie to cut the cloth
accordingly).

An alternative approach would have been to fund known areas of growth, and then simply
apportion a savings target (which was one possible option discussed). However, this
methodology appeared to lead to some exaggerated growth assumptions, which were
unjustifiable.

Recovery Plan
With the substantial inherent risks behind this financial strategy, it has been necessary to
outline the measures that need to be taken; namely

¢ to effectively control current costs;

¢ to stop any in year growth within the system; and

¢ to deliver the required level of identified “cost savings” to break even.

It is further proposed that this program is actively managed with each Section of this
Recovery Plan being led by an identified Director, who is also held to account.

In addition, the enclosed Recovery Program also contains an Escalation Plan, of measures
that can be introduced at relatively short notice, in order to quickly reduce expenditure to a
more manageable level should the situation worsen, or not be brought under control.

It is proposed that both the Budget Book and this Recovery Program is shared with

partners, in both Primary and Secondary Care, and that the formal Consultation Process is
commenced immediately in order that, should these measures be required, no time is lost.

Proposal

The Board is therefore asked to support the adoption of this Budget Book, together with
the Recovery Plan, and to note the risks underlying delivering this substantial program.

Simon Holden
Director of Finance

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 11 of 51



Page 110

Section 2.6

CENTRAL AND EASTERN CHESHIRE PRIMARY CARE TRUST
Finance Spreadsheet to Support Need for Recovery Plan

BUDGET HEADINGS £000's £000's
GROWTH FUNDING RECEIVED (5.33%) 32,656
AVAILABLE RESOURCE 32,656
UNDERLYING POSITION2008/9 - RECURRENT DEFICIT FUNDED NON
RECURRENTLY
COMMISSIONING -CONSOLIDATION OF FORECAST OUTTURN -13,000
CONTINUING CARE -6,000
PRESCRIBING 2,000
CORPORATE FUNCTIONS + IT 1,250
NHS FUNDED CARE 1,000
| DENTAL 750 | -14,000
INFLATIONARY UPLIFTS
TARIFF(NHS) RELATED -GROSS BUDGET NOW INCLUDES 1.7% UPLIF T/MFF/
HRG4/PTS -5,637
OTHER BUDGET UPLIFTS -2,667
QUALITY (ASSUMES 0.5% PAID TO ACUTE/MH/AMBULANCE TRUSTS ONLY) -1,658
PRESCRIBING-UPLIFT REDUCED TO 1.7% ON OUTTURN -1,382
| CECH -712 | 12,056
OTHER "INEVIATABLE" BUDGET INCREASES
SECONDARY CARE (HRG4) -3,752
LSPECIALIST COMMISSIONING GROWTH -7,841
CONTINUING CARE GROWTH -3,000
COST OF MADEL PICK UP -2,000
LNATIONAL SPECIALIST COMMISSIONING ADVISORY GROUP(NSCAG) TOPSLICE -1,800
LD POOL GROWTH -700
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) -660
EWTD " £50M INCLUDED IN BASELINES" -PER DAVID FLORY LETTER -400
CARERS ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT "INCLUDED IN BASELINES" -400
OTHER MISC BUDGETS -171
IMHA ADVOCACY LEGAL REQUIREMENT FUNDING "INCLUDED IN BASELINES" -45
0] -20.769
WORLD CLASS COMMISSIONING SCHEMES: -
URGENT CARE CENTRES -1,180
DIGNITY AND RESPECT } Not funded 0
INEQUALITIES (SOCIAL MARKETING) } Not funded 0
ALCOHOL (INCL £120K SOCIAL MARKETING) } Not funded 0
BREAST FEEDING - MATCHED FUNDING RE DOH ALLOCATION FOR THREE YEARS -100
CANCER TREATMENT(SOCIAL MARKETING) } Not funded 0
STROKE(PHYSIOTHERAPY) } Not funded 0
MENTAL HEALTH (DEMENTIA) } Not funded 0
CHD (TO BE MET FROM PRESCRIBING UNDERSPEND?) } Not funded 0 -1,280

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc

Page 12 of 51

VERSION 6




Page 111

OTHER POTENTIAL INVESTMENTS

ADDITIONAL COST OF SECONDARY CARE CONTRACT OFFERS -8,000

ACTIVITY GROWTH /PBC COMMISSIONING RESERVE 0
COMMUNITY SERVICES(CECH) -300

MFF ADDITIONAL 275

HEALTH TRAINERS OR OTHER PUBLIC HEALTH INITIATIVES -155
DECONTAMINATION (CECH) -73

SEXUAL ASSAULT REFERRAL CENTRE (Potential in year savings of £46,000 to be

confirmed) -60
INDEPENDENT SECTOR CAPACITY -60

NEW PREMISES — GROSVENOR (Application for Capital submitted which

may provide funding) =52

NEW PREMISES - SCHOLAR GREEN 0 -8,975
BEDS OUTSIDE HOSPITAL - NEEDS TO BE COST NEUTRAL 0
RECOVERY PLAN AGREED TARGET SAVINGS ALREADY DELIVERED 7,552 |
TOTAL FORECAST EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS -49,528
BALANCE OF 2009/20 GROWTH FUNDING DEFICIT BEFORE RECOVERY PLAN -16,872
RECOVERY PLAN (BUDGETS RESET OUTTURN +1.7%/2.2%)

-DISTRIBUTION OF UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS USING AGREED METHODOLOGY

COMMISSIONED HEALTHCARE 14,879
CONTINUING CARE 1,678
LEARNING DISABILITIES POOL 700
PRESCRIBING 0
GENERAL MEDICAL SERVICES -538
EARMARKED BUDGETS 679
CORPORATE FUNCTIONS -527

16,872

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc

Page 13 of 51

VERSION 6



Page 112

Section 2.7

Summary of 2009/10 Savings Targets by Section

Section £m

3.0 Commissioning Acute Services 5.0
4.0 Contract Management 5.0
5.0 Joint Commissioning (inc Continuing Care) 3.2
6.0 Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing) 3.3
7.0 Bespoke Care 2.5
8.0 Corporate Functions - Running Costs 1.0
- IFRS 0.6

Total Savings Target 20.6

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 14 of 51




Page 113

3.0 Commissioning — Acute Services
Responsible Director/Director — Clare Fisher/Jerry Hawker

Overall aim — to ensure that the overall cost of Acute services is at or below the budget
forecast for the year by delivering change to demand through service and pathway change.
Twenty three service areas have been identified for review in the attached schedules, with
priority action plans focused on the following reference numbers/areas:

3.1 Development of Primary Care based Minor Surgery.

3.3 Development of new Carpal Tunnel pathways.

3.5 Implementation of a new Orthopaedics referral management scheme.

3.6 Introduction of the Integrated respiratory team (COPD).

3.7 Development of the Urgent Care Centres.

3.8 Implementation of an Action Plan to prevent admissions for all ACS services.
3.9 Further development of AMD pathways.

3.10 Review of Emergency Care floor and implementation of five high Impact pathway
changes.

3.11  Project to improve the community management of very high intensity users of care.
3.12  Develop pathways to support better healthcare management of patients in care homes.
3.15 Implementation of new Stroke pathways.

3.16  Complete Paediatric emergency care review.

3.17  Implementation of cataract referral management programme.

3.18  Ophthalmology — review and implementation of a new Glaucoma care pathway.

3.19  Development of appropriate patient transport usage plan.

3.21  Review of first to follow up rates and implementation of new pathways.

3.22 Review of appropriateness/Pathway redesign of Endoscopies/Arthroscopies.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: £5,000,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 15 0f 51



Page 114

163091 o3eg

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3INI'T 9 UOISIOA 6007 KBl UBld AN[IqeUIEISnS (B) 6 0WG00T HNIL 0£\6000 V0L LOdOHED - SYANADV\AMYOL ISNAL LOIDHINK
10 peaye pejs 60/2002 Ajoedes o) pabeuew
0} 3INISG U331 urejuiely | 000°000°613 siapinold Iy 60 AW pajaduiod ueld uojoy/did } 1A Hr solpaedoylo G¢
60 Bny 15B3 2} Ul BIIAIFS
Awojoasep Joj ased ssauisng dojans(
saonoeId
“JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D [le 0} sBuines |enuajod uo eyep apiacid
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
51502 Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi uoneuwLojul
Hue] Juauns 1y 2y} Je pue ‘a0e|d juaned / Jaja1 0} MOY UO Ojul Ysayay
uo sbuines Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu
%G1-01 ay} an122l sjuaned S92IAJDS JO SN JUBLIND JIdY) $90INIDS
Jaquiy wnwiuIp Jey) ainsua o] 60 unp uo ojul pajielap ypm saonoeld apiaoid l oy HP Awo)oasep ve
paja|dwiod ued uonoy
dMv jo
“JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D abuel puedxa 0} 5191SN|D DGd UM HOAA
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
Sl SIU} Jey) pue awn stapinold aies Aewiid Bunsixa 0} 4o
Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld 60 Bny pasealoul moje 0} ssaoold g0 dnjeg
Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu
JAd e uo ay} dA19931 sjuaned uonealysads
Jaquy | Buines o, 0000523 Jey) ainsua o] pue Aemyjed [eaiud da1be pue mainay A Mr HP [auuny |edied ce
“JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
SI sy} jey} pue awi
Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld
Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu sjuswabuelle |eLigjal a21oeId
ay} an122l sjuaned 60 | -1o3u)/ sa0n0814 UI pazLoud sI suondalul
Jaquiy 041 Jey) ainsua o] 1deg Jo pug ju0f ainsua oy j020j0.d Juawajdw| A Mr HP suonoafu yuiop e
"SI mau
Joj suondo Jpy
alojdxa = 7 aseud Inr jo pug sjuswabuee
"§901M9S Bunsixa “JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D [eus)al donoeId-133ul dn Jog
Jo} sjeliajal do 1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
Jajul asiwixep = Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi sanuond aaibe pue suoesijdwi
| aseyd - ssaooud 1y 2y} Je pue ‘a0e|d 601Ine 10BIUOD [ OYH Jsuiebe Js|| maInay
aseyd g paalby Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu
"60/0/62 OYID ay} dA19931 sjuaned donoe.d Aq uayepapun
0} uaye} Jaded o9l 18y} 2Jnsus 0] 60 unp Alabins Jouiw |je jo 381 dojanaq l ar/ns HP fuabing Joulpy [
1509 Ec_m_. _N
1bie] | surebpng [oraT
Smeis O jeloueuly 0L/6002 Joyduosaq oedw| | seeas awi) Suonay pajielag Awond Jojqeus pea] ealy 9

(¢ uonoag) suonuaju| buluoissiwwo? -

01/600¢ Ue[d Aj[Iqeure}sng aieduyjjesH




Page 115

1630 L1 o3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3INI'T 9 UOISIOA 6007 KBl UBld AN[IqeUIEISnS (B) 6 0WG00T HNIL 0£\6000 V0L LOdOHED - SYANADV\AMYOL ISNAL LOIDHINK
seale edw ybiy 60120
usalo JAde G ul skemuyed juaned 9)9|dwo) ald Jad se ue|d uonoy Jooyy
uo uononpal 0} sabueyd juawa|duwi ales fouabiawa
%G3eBle] | 000°000'953 pue Ajquap| | 60 Aepy HelS paje|dwo aid ) 3S Hr 0 MaIndy 0L¢
Ainr jo pug 909G (Y UOISSILWO9Y
Aepy pIN uoieayvads aa1Aas mau dojana(
auoQ |esieldde suondo uo 934 0} Joded aye |
"§90IAIDS
Jequuiy 00001713 000°005°C3 JWV jo jojuod paje|duios ased ssauisng ) 449/94 Hr MBS WY 6¢
MIND SUOI)IPUOD
femyyed 60 Bny "s1aJsnjo Had ym uejd uonoe dojenag slabeuepy (sov) esniysuag
fouablawg uolyipucd 09d ale) Aloye|nquiy
usaig 0L'¢gees SOV Ul uoionpay 60 unr ‘ued uoioy/qid dojenep o} pasN } /NS Hr 40} suoissiwpy 8¢
wnuuey wajsAs bBuLojuow
000°05.3 "SUOISSILUPE JAII3[D 60 1des douewlopad pue Ayaioe dn-jag
14HOW 1e -uou gjeldoiddeul
spuspe 39y ur uononpay 60 1des A4Ua9 UoHEUIpI0-09) 31e) Juawa|dw|
u uonanpal
usalg %G| 000°005'63 ‘suononpal 39y 60 3dog 00N dMa1J uaissiuwoy } 10 Hr | a4us) ased jusbin L€
sjuswiuiodde juaned
1n0 Ul uoioNpay
'dd00 Jo}
SUOISSILUPE JA3[S sjuawabuelie
uou U uonodnpay Buuioyuow a21AI9s Jsngod Juawiajdw)
“JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap paiuapl sbuies pue
196pnq Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi pamalnal ale $32IAIRS UaBAXQ ainsug
pauue|d Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld
uo ueb (JA4) B aup U1 “aJe0 Jybu 60 dog 600 Jequisides Ag soinles jJuswus|dw| (ado2)
KouaIdIY8 %0 auy} anI99al syuaned wea) Alojedidsal
Jaquy | B anslyde 0] 000°000°23F Jey) ainsua o] 60 Ae paje|dwios ased ssauisng l IN HP pajesBbaju] 9¢
90IMIAS SO J0 Joedwi mainay
10B1UOD UOYEH JO UONESIN [N} 3INSUT
dno.b
Juswdojanap adinas solpaedoypo dn jeg
‘sanunuioddo 193ew Japirold
39} JJue), dsiwIxew Juaund Ul Ajoeded pue puewap MmaIASY
"0 unp 51509 0} pabeuew joenuod
Q| Uo anpayds 196pnq O1S| uoyeH pue | 0 Inr Jo pug awayds Juswabeuew [eusjal dnjag
1509 Ec_m_. _N
1bie] | surebpng [oraT
Smeis 9 |eloueuly 0L/6002 Joyduosaq 1oedw| | soeas awi| Suonay pajielag Awond Jo|qeus pea] ealy o




Page 116

1630 81 o3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3INI'T 9 UOISIOA 6007 KBl UBld AN[IqeUIEISnS (B) 6 0WG00T HNIL 0£\6000 V0L LOdOHED - SYANADV\AMYOL ISNAL LOIDHINK
pajeble} = a0InIaS
Buuaaios,
BWodNE|S)
ypm paaosoud 60 930 uejd uonejuswa|dwi pasu
0} Juawaaiby uoisiroud - 9y99 Aq panoidde ase) ssauisng slabeuepy
= 60/7/6¢ OV ales Alewllld 0} 9oy SIS o4d
0} udye} Jaded WO} OIAIDS JO YIUS 60 unp [eLI2}2Y BWOdNE|S) Jo uonejuawa|dw I /1S/9) HP ABojowreyydo TN
Jauuew dA93Y9 1509
1SOW 3} Ul paJanlap 60 1dos ‘paaibe ue|d uo uonejuawaldw|
Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi dIW/HP/MS Aq paaibe ased ssauisng
1y 2y} Je pue ‘a0e|d $92I10Y9) SHN UOISSIWW0%3(
Wbu 2y} ul ‘a1ed Wbhu QOIAISS MAU
auy} anI99al syuaned Buluoissiwiods oy ued uoioe dojanaq dn awabeuepy
IEEYS) Jey) ainsua o] aseo ssauisng yo ubig l [1SIMS HP [eLRjRY Joelele) 1€
Jauuew dA93Y9 1509 "s9dH Aq ashjeue
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap Ae3s Jo yyBus| 0oz Yym s,6| Japun
Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi 10 S[9A3] Buliojiuow Joj 3as elep Ajjuap|
M3IAR Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld
Aemyjed 6L ayy Ul ‘a4ed ybu Aeys Jo syibua osez mainay malnay Aemyyed
Kouablawg 3y} an1adal sjusped Kouablawg
01'€938 000°0593 jey ainsus o) Ueld uoijoy pue id dojanag } 1S El) oljelipaed 9¢
ABajens ayous
sishi| edw Bunoyuow Ayanoe pue sads ad1nIas
ynm Buiobuo 1502 048z Jauuew anjoays 60 1dag 0} payul| — Jue) ayons Jo bulpunqun
suoienobapn 1e awoy o) 1500 Js0W 3y} Ul Yodal
Jasoo ales palaniap a1ed Jusned [eunuag uo paseq uejd uonoe JoeHuO)
Joquy | Ayjenb ybiH jo Ayjjenb anoidw| 60 unr pieoq Joj Justuinoop Buyeng L[ vawnw Hr 9048 Gl'e
uoisirold aJed
Ajunwwod 0} ajndy spaq
WO} IIAISS JO YIUS pajeldwod ased ssauisng — 40 998 A q9/NS 49 aJed 3)eIpawlay| yle
Jauuew dAII3YI 1509
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap sinoy Jo 1no ssa92e pidey
Sl SIY) Jey} pue awi AJanodal [eidueuly
1y 2y} Je pue ‘a0e|d 0} payju1] sanjeniul Buiuolssiwwod
Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu 60 Bny woy Ayuoud Joy uejd uonoe dojenag
ay} an122l sjuaned 90UBWWOD uoisinoud ansoubelq
Jaquiy Jey) ainsua o] ol 40 uoisinold Jualnd Jo mainay |In4 I aN HP soljsoubeiq ele
MaINAI |endsoH
Aemyed 0} suolssiwpe sjuapisal aled
fouablawg fouablawa pue Jo Juawabeuew aied |e120s pue yyeay
Jaquiy 01°¢ 998 juabun u uononpay panoidwi ayy Joj uejd uonoe ue dojanaq l WY/dr 49 SAWOH 3Je) FANS
MIND 1001d NIHA € Jo uonejuawa|dw
Aemyyed ‘Alunwiwiod ayy
fouablawg ul sjuaied xa|dwos jo By Joenuod 102fo1d Jasn
usal9 01'¢ 998 Juswabeuew Jopeg eIA AJAjoe uosje AjUNWLOD Jo Jpny | I/ 40 | Aususyui ybiy Aiop L€
1509 Ec_m_. _N
1bie] | surebpng [oraT
Smeis 9 |eloueuly 0L/6002 Joyduosaq 1oedw| | soeas awi| Suonay pajielag Awond Jojqeuy pea] ealy o




Page 117

16J0 61 o3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3INI'T 9 UOISIOA 6007 KBl UBld AN[IqeUIEISnS (B) 6 0WG00T HNIL 0£\6000 V0L LOdOHED - SYANADV\AMYOL ISNAL LOIDHINK
S90INIDS
[eLR)Rl
aipaedoypo ¥e£F Buines pajeuiuns)
pue Jelele) S9DIAIDS DAORYR 9 0} J9BJU0J [EnuUE — paja|dwo)
panalyoe Joj Aed 1509 2Jow Mmau
pue paje|duwiod 0} Buipuny yym Joenu0d Bunsixa "90IAIS
uonay - ussiy 98’3y 000°9/3 Jo Jualaoe|doy 60 by $921040 SHN Bupsixa Uoissiwwosaq } di Hr §321043 SHN €Ce
“JOUUBW BAIIYD 150D
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
SI sl jey pue awi
Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld
Wb ayy ul ‘ates yybu
auy} anIv9al syuaned saldoosouypy/sardossopu jo ubisapal
Jaquiy 18y} aInsus 0] 60 1dos Aemuyyed/ssauajelidoidde jo mainay A MNP HP sa1doosoyuy e
ue|d jno |jo. salbe
0} Or/49MHr “pejeldwiod Jaded yeiq
0gd ynm Buryiom Joj ssasoid dojanag
Jobpng
pauueld uo seale Ayloud Anuap)
ueh (3Ad)
fouaiye ‘sjuswiulodde yoed ejep dojenag sishjeue
%01 juanedyno 04d Hr sopel
Jequly | eaAsIyoe o] 000°005 73 40 5802 30Npay 60 Inr Ag uejd uoow/qid dojaneg ) /As0r A1 dn mojjo o} Jsi4 143
601Ine 901/U3S AU UOISSILULIOY
stjooq
"§1502 dAOJD 40 adAysyjo0q |euonippe Joj pasu MAIASY
ur uononpay ale)
Alewlid ojul Sa2IARS 60 sapua) ale)
anoy Jo YIUS ung jo pu3 Aewd ul Ayoedes ajqejiene mainay
Jaquiy pajeldwod ased ssauisng A 109V 49/Hr | seomiag Abojoipny 0Z'c
Jauuew dAO3YI 1509
1S0W 3U} Ul paJIanlap
SI sy} jey pue awi
Wbl ayy je pue ‘aoeld
Wbu 2y} ul ‘a1ed Wbhu 4218019y
ay} dA19931 sjuaned 0} YOJMS =S}OBJU0D G 1 d SS0I)
000°0063 Jeyj ainsus 0| 603190 [ PRH/SYMN LIF/LIHIN 40 S}S00 M3IASy [4 aX Hr SRS S1d 6l°¢
%0p Aq S|eLR)RI 90IAI9S PASIARI UOISSIWWOY
ajnoe Buonpal je - ‘Remyjed ewodA|o) jo ubisapay
(uby=1)
1509 c-1
1bie] | surebpng [oraT
Smeis 9 |eloueuly 0L/6002 Joyduosaq 1oedw| | soeas awi| Suonay pajielag Awond Jojqeuy pea] ealy o




Page 118

4.0 Contract Management
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Clare Fisher/Lynda Risk

Overall aim — to ensure that the PCT has appropriate and effective mechanisms for managing all acute contracts. The
action plans to focus on the following areas:

4.1 Ensure delivery of agreed contract variations within agreed timescales.

4.2 Ensure monitoring of contract changes developments — system to ensure no payment for conditions of
limited clinical value.

4.3 MH and Alcohol admissions — review of use of T codes.

4.4 Review with practices use of Consultant to Consultant referrals — ensure full understanding of use of
Emergency clinics etc.

4.5 Rehabilitation block contract changes

4.6 Unbundling of FNoF.

4.7 Deliver review of Maternity funding arrangements.

4.8 Develop the system for individual ‘case’ reviews (i.e. appropriateness of admissions for less than 24 hours.

Including process for PbC identification of cases.

4.9 Unbundling of Hip replacements.

4.10 S22 planned procedures not carried out.

4.11 Programme for comprehensive coding audit.

412 Same day — same speciality Out-Patients.

413 Data — validation. In addition to schemes listed above, further validation of high cost patients carried out in

conjunction with Primary Care.
414 Complex HRGs with zero length of stay (LOS).
415 Management of Patients with LOS less than 28 days
4.16 Review of Day Cases that should be OP procedures or minor surgery in Primary Care
417 Review all Service Specifications for changes in 10/11.
418 Agree, implement and monitor/manage the quality contract elements including Cquins.
4.19 Control of Christie Chemotherapy Service redesign.
4.20 Develop plan to ensure effective contract management for non —lead contracts.

4.21 14 day readmission rates plan.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via the monthly
financial reporting process).

Target: £5,000,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature
Associate Director:
Name Signature
X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 20 of 51



Page 119

16 Jo 17 @3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
*31qeynba si ypiqg [ewuou e Joj Buipuny
3y} Jl Apuapl 0y s19d N8O dU) Ssolok
yewyduaq pue Buipuny Auislepy Jo
10adsal ul aunyipuadx3 JuaLing ||le Ajpuap|
‘Remyped
dloym ssoloe Asuow Joy SZIN Buipuny
anjen pue Aoualedsues) Jopeg | golopuaAg |  pue Aapmpiw apnjoul o} malaal Buipun4 A 1S 1 Augjely 'Ly
sjuawaoe|da.
20UBPING Hgd dU} eIA pajuswua|dul aq 0} Hr diH
N4A Joneg N4A Joneg §)s09) 9oy Jamo | ) Jdy woi4 | |apow Bunsod pue Buipod ‘Aemyyed maN I 1N/99 M1 Jo Buypunqun 9Ly
Inway Jo
20UEpINS Ygd ay} el pajusawaldwi aq 0} ¥93U painjoe.y
s1s09) 9oy Jamo | §0I00 wol4 | |apow Bunsods pue Buipod ‘Aemyyed maN l ag | Hr Al Buiipunqun gLy
[CERTVER
paseq pag
Buiked Buiked "s)sn.| apisAasiapy pue alysay) qjeIpawau)
3a|gnop, 3|gnop, "90N0S3I JO SN SAIIYD 60 auy} sso.oe paalbe se pajuswajdwi HP 1oB4UOY 00|
Jaquiy paonpay paonpay U0y "aJed Jo Ayijenb panosdw| 190 | wold aq 0} Buipiodal pue ‘Buipod mapN l NS/ad M1 uoney|igeyay vy
Yipne
poddns 0} uoydaj|09 elep Jo Juawdojpra(
paje|dwo) sishleuy SENETEY
fanjod Aoljod |ewsyal 9z 09d JuB)NSuod
usalo [eLR)R1 DZD JO JuaWadloju] unr Jo pug 10 Juswadlojug ay) Joj ssavoud dojanag l /as 1 0} Jue)nsuoy SR
JOBLUOD MAU 3Y) UIM Pa)eroosse
saljeuad/sanijuadsul Jaywny Aue sanjeuad
AJuap! 0} S3NPaYIS JOBAUOD U} MAIADY [e1duBUl
Buisodui
"$9|Npayds Joyj uoisiroad
Ayanoe pue Ajjenb ypm pajeisosse apnjoul
S9AIUSDUI pue saeuad Joe.uod aleys 0} 1ey) sasne|d
pajodwion 0S[e pue ‘}oBJju0d 3y} Japun suoijebiqo 1oBAUOD ||&
Juawabeuew SABY SISNJ 3U) dIaYM Seale 3soy) 10 181] dA)OE UE
usalo VIN VIN | 10BU03 JO ssausnqol panoidu| Jdy jo pug AJjuapl 0} S}oEAUOD UIBL M3IARI 0} 9| l 2l d1 | o wawdojprag AN
sabueyo a21AI9s
doueul pue Anoe pauugd pue saouelen
1084U09 JO S3PUBYI/SAOUBLIEA 1oB4UOD JO
QOIAIDS JO JUBLUSSISSE "sjuawAed Ayyuow uoiedIUNWWOd
1snqoJ Buipnjoul suoREdIUNWILIOD pue sanjeA JOBHUOD JO JUSWPUSWE pue SOS /Hr 1 Jo} ssa00ud
usalo VIN VIN 10B13U09 Jo Ayjenb panoldw| Ae Jo pu3 uonedluap! 3y} Joj ssa001d & 99npoid l M1 JHr | paaibe dojpnag 'Ly
19b1e) | 8ur1ebpng [onaT
smeis oy |e1oueulq 0L/600¢ Joyduosaq 1oedw) | saleas awiy suonoy pajiesg fwougd Jo|qeuz pea] ealy JEN |

(y uonoag) Juswabeuepy jJoeUOY -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH



Page 120

16 Jo 7T #Sed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
aled Alewlld
ul Aiabing
"panss| asuepinb Jad Jounpy Jo so01d
se sddO Buipiodal uo asuepinb NSSID dO a9 pinoys
Buibreyo U} Yy vouel|dwiod |nf s1 2oy Jey) nssIo ley) sesed
pue Buipod Jo ssaujsnqol ainsug 601deg ainsu3z 18l 1Y YHS 1s€3 YInog malnay A /or 1 fegjomainay | v1'LY
uoie
pue Jipne ‘sishjeue 0} ssadoud dojanag
d9 Alunwwo?) ayy ui a1edyyeay
1 d0 Jol| ayeipauLoju| o} sisAjeue yul skep 97< SO1
ypm sjusied
"aled Juaied aAndaYe ainsug 60 unp ejep dojanap o) wajsAs dojana( Z | Ns/driagd d1 | joswabeuey [ ¢y
uoie
60/5/1L Aq pue Jipne ‘sishjeue 0} ssadoud dojanag
yoday - eue
i ssauboud 01/600¢
Buimalnal ‘swisiueysaw buibieys Joj eyep dojanap 0y wayshs dojana SO 049Z Y
suend ang pue Buipod Jo ssausngod ansug 60 unp EJEP 60/8007 40 Malnal 3)9|dwo) l al o1 | sO"H X9 dwod | 711y
"BJEp 2)elndoeul Yym sisni
ay) Buibuajeys Joy ssaooud dojana(
"sjuaned 1509
ybiH a4 a1e2 Atewd ui 3no patues buiaqg
YJOM YA JUSISISUOD SI LOREPI[BA 2INSUT
ueld
Alyyuow Jno paLies aq uonay
usaip 000°00€3 ueld uooy Jad 60 Inr | 0} uoheplleA Elep Jo 18] pajielap adnpoid ) Jod sy d1 | uollepllep eleg Wy
uoie
pue Jipne ‘sishjeue 0} ssadoud dojanag sishleuy sjuaned-no
sjsni| 249d/ Kyjeroadg aweg
£90°9623 3y} Je Buiunoo ajgnop aonpay 60 unr ejep dojanap o) wayshs dojena( [4 NSsIo o1 -Aegowes [ 0L1Y
uoie 10 palLed
pue Jipne ‘sishjeue 0} ssadoud dojanag sishleuy 10U $2INpad0ld
"aled Juaned aAndaye 049d/ pauueld
991'6¢3 pue Ejep Jo ssaujsnqol ainsuy 60 unr ejep dojanap 0} wayshs dojena( [4 NSSIO o1 ¢CS saax 61y
uoie
pue Jipne ‘sishjeue 0} ssadoud dojanag sishleuy N0 palued
"aled Juaned aAndaye 04d 10U S3INpadoId
0620843 pue Ejep Jo ssaujsnqol ainsuy 60 unr ejep dojanap 0} wayshs dojena( [4 /NSSID o1 pauueld ¢¢S 8y
1509 b=
: €l
j1ebie) | ouryisbpng 19A37]
smeis oy |e1oueulq 0L/600¢ Joyduosaq 1oedw) | sajeas awiy suonoy pajiesg fuougd o|geuz pes ealy JEN|




Page 121

16 Jo €7 o3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
Bulioyiuow
10B1U0D
Jopedse Bunojuow
pash Apealy 10e4U0 Jo Med se ssa20.d 8dnposU|
"an|eA Japaq ejep anl| aAIb 0} Jos sJojeaipul
pue aJed Jayaq Buinib ‘uopisod Jojeaipul ay Jsuiebe ejep asuew.opad anjeA Japaq
[euoljeu ul juswanoldwi ainsug 60 Inr pue Bupjewysuaq |e20| umo sjs|dwo) A o1 rs aeosepeg | QLY
Juswiuoliaug ajelidoidde
ayy ul aleo sjeudoidde ayy Bunojuow sa)el uolssiwpe
uanib Buraq aue sjusied aunsug 60 unp 108.U09 JO Led sk $$920.4d 3oNposU| A Mr/as y1 | -oy Aousbiawg LY
"uoisirold
Q0IMIBS Ul Alepd pue sAemyied uerd
juanjed Jeajd ainsuj "SuoISSILIO 60 Inr SA AJIAoR 3sy) Jo Ipne Juswalduw|
Jo Bununod a|gnop ou si a1ay}
aInsua o} paJsjsiuiwpe AjjoaLiod 19d Weyp|o/LOSMN ubisapay
ale slajsuel) 82IAISS || a4nsug 60 1nr Y syull Buluoissiwwod usyybuang 90IMBS
Adesayiowayn
pajs|dwo) 10BHUO0D Hr ansuyo
60 unr 60/3007 Wody yuswhed ajgnop Ion0asy ) ML A1 jojoguoy | 91’y
uoieaIoads ao1AI9s Jsulebe
0L/60 | @douewlopad-1apun aynoe jo isi uy Jebue ]
Buluoissiwwosap
60 ¥das Joj Ajlenuajod syuawaja adinIas Ajpuap) suoneoiyvads
"suonebijqo Hr 90IAIAG Aoy
JoB4UOI 0} SI3pPIA0Id POH 60 unr ‘Malnel §g #jojduwio) [4 awsor a1 llemaned | Gl'ly
UBI=1)
1509 c-1
j1ebie) | ouryisbpng 19A37]
smeis oy |e1oueulq 0L/600¢ Joyduosaq 1oedw) | sajeas awiy Suonay pajena fuougd o|geuz pes ealy JEN|




Page 122

5.0 Joint Commissioning of Non Acute Services (inc NHS Continuing Care)
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Simon Holden/Mike O’Regan & John Pye

Overall aim — to ensure that jointly commissioned services, and NHS Continuing Care, are
delivered in an efficient and cost effective manner. The action plans will focus on the following
areas:

5.1 Review all out of area Mental Health/Learning Disability placements to implement better
care/better efficiency proposals;

5.2 Review/deliver solutions for the sustainability of several community schemes (eg the
Falls Service);

5.3 Review all aspects of NHS Continuing Care (ie costs and process); and
5.4 Review of Section 28A Grants to Local Authorities.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: £3,200,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 24 of 51



Page 123

16 Jo 6T @%ed

9 NOISEHA 0P SINI'T 9 UOTSIOA 600T ABIN U[d Aiqeuresng (&) 6 OWG00T AN 0£\6000\AIAVOd LOJOHAD - SYANADVVAIVOL LSNNML IOJOTON X
"s921AJas Ajljlenb ybiy
“aouepinb 39N Yum pajdnod Asuow Joj anjeA wnwixew (v¥gz uonoag)
ay) Yum aulj ul ao1nes JybLl ayy sapinold ‘sjuels) eiA ainjpuadxe HOW Auoyny |e207)se3
pay 000002 000058 | @neoa1 sjuanedjey) ainsus o 60 unr | |le jey) ainsua o} ssad04d e adnposul 0 l /dr/AH 10 allysayy 0} syuelsy 91G
90IAI9S BUIes Ay ‘suoIssiWpe paje|al |oyode aanpay
Joj ssapinoad omy Buiked Jo ysiy
‘syuaned yeay 18n1]
|ejuaw Jjo Buipod ajerdoisddeul Aepy (dM9) diysiaupied [eapp g 2aysayn suoissiwpe joyoo|e
pay 000'7PG3 | 40 s eioueuld jo Juswabeuep jopug Ui SUOISSIWIPE 809, 1, JO IPNY 4 S0S | MOW pue HN ManeY | GG
"2.Je0 9jeudo.dde Buipuny si [ Dd sjshd| ejnoe
‘Buipoosiw Aue jo By} aInsus 0} ‘opoo |, & UaAIB usaq ul ebesn spoo |,
suopeoljdwi sy} pue Joa.L00 aAeY oym sajou Jusned Jo sdwes [OYo9|Y pue UilesH
usel9 s1 Bulpoo ay} ji jno pul{ | Aejy pu3 B Jo maia. Bulpoo pue ojul|D } MO [ dOW [BJUSIN MSINSY A2
Buipuny
VHS J0 |[efJous 0}
anp 40G}3 Aq}s00
[BJOAQ BY) 80Npal
0} Wle ‘9oIAeS
dMO WIM JoR4U0 Y} JO (LdY!) seidessy
[[lefoys Buipuny 1n0 s1y} Jo} uoionpal Buipuodsaliod [eoiBojoyohsd 0}
VHS 9y Jon00 0} sBuines e ojenobsu 0} pesu om pue YOGL3 $5800Yy Buiroiduj
Jequy 000G} 0 1800 JO Y061 3 JOAlle [ unr pul Aq peonpaJ usaq sey Bulpun YHS } g0L | HOW | eyojprebaiym | ¢€1'G
04d
$0IAIBS 88D AjlUNWWOo) B ym padojensp aq 0} uonuana.d sjje}
Aewud Bupsixe UM 8180 Joy uejd mau alojelsy) — pencidde
Jaquiy Ajlenb ybiy anieosl sjusied 10U Ing poje|dwioo aseo ssauisng l a9 HP S0IAIOS S||e4 AN
"awioy Ji1sy) 0} Josojo sjusned MoIADl BJe)
1881} 0} JopJo Ul ‘sjuswooe|d "Ujlesy [ejusw 21e0 oxodsaq ayodsag/(s1y0)
[ENPIAIpUI BSJR JO INO s Buoje sjuswaoe|d yjesy |ejusw sjuswies.] ealy Jo
pad }500 UB1Y J0 }S00 B} S0Npay | unp pu3 €8.e JO N0 }INpe pue p|iyo MoIASy } 1SN | HOW | Ino yyesH [ejusiy V'1'G
snieig 19bie) | auiq1ebpng S90S [oA97
ovd |eroueut 0L/600¢ 101duosaq 10edwy ouwl] Suoipy pajielsd Kuioud Ja|qeuy pea ealy o

(g uonoag) buluoissiwwod JuIo -

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH




Page 124

9 NOISTHA

16 J0 97 @%ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

‘paJanap
awieal) ayy ul Ajenb
Buninsus sy ‘auury
Wb ayy ul pue aoe|d
JyBu Uy Je “patenijep sl

-9ouepinb

[euoneu ayy o) Alenuod se ‘Buies aynoe
ue ui aoe|d aye) Jou Jsnw ey papun4
SHN Jo} sjualussasse Jey) AjLioyny
Alejiun jseq alysayD Yy ‘paujuLisiep

Buipeg juslussassy

pay aleo JybLl ay} aansus 0 60 ¥das ssa204d pue ‘payoeal aq 0} Juswaalby A oY dr - ale) papun{ SHN TS
‘paJanap
awieal) ayy ul Ajenb ‘sanuoyIny (207 yim Aoijod juol aaibe
Buunsus Jsiym ‘awy 0} paaN "ale papun4 SHN o3 3|aibie
Wb ayy ul pue aoe|d Aj[eanewoyne ale ‘|im Jiay) ysuiebe pjay
JyBLI oy} Je “‘pasenijap si Jslium 218 Woyy pableyosip ‘spusijo [e Jey) YlesH [elusN LLL'S
pay aleo JybLl ay} aansus 0 60 ¥das uoipasse Buimpngal Ao1jod ydope o} pieog A oY dr - ale) papun{ SHN A
‘pasensp ‘sajlioyny
wl sy awieal) ayy ul Ajenb [e207 yym Aaijod juiol aaibe o} pasN
wo'sF puads Buunsua js|iym ‘swiy "aled Ydns puny 0} SHN Y 1o} sjelidoidde
|eyol 1yBu sy} ul pue aoe|d J0U 1}l Jey} ‘paydeal usag sey uoisioap pauloap 9ouo
1yBL By e ‘pasanIap S Buipuny e 85u0 35299 pjnoys JuswiAed JuswAed Jo uoiessa)
pay 2Je9 Jyfla sy ainsus 0] 60 In° SHN Buluipno Aaljod jdope o} pieog } oY dr — 8JeJ papung SHN £C8
‘pasensp
awieal) ayy ul Ajenb (19
Buunsus Jsiym ‘awy 3|qeuoseal )3l SARUIYE JO %07 |
Wb ayy ul pue aoe|d 150b66ns a1) paysanbal Jajsues} alaym spaq
1yBL By e ‘pasanIap S pajoeuod Joj s|qehed uopngiyuod SHN d)eJ $S90X3 Je Ul sJajsuel |
pay aleo JybLl ay} aansus o] gounr | wnwixew Buifoads Ad1jod ydope o} pieog l oY dr - ale) papun{ SHN FATAL
‘paJanap
awieal) ayy ul Ajenb
Buunsus Jsiym ‘awy
Wb ayy ul pue aoe|d “(3s9) 9|qeuoseal Buneaw a1) sAneuIR)e JO (s1e09WI0H)
1yBL By e ‘pasanIap S %07 | J0 Wnwixew o} ainypuadxa Bumywi| sabeyoed Alunwwo)
Py 2Je9 JyblJ sy ainsus o] 60 unr YHIS MS 0} Jejiis Aaljod ydope o) pJeog ) ¥ dr — 8JeJ papung SHN V¢S
uby=|.
1509 el
smelis 19bie] | aur19bpng S9|ess [on9]
Ovd jetoueuly 0L/600¢ 10ydunseq yoeduw| S ! Suonay pajieled Aoud 1|qeuz pea’] ealy Y

aJen Buinunuo) -

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH




6.0

Page 125

Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing)

Responsible Director/Associate Director - Clare Fisher/Simon Whitehouse and Mark
Dickinson

Overall aim — to ensure that Primary Care Services, and Prescribing costs, are delivered in an
efficient and cost effective manner. The action plans will focus on the following areas:

6.1
6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5
6.6

Maximising the use, and income, of the new Medical/Health Centre developments;

Setting of individual practice based prescribing challenges, our aim is to be is to be
amongst the best performing PCTs as measured in the Better Care, Better Value
(BCBV) indicators;

Reduction of inappropriate referrals;

Development of community based services to replace services currently provided in a
hospital setting;

Introduction of new “efficiency based” practice incentive system; and

Implement practice based minor surgery plan.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan

Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via the
monthly financial reporting process).

Target:

GMS/PMS £1,365,000
Further Prescribing Efficiencies £2,000,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6

Page 27 of 51



Page 126

9 NOISTHA

16 Jo 8 @3ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

"papinosd saoInIes
[B21UI]9 PUE 1502 JO SWIg) Ul

.mucm_uma BIETN]

‘919 sa0noeld SN JO Juswssasse Joj pasiwixew Buiag ale syyouaq jeyy
Juiod 995 | 000°¢/8°€) pajielap xepspun 2Insua 0} s82dkld SN Jo MIINSY 4 Ho/ar MS Sd 919
Alepunoq
134930 ulyiim ainsus
puUE YJOM JO B3Je Ulew AJuapl ‘paau
0} 38| sJowuopad jo malnal 159)e216 Jo seale ul pajabie) si siyy
‘919 eHapUN SISOD ddUIELY 12U} 2InSU3 0} JapJo Ul ‘ainypuadxa
Juiod 295 | 000°05} Wwnaol J0 %, e 1o} 3|qel| s 10d 93UIBL/WNI0T d9 JO MAINSY [4 HO/AS MS SWd/SINO Gl9
sloypne
[BUISIX3 JO 8SN JapISUOY) ‘sjuaned o) syjeuaq
"s99108.1d 0} JuswAed 9SILUIXEW 0} JAPIO Ul JUBLISSISSE
‘919 pue Juawanalyoe Ayenb pUE UOIJEDLLIA JUBWIAAIIYIE (40D) M4
Juiod 295 | 000°¢98'6 JO}Ipne pue juswisssssy sHomowel sawoang B Alenp [4 /HO/iar MS SWd/SNO ¥l9
"(0dd) Buluolssiwwo)
paseq aonoeid pue
(03d) sepwwo) aApnIexy
[BUOISS3}0.d BY} dpnjoul
osfe pjnoys siy| ainjipuadxa
Bunaaw Ayjes0 ulsjse] pue
speaT 4o JO M3IARI B apnjoul
pinom siyl “1oedwi malnal
pue (§37) S99IAIRS padueyug
Aj[e207 ‘uoidweys [eaiuld
219 ‘alnyipuadxa juawabebua ainypuadxa s
Juiod 995 | 000'9. [EIUID [ Jo MalAR] pajieled JuswiabeBus [eolullo Jo MmaIAY [4 /HO/4A4 MS SWd/SINO €19
‘Aauow
Joj anjen Bulanap si pue
1sNqol S| aIn)ipuadxa Juaund pea| paluap! ue Ym MaIdl
1ey) 2nsua o0} sasiwald Juswabeuew sa)e)ss ue salinbay
aleo Aewd uo ainjipuadxa
219 ||E JIpNE 0} }IOM JO (930 9bueyd ao1AI9s ual 1) sasiwalud
Juiod 995 | 000°8¥E'L a001d pajiejep & a4 pjnom siy | 0} Joadsal Ul ainjipuadxa ||e malnsy } WHMN MS SWd/SINO 9
"sbuipiing
S)l JO |[e JO ‘35N JUBIDYJD 150D
‘919 150W pue 1534 ay) saxew sanuad e Aewd
Juiod 995 | 000°005 ¥ 1Jd 8y} jeyiainsus o] MU Jo MalAl Uoljes]jin doedg ) AN MS SWd/SINO 119
biy=
= [ m_. _N
smeis 10bie] | auiyiebpng s9jeas [oneT]
Ovd |e1oueul 0L/6002 Joyduosaq 1edwy awi] Suoly pajielad Rond Jo|qeus pea ealy Y

(1°9 uo1Yag) S9IIAIaS ase) Alewld -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 127

9 NOISTHA

16 J0 6T @3ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

"pasijeal
ale ‘anjoBYe J$00 pue
‘(e90| 2I0W SBIIAISS SYEW 0}

"10d a3 3noyBnoiyy papiroid

819935 | 0008 apew sabueyo jey) ainsua o] 20198 AW0j0ga|yd dY) Jo MalAaY [4 3S/10 MS SWd/SINO 01’19
‘a1e0 Ayenb ybiy jo
uoisinoid sy} woy Joesap jou
op pue |euones ale jabpnq
paalbe ay}1eaw 0} usye}
819993 | 000G6/ Sainseaul jey) ainsus 0] }oBpnq Japinoid 8SNOH UJ o MAIASY [4 3S/HO MS SWd/SINO 619
‘a1e0 Ayenb ybiy jo
uoisinoid sy} woy Joesap jou Jebpnq |enuue
op pue |euone. ale jabpnq paa.be ay) Jsuiebe pieog jsni] Joy
paalbe ay}1eaw 0} usye} yodau |eroueuly saibe pue ainjipuadxa ar /Hoidr
000°G9E’L | 000005/ sainsesul jey) ansus 0] MoIna) 0) sBupssw Ajyjuop ) NY/3S MS [ELQ/SNdISNO 819
psjipne
S| JUSLWaARIYIE. |RIoURUY
alnsua pue ajeudoldde
alaym Buuoissiwwossp
Japisuo) "sadInIRS "aled Juaned panoidw sjejnwins
pasueyus MalAsl pue S90p SIY} Jey} ainsus 0} ‘sjuaiAed
'?19 aled Aewid Joj suouajul Juswanalyoe Buipnjoul ‘sadIAIRs
Julod 935 | 000'//6°L Buluoissiwiwos Apuap| paJuBYUS PSUOISSILILWOY || JO MIIASY [4 Ho/ar MS SWd/SINO L9
biy=
T {u m_. _N
smels 1bie] | auiyiebpng S92 [oneT]
Ovd jetoueuly 01/600¢ Jo0)duosaq 1edwy ouil Suony pajielsd Auoud Jo|qeus pea ealy |




Page 128

16 J0 0€ o3ed

9 NOISEHA 0P SINI'T 9 UOTSIOA 600T ABIN U[d Aiqeuresng (&) 6 OWG00T AN 0£\6000\AIAVOd LOJOHAD - SYANADVVAIVOL LSNNML IOJOTON X
19d Ul Wwes} 8109 uled)
60 Aey wou4 soonoe.d
0} wesBoud Buiuies jno |joy
sIBp rs
8’1’9 99g 81’9998 60 Aey 559008 9ABY S80jj0ed [|B 8.nSUT ¢ | O4d/MS NS | &NDSINI | €79
016 0}0 Buiuiow
By Ul syisiA puswebeuew |eusyel seonoeld
8’1’9 99g 81’9998 apnjoul 0} $8A03I0 0} 0Z/6002 [4 J9/MS 40 SWNd | 229
uopisod siepa| ebieyosip Jo Jipny
[BN}ORJUOD 08Y0
0} posu — abJeyo ou soonoe.d pue sdnoib ngd
= ojul Aiojoejspesun 0} ejep |eLisjel Ajyjuow Jo UCISIAOI
Jo eya|dwoou)
[nBuiuesw aq 0} ejep
Jus9a., selinbay Aanoe |eydsoy Jo uonepliep
wes} Buigoeauoo pue
sisAleue mau Wo.j seopoeld woJ
Joddns salinbay uoneULIOLUI [B.LI8f8l JO Speojumo(
"SleLisjel Jo mainal Ajyuow
dese — uopnjos-o pue soonoe.d Buiuie. ul uoluido
9’1’9 993 Q'1'9 993 selinbay puooss — aopoe.d ul abels [elieley Z ar MS 10D 97 129
1509 Ec_m_ﬂm
10b1e ] aul] 19bpng [ana7
sSnielS ovy |e1oueul | 01/6002 Jo)duoseq 1oedw S9|edS awl | suonay pajiend Aoud Js|qeu’ pea] ealy 19y

(Z'9 uonoag) suonUaAId| dIe) Alewld -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 129

9 NOISTHA

16 Jo 1€ o3ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

“pasiwiuIw
d)seM pue AUaIolye PaIANIRP SI
92IAI9S JUBLIND 3INSU3 0} (4O0H)

uewpio
Jaquiy 000°00L3 00069013 Aoualo1ye 1509 60 1das sal|ddns Aouabliawe mairay z M wpy | $991MI9G USBAXQ SwoH 8¢9
uewpio
Jaquiy umouun Kouaioiys 1509 0l el abexoed 21e09WOH Jo MAIASY A 3I0OAIP ]lo%e) SWOH Je aledy)eaH €9
000°0/}3 ‘uonuansUl
S90S a3y ue jo Aianjap Bundaye
pasueyul Ajastanpe oyum sbuines ajelaualb
Aoewleyd | umouyun syuswyuiodde PINOM ‘2IAI3S B} WO JUaLEal)
J[quy 000623 Ajunwwogd | d9 Joj sjoays uo yoouy 60 Bny Ag 39| pesy |ed1way? Jo [eAOWdY € AN 39 SJIAIBG JuaLU|ly Joully 9€9
"anoqe UI|OJUaA 0} Yoeq sJajeyul
Jaquiy 000583 se Buiquosald 196.83 Aduale 1509 0} Jey Ag [owejngpes susuab Buibueyn A sd9 e pueig 0} ¥oBq dUAUD) Ge9
"§92IN0S3J PajiWI| JO SN }s3q
Buines "anoge %29 Job.e) aInsua o} P00} Buiquosaid Jad
Joquiy WSZ 03 se Buiquosald | —19buey Aouaroye 1509 0l Jey Ag se ‘Buiquosald susuab asiwndo A sdo N Buigquosaid olsuagy ¥eo
$dO
Buines "anoqe %z 19618} Jojeaipul A909 Juaneln
Joquiy WGZ 03 se Buiquosald | —19buey Aouaroye 1509 6022049 Jad se Buiquosald Syy mainey A uAjoie) N Buiquosaid Sy £¢9
%\ 6
0} dn job.ey Jop a7
‘anoqe %63 1ob.e) Jojealpul AgO4
Jaquy | Buines NG 03 se Buiquosald | —19buey Aouaioiye 1509 6022049 Jad se Buiquosald [dd mainay A sdo N Buiquosaid |dd 7¢9
%08
Wy'el3 0} dn jabue) 40D &7 (Ag04) enjep Jepegeie) Jopeg $dO
puads |g)o} %0/ }obI1e} 40D Jojeoipul Jad se saonoe.d JUaARID
Joquiy Buines w3 Buiquasald 4o | - 1964e) Aouaioye 1509 60100 A9 ul Buiquosald uneys mainay l uAjoie) N Buiquosald uneys 1€°9
(uybry=1)
1s09 c-1
snjels jobie] | aulqjabpng saleas [9A9T]
ovyd leloueuld 01/6002 | lojdiiosaq joedw) swil suonoy pajieiad fuoud Js|qeug peaT ealy 19Y

(¢'9 uooag) Juswabeue|y sauIdIPIA -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 130

7.0 Bespoke Care - Services not Covered by Standard NHS Contracts
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Heather Grimbaldeston/Mark Dickinson

Overall aim — to ensure that any “bespoke” care (ie services not covered by standard NHS
Contracts) are commissioned in an efficient and cost effective manner. The action plans will
focus on the following areas:

7.1 Implementation of a more effective process for the management of morbid obesity;
7.2 Implementation of a new system for the reduction in treatments of limited clinical value;
and

7.3 A review of the appropriateness of high cost drug recharges.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via the
monthly financial reporting process).

Target: £2,500,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 32 of 51



Page 131

9 NOISTHA

16 Jo €€ o3eq

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

[oA9)]
1sn43 Je as1olgnd pue ssado.d auy Jo sysni|
WLIoJul ‘aN|eA [BOIUI[D payWI JO $2Inpadold

Joj ssad0.d sjenosdde Jold ysigeis3

$10d
Jayjo yym pajuswa|dwi ADT0d Mainsy

SENEIEY
J0 sIa)sn|d Hgd wuiojul 03 Aaijod dn-jeg

Aungoe
gjnoe Ajyjuow Jipne 0} wajsAs dn-jeg

anjeA [ediulld pajwl| jo unp (e1posu0d Odd pue saly|eooT NssIO anjeA [ealuld
pad 000°00G°} 03 | Sseunpadoud ul uopINpaYy jo pug /SPeaT d9 BIA) S49D [I€ 0} Uojedjunwwon V| nsr Hr Il o sainpado.d ¥l
JoRJUOD
paaJbie ay) ypm aul| ui aie) Alepuodag Wol
pabieyoal sbnip 1509 ybiy ||e Jo malnay l an o) sbniqs09 YbiH W]
JUBIOIYR puE SN)IRYD
"ouepInb Uloq S1 Jl Jey} INSU3 0}
ADIN 8y} ypm suy ul ‘ale9 [eolul]g Jo [enoidde
20IAI9s Jybu sy anv0al ‘slenosdde Joud ay) Joj WaysAs
sjuaned jey) ainsua o] 60 unp Joud Joj wa)sAs JuaLnd sy jenjer A Is/or R JUa.1IN3 3Y) MAIARI 0| AN
‘A1abins Aue Buiyepapun o} Joud ‘@ouepinb
JDIN Yum 2ouerjdwios ui ‘(uonenp
“gouepinb sleak ¢ eald) welboud Juswabeuepy
ADIN 8y} ypm suy ul WBIap 10d pesiubodal e paje|dwos
90IAJ9S JyBU By anI993l aney o} Juswadnbal Buiuipno ‘1 d S90S
J[quy 000°000'} 000°006' spaljed jey ainsus o] 60 unr uopuimg o} Jejiulls ‘Aaljod dope o} pJeog L[ DM an JuswaBbeue}y JyblapA VL
ybiy=1.
1509 el
smeis 10bie] | auiy1ebpng s9jeas [onaT
ovd jeloueuly 0L/600¢2 1o0)duosaq edwy auil Suonay pajielag Awoud s|geus pea] ealy Y

(2 uonoag) aten ayodsag -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 132

8.0 Corporate Services — PCT Infrastructure
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Fiona Field/Phil Wood

Overall aim — to ensure that the PCT delivers challenging savings targets within its broader
infrastructure in order to deliver services in an efficient and cost effective manner. The action
plans will focus on the following areas:

8.1 Implementation of vacancy control/vacancy freeze program. This to also include the
suspension of outside consultants; and

8.2 Implementation of an agreed rigorous non-pay cost reduction program.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via the
monthly financial reporting process).

Target: IFRS Reviews £600,000
Corporate Function Cost Improvement Target £1,000,000

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 34 of 51



Page 133

16 Jo ¢ o3eq

9 NOISYHA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
aonpal ainypuadxa
pay 000°0Z umouyun go unp | Jo ainypuadxa snoaug||adsiw | yoed| l poop d 44 Snoaue|[asIy rANK’)
Jaquiy 000G 000'G¢ pajuala|du| sinoy Buiues|o Joefu0d 2onpay } ERIAT EE| osawoq L
a0IApe
psy 000°07 JoaL00 Buiney jou Ji ysiy 60 unr abesn sonpay } USpIoH S EE| 509} [ebo 0L'1'8
Juudioo} uogles
s,10d @y} Buionpal 0) ajnquauod
51509 Buiseasoul si 0s|e pue ApuaIdyia 2I0W YIOM
pay 00001 000°06Z | swiep |anely o) abuey) goune | yloq o0} Japio ul ‘skauinol Jes aonpay l uosiepA 44 sasuadxa [aAel| 619
JOB1U0D poopA d
SMO[} SAOGE PUE JOAO SALIBAIIAP 20U pE JO JRI00[
pay 000°0F 000°0Sy | uonewuojur jo uondnisiqg 60 unp SWINJOA 2. JOBAUOD BIBDIAM| 8INpPay L | rryonedzig v 44 aledsau| 918
Juawdinba
Jaquiy 000°0L pajuawiajdw| [euonippe Jo Buiseysind asnpay l poop d 44 Buiseysind aunjuin4 I'Lg
Jequiy 000G 000°0¥ [BIUI O UNP | senuan Jeulelxe Bully jo asn sonpay ) Svd IIY 44 3y Wooy 9’18
J_quy 008 008 [BWIUIN pajuawa|du| Jorjuod [einynaoy jenuue dojg ) ENIAT 44 sjueld G'l8
Jaquiy 0007 0009 pajuaLua|du| suoido Jo 3310y 2onpay l sauor 9 44 SauIydeW SsyuLq vle
"ALISGYOB|gf3]1gOW SUO UBy)
oW sey Je)s Jo Jaquiaw ou Jey) pue
‘abesn ajeand Joj wns sjeudoidde LeH | uononpal
J[quy 000°0€ 000°001 Jejs pajsijessiq 60 1n° ue Aed Jjejs 1 0d Ie ey} 3o8yo ) /M3 S 44 - 9besn suoydaja | £l8
Jaquiy 00001 000°0S 1oedwi ami pajuawiajdw| pJepue)s ssejd puodas abeysod ||y l sauor 9 44 sabejsod rAX:)
‘gjelidosdde aseym sjoaloid
syse) apjoid ybiy |eyded oy abJeyd pue wnwiuiw Md (L1 Y0u) sjueynsuod
pay 000°0F 000°000°] | uo Jabeuew pes) jo ysiy 601deg 0} AOUB)NSUO) [BUIAIX3 [|B 32Npal O] l JHS/H8ysI4 9 44 [BUJAIX3 JO 3s) 1’18
BIu=
}so) aun Em_:. Fn
snjels 1obie | 196png s$9|eos [oAaT
ovyd leloueuld 01/6002 | 1oyduosaq joeduw| swil SUOROY pajlelad | Auoud 19|qeuy | pesq ealy 19y

(1"g uonoasg) saslAIag ajesodion -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 134

16 JO 9¢ o3eq

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
‘(eonuoeg Alejes “al) yoeoudde
"apisyeIS yum aa.be o) pue JUIMJUIAR, B JONI[SP 0} JapIo
‘10d 3y} pue yels au) yioq ul ‘pasiwixew ale sapunyoddo
"90IAIS 0} snoabejuenpe Ajennw Xe} Jey} INsua 0} SWAYIS
pay 000°0¢ 000261 S84 1503 B JAAIISp O 60 Inr | sl yolym awayos e dojarsp o ) ar HS Je] 8se97 s, 1 0d 8y} malnal o] G¢es8
JUBWHWWOI [eoueul S, ] 9d
"AWOU093 Lyeay Japim ay} 2onpai 0} ‘amal) ul ‘Asabing
"90IAIS ay} ulyIm asypn-al Jo Apadoud s,0100(7 uoibuireys pjo ayj uo
00002 000°0S SNJO3Y 1500 € JaNap 01 60 Inr ay) Joxtew Ajanoe o ) HS HS ases| Bujuiewal auy Jo asodsip o ¥'e8
Jusw)eal)
pasodoud ay} 0y spsebas yym ‘sasiwa.d snjdins | 9d jo (sabieyn
IpNY [eula)X3 yym siel| o] [eBa jo uoniuboaal ay) 03 splebal
ypm ‘paydope yoeoidde apim
"90IAIS ‘S| Yim aul u132ays SHN 2y} uodn Juepuadap) ‘lesodsip
pay SNIJI3Y2 1500 B JBAIp 0] gounp | aoueegs,1od ayl aeysalol A HS HS |qissod Jayuny ayy ajebisanul o T8
yoeo.udde pasuejeq e ainsua
'§82IN0S3l 0} (SY41) splepuesg Bunloday
19d J0 ash asiwixew o} [eroueul- [euoneusau| ‘ynm
"90IAIS Japio ul ‘a)ep 0) suopdwinsse doueldwod |jn} pue ‘uonejuawia|dwi
Jaquiy 000°005 000°000°} SNJO3Y 1500 € JaNap 01 60 unr abuajeyo Aljean) ) 1S HS 0} Yoeoudde Jo Mmalndy 8
"(Sy4I a1) @ouepinb mau Buimojjo}
‘Juawaalbe jewlo) yoas ‘paydope si yoeoudde Buiuueld
pue ‘1 9d 2y} 0} a|qejieAe [epueuy snoabejuenpe Jsow
"90IAIS suoido snoLeA ay) Jo 3y} ansua o} ‘193lo1d Isinywi3
Jaquiy 000°00} 0000052 SNJI2YS 1500 € JaNap 0] 60 unr [ uonenjeAs pajiejsp e 8dnpold ) Aks) HS 3y} Joj swieal)s Buipuny Jo malney 1'¢8
smeis 19b1e) aui 1ebpng s9jeas (oA
Ovd |e1oueul 0L/6002 Joyduosaq 1edwy auil SuoRy pajiereg | Awond Jo|qeuy pea] ealy Y

(Z'g uUoYag) S9IIAIBS |eldURULS -

01/600¢ Ue[d AN[iqeure)sng aiedyjjesH




Page 135

9.0 Escalation Plan
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Mike Pyrah/Dave Rowson

Overall aim — to ensure that the PCT has a deliverable Healthcare Sustainability Plan. The
decision on whether to escalate the Plan will be taken in July on the analysis of the financial
position (Quarter 1, 2009/10). In particular, the action plan will ensure action is taken in the
following areas:

¢ The consultation on, and communication of, the plan (see above), and in particular the
need to undertake the formal consultation processes.
o Staff side/ representative bodies (LMC etc)/ overview and scrutiny committees etc.

NB It should be noted that, there is a need to commence formal consultation on this Plan
(ie, Staff Side, Representative Bodies (LMC etc), Overview and Scrutiny Committee plus
partners/stakeholders etc).

9.1 Primary Care

9.2 Prescribing/Pharmacy Contract

9.3 HCHC/CITC and Community Services

9.4 Secondary Care

9.5 Infrastructure

9.6 Decommissioned Services

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: N/A

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:A\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 37 of 51



16 Jo 8¢ a%ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
"ale) Aewlid
UYAR UONEDIUNLILIOD
0} JusWa|d
£a e se uaas i
SIYL "sJaysn|d 2.y} ay} [[esan0 sjuawiAed
ur sbunasw Buuoyiuow awabebu]
000'G8 punj Apuauing spea1do 3l } MS HS | [eaul] ||e sjeullus | Gl'6
syuawdojanap
usalc) Jejoyds sasiwald
‘uojbuljog ‘ebp3 Asj4ep|y ‘YaIMma|pPpIN paubisun || uo yiom
‘YoImypoN ‘plojsinuy] ‘uoya|buog ‘al l MS HS puadsns/ajeuiws | ¥'16
SO 0} sadijoeld
SId Ile J3jsuel
000°008° | MS | HS 0} 920U ARG €16

Page 136

"ale) Alewlid ypm
wiswabebua |eoiulo
pue sdiysuone|al

uo Joeduwi ||Im sawayds
353U} JO uoljeuILI)
3yl ‘panoidwi aq pjnod
aled ol|gnd Jo sanijenb

3y Yyolym Aq ainsesjy SaWaYog
Koy & ale usas ale paoueyu3 [e20|
S90IAIBG [BIoURUI] pue Jayjo [|e sjeuluLis |
0000002 400 [e207jusauind 8y | )00g pue 8so00y) ‘sInoH papusixy ‘el ) MS HS /M3INSY 6

"ale) Alewld ypm
wawabebus |eoiulo
pue sdiysuonejal

uo joedwi |1 SaWAYds
953U} JO UOIjUILLIS)
ay] panoiduwi aq pjnod

aled 211gnd Jo sapyenb ylomawe. 4
3y} yolym Aq ainsesjy S8WO23NQ0
fay) e ale uaas ale pue Aylend
S92IAISS |elouURUIl] pue [B90] 3y} dA0WA
000°004' 400D [e907 Jualino 8y | ) MS | MS 0} 820U dAIBG 1'l'6
1507 {UBI=1)
. -1
1618 aul wbpng S92 [oha
smels 9yy |esueury 0L/600Z Joyduosaq 1edw awi] SUoNdY pajierdd |  Awoug J9|qeuy | pes ealy 19y

(uap|oH uowis - 10}234IQ 9)LID0SSY/10)2341Qq d|qisuodsay)
alen Aewd -
(16 uondag) ueld uonejessy
01/600Z Ue|d Ajiqeureysns aiedyjjesH




Page 137

16 JO 6€ @8ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
0005859 [e301 ang
"ale) Aewld
UYAR UONEDIUNLILIOD
0} JusWa|d
£a e se uaas i
Slyl "staysn|d sy} ay} %G Aq
ur sbunasw Buuoyiuow alnypuadxa Ansiuaq
000°000° punj Apuauiny ) [ALS] HS ||B49A0 82NP3Y 916
=
10b1e) aur 1ebpng S9jess 1937
smels 9yy |esueury 0L/600Z J01dussaq 1eduw awi] SUonoy pajiersd | Awoug J9|qeuy | pes ealy 19y




Page 138

16 JO Ot @9ed

9 NOISEHA 0P SINI'T 9 UOTSIOA 600T ABIN U[d Aiqeuresng (&) 6 OWG00T AN 0£\6000\AIAVOd LOJOHAD - SYANADVVAIVOL LSNNML IOJOTON X
000022} [ej01 gng
saiveuleyd
'sjebe)/siequinu Ul $90IAI0S
foueubald obeuss) "uondaoeuo9 eJo Aousbiowo paoueyu
000052 uo Joedwl [|IAA Buisuadsip .o} sjuswAed sspnjou) l 29 HS yoe@uey | ¥'76
sauljapinb
Buiquasaid
Aloyepuew
000°000°} | 09 HS sonponu| | €76
'sjobuey
sispinD Bupjows Adesoy
oy Bulionljep Juawaoe|dey
0} J0}nqIJU0D aUNoaIN Jo}
000'00€ lofew e sisiy| | 29 HS | Buibreyo sonposu| [ 276
"sjsioeulieyd
Aq yimyesp
ale Jey sjusuwiie
Jouiw Jo} 8ouepusye
[eydsoy pue 95890 (SY) SWayos
d9 Ujoq sjusnaid 0} sl sysioew.leyd oy pred Buipuny SyuBLU|IY JouIy
0000/} SWaYds Jualing SV JusLnd ey} 00U SAI | 29 HS AU} MeIpUYIAL 16
«moo (uby=1)
awm‘_m._. aul7 aw_u_u_._m S9|eoas _%ﬂ.—_
sniels ovy |esueury 01/6002 J01duasaq 1edw awl | suonoYy pajielaq Awoud Ja|jqeuy pea ealy 19y

joenuo) Aseweyd/buiquosald -
(z'6 uonoag) ueld uonejessy

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH

(usp|oH uowis - 10}9341Q 9)eI20SSY/40}23.1q d|gisuodsay)




Page 139

16 JO Tt 2%ed

9 NOISYHA 20P"3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABJN Ueld ANIqeureIsng (8) 6 OWG00T ANNT 0£\6000\ VO IDdOHD - SVANADVIIVOH ISNML IDdOHIN X
000000°¢ [el0l ang
(s@o10198 [EpIdSOH
© Ajunwwo? al)
Japua} Joj S90IAIRS
WIN [4 HS jojsiiAjpusp | G€6
"sseo0ud
YoM
SOl eyj ol FSQC_ Awo._.v S9OIAISS
4els jusiuisbeuew Aunwwon
108f0ud 03500 [opow Buiw.oysuel|
04l BU} 9AeS |[IM SIY L $00IAIeS pabeuew Ajoalip 0} Jonsy l HS d puadsng 7€6
%% Aq ainjipuadxa
wawsbeuepy HOJD HO30
0000022 Lpim pavibe oq 0} sebueyo sojaleg } HS di lleono 8onpay £eoh
"Sjuswisbuelie
Buiiom
ol uo joedur |1m
Buipuny jo uopesse) sjuelo
‘S|iounog mau au} Y8z Uonoag
000008 0} | Bujpuny Jueng } HS | 1o asnay) mainay 244
[eydsoH
dpIsINQ spag
Jo Juawdojanap
o4l } 40 HS ay) puadsng L' €6
1S0) (uBy=1)
jobie] | aur]ebpng s9jeds _%>.0.F_
snjejs ovy leloueuly 01/6002 | lojduiosaq joedw QWL SUoljOY palle}dd | muoud | 43I9eUT pes ealy 19y

$991A19G AJlunwwo) pue 1D ‘OHOH -
(g6 UoN29g) ue|d uoljejessy

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH

(usp|oH uowis - 10}9341Q 9)eI20SSY/40}23.1q d|gisuodsay)




Page 140

9 NOISTHA

16 Jo Tt @%ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

wpoc3 BAID

[B}0L dnS

o4l

9'6 U0jjoss 995

40

PaAUOISSILWOO3P
9 0} S3IINIS
o381 dn melq

9v6

o4l

40

Bulepua |
1o} S9INIBS
ajnoe Ajijuap|

Gv6

wooc3 eAD

sishi|
s pasibe aq 0} sebueyo 9o1AIeS

40

%6 Aq ainjipuadxa

¥4ad uou
[[eJan0 8onpay

A4S

o4l

dHr

40

swiaIshs
wawabeuep
[eLIR)RY 9onpoy|

A

o4l

dHr

40

uolssiwiad 4o
INOYNM S|eLIa)l
JUB)|NSU0)

0} JUE)nsuo?)
dyepapun

0} Japiaoid

10 JyBu ajeuwIa |

44

o4l

[e}idsoy episjno
o180 Alepuooag Jo uoisinoid Jepus |

|

dHP

40

uoisinoid |e)dsoH
Aunwwo)
LETEN

lv6

SNIelIS Oy

10b1e]
|e1oueul

1509
auI 1bpng
01/600¢

Jo)duaseq 1oedw|

$9|e2S
auwr|

SUONDY pajielsq

(uby=1)
€1
A
Awoud

J9|qeuy

peay

ealy

o

alen Alepuoddg -
(6 UoN28g) ue|d uoljejessy

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH

(usp|oH uowis - 10}9341Q 9)eI20SSY/40}20.1q d|gisuodsay)




Page 141

9 NOISTHA

16 JO € 2%ed
0P SINI'T 9 UOTSIOA 600T ABIN U[d Aiqeuresng (&) 6 OWG00T AN 0£\6000\AIAVOd LOJOHAD - SYANADVVAIVOL LSNNML IOJOTON X

————

000968 63

[ejoL ans

o4l

S90S
paJeys jo abuel
Jayuny dojaneq

966

o4l

%01
Aq ainpuadxe

YompeN
[[eJan0 8onpay

GG6

000968

"swwebodd | |4dN
ay} Jo uonejuswajdul
a4} Jof OH

9} JO Jleyeq uo pjay
Jobpnq 8y} si s1y|.

uonejuawa|dwi
1] Joj weibold
|euoneN AejpQ

¥'G6

wo3

%01
Aq ainpuadxe

90IAIG paleys
[[eJan0 8onpay

€66

w613

Kouepunpal Aejunjop (i
soloueoeA ploH (I

%01
Aq ainpuadxe

y3lIp 10d
[[eJan0 8onpay

66

o4l

[4

Wd

HS

(uonepowwoase
HO3D pue
9SNOH |esJaniun
oul) sbuipjing

10 asn malnay

166

sShjels OV

1obie]
|eloueuly

JsoD aun
jobpng
01/6002

10)duosaq joeduwj

s9|eos
Wil

Suoljdy pajlejad

(uBy=1)
e-1
19A37
Ajuonud

Ja|qeuy

pes

ealy

=]

(usp|oH uowis - 10}9341Q 9)eI20SSY/40}23.1q d|gisuodsay)

ainjonJjselyu| -
(6 UoN29g) ue|d uoljejessy

01/600¢ Ueld Aj[iqeurejsng aiedyjesH




16 JO $t o3ed

9 NOIS¥IA 90" MNI'T 9 UOISIOA 600T ABJN Ueld AHIqeureisng (B) 6 OWG00T ANNL 0E\6002\AIVOL LOdOHD - SYANIDV\TIVOL LSNUL IOIOAIN X
sollfo
Juawabeuepy uied
000°00} 000°05¢ Z Joj Bulpunj sjeuiiia] | 01'9'6

anjeA payil| Jo aq Aew
yolym suoieolioads
80IAI3S Ul papnjoul

o4l 4 an/or Hr | Apuswuno seoines Jayl0 696
odl Buiuoissiwwodsap Jo suonesljdwi 3509 A 19 Hr sadoosopug 296
(peyess

AjIny jou Ba) Ayoedes
PaUOISSIWWIOD ||} e

Jauoissiwwod Bunesado Jou ale yoiym
j0u Japirodd uo ysLl jeioueul aoe|d $92IAIS J0j JuswAed
o4l — §3DIAI9S pauoIssIwWod A||nj Joy Aed AluQ A aonpal jpuadsng 1’96

Buiuoissiwwosap
woJ} sisAleue ysii [ealuld ysigeisy

sjopow Buipuny

Page 142

odl JuaJayip UaAIB sl [elpueul ysiige)s3 [4 1N Hr 921/USS dBOYHO 9'9'6
PauoISSIWWOD

o4l [4 1N Hr 891940 4\l 2onpay G906
(exaq)

o4l Bujuolssiwwoosp jo suopealjduwl 1509 [4 10 Hr HrY Je sojsoubelg 96

Buluoissiwwodap
o4l Lol siskeue sjsul [ealulfo ysijgejs] [4 3S/Hr Hr NI UoeIBU0D/OIA €96
o4l Buiuoissiwwodsap jo suonesydwi 3509 A IN HP eaoude dag|g 296

Buiuoissiwwosap
woJ} sisAleue ysii [ealuld ysigeisy

99l BUILOISSILULIOS3P JO SUonesldw 109 z M Hr sa1doosouLpY 1’06
«moo uby=1)
1961e) | 9uI]3ebpng So[eIs o
Smels 9y [e12UBUI4 0L/600z | Joaduoseq 10edw | SUOROY PaleIRd | muong H|qeug peat esly 4

(4oymeH Auiar — 10322.41Q 9)RI120SSY/10)9041Q d|qisuodsay)
pauoISSIWWO029(d 9q 0} S9JIAIS -
(9'6 uondag) ue|d uone|edsy
01/6002 Ue[d Ajijiqeurejsns aiedyjjeaH




Page 143

9 NOISTHA

16 JO 6t o3ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

yoeoidde [euoiypes
alow e 0} ‘|apojy
[leye Juswdinb3 juiop

000°Gv8 Z jojid wouy Aeme anoly | €1°9'6
SaJIAIRS ueRIulD m_m:_w
o4l 14 [le 104 Buipuny sjeulwia] | 719’6
MRS S|led
ooo,omw 2JIJ0U paAnles >vm9_< A plo]} m:_v::v_ ajeulua | 11’96
«moo ub=1)
19bie) | ®uI719bpng Soless _%> mﬁF
snieis ovy |e1oueul 01/6002 J0yduosaq 1oedw aw| suonay pajiersqg fauoug 3Iqeuy peaq ealy JEN|




Page 144

10.0 Communications Action Plan
Responsible Director/Associate Director - Fiona Field/Dave Rowson

Overall aim — to ensure that all stakeholders/partners and staff understand the reasons why
the PCT has a Healthcare Sustainability Plan, the actions being taken to address the
‘problem” and the consequences of success or failure. In particular, the action plan will
ensure action is taken in the following:

10.1 The development of regular and comprehensive briefing documents;
10.2 The organization and delivery of a comprehensive programme of GP practice visits;

10.3 The delivery of a comprehensive “consultation programme” focused on the
Healthcare Sustainability Plan, Escalation Plan;

10.4 The production of service specific “what does it mean for us” briefing packs, (e.g. GP
practice pack — Pharmacy contractor pack etc, etc); and

10.5 The delivery of a comprehensive Learning Programme for PCT staff in respect of the
PbR system and the implications of HRG4.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: N/A

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:A\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 46 of 51



Page 145

16 Jo Lt o3ed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
s|eJjal Jo Joedwi 1509 60 pue uapim o) weiboud buluie. jo 10adsal
paje|al ay} pue sueawl Rep || o/ Ul sJajuasaud |enuajod Jayjo J0eju0d 0} Y] YOYH pue ¥gd Jo
FOHH Jeym ‘sylom 10adsau ul abpajmouy
$82In0sal wajsAs ay) moy ‘Ygd 60 UOSMOY JO uoneuIWassIp
Juaund | Jojoadsal Ul )02 ay) Jo Rep || o/m @ yum ue|d jo uonejuswa|dwi ssnasip 0 Y1 ay} ajey|ioey
3|qeunuapl | uym Janyap 0} aleme WajsAs | Dd dy} 0} padojanap aq
Jaquiy JON | sluonusjuly/N | 9yew o} sl ssaooud ay | 60 Aely 11 weJbo.d Buluies] yelp Auapl 0} Y l ya u1 0} weaboud Buiedy | 97101
$92In0sal
waund syoed
UIyym Janiap 0y Busiig aonoeid
usaig VIN | sluojusjul y/N 60 AW G opun } 49/HS dd dO jo uopdnpold | G0}
sjuswaiinbal
|eba|
a1 §s8204d
"S3OIAIIS JO 3|qissod
Buluolssiwwodap ayy uo uo 60/9/62
$82In0sal uoisioap Aue asuanjjul SO yum "$921AU8S JO BuluoissIwLIodap
Juaund 0} Jop.o Ul siapes| | uoissnasip - AuawsaAulsip o} spJefal ul asuepinb Buluoissiwwoosap
ulyum Janap oy | |eool ypm sabebus Any | paouswiwiod Jua.INd 8y} ypm asuel|dwod o) spaebas ypm AUBLSBAISIP JO}
V/IN | sluonusjul y/N | 10d ay}jey ainsus o] YIOM ‘paainbal sylom Alojeledald ayy ayepapun o] l 49/HS da | seate uouoieynsuod | 4101
“Jauuew "60 unr ¢ saonoeud
JUaIdIY3 1509 Jsowl 0} paje|nald uns|ing Aljiqeulelsng alesy)jesH
$32IN0Sal ay} ur pue awiy 3ybu ‘(sabessaw
waund ay ye aoe|d Jybil ay) G do] ai1) ssad04d A1aA028Y BU} Ypm sao1oRld
ulyum Janiiap oy | ul ‘aed Jybu ayy apiroad Jsisse 0} sad1joeld Jo Ayjige ay) o3 spiebal 0} sabessaw £Aay Jo
usaig VIN | sluojusjuly/N 0} sd93lqeus o] Uym sanssi KoY s,10d Y} asliewuuns o ) 49MHS da Jsll e sjeuiplo-oo ol | €101
$92In0sal
Juaund "$3Nss| 21J19ads ad1j0RId MAIAB) 49
UIyym Janiap 0y 0] pue ‘uoljenis | 9d Juaund auy uiejdxa /0d s3913081d dO |8
VIN | sluojusjuly/N 0} JopJo uj sedoeld ||e 0} sysiA aBuelie o ) ro IdN Jsia o) eepspunol | 70}
Jes o) sbuyaiiq jeussyu| @
suojejuasald e
"SUOISIDaP paLIojul uRngdo e
a)ew 0} Way) 9|qeus splemuo djisqom
$921n0s3l 0} JapJo Ul pajaliq Ajjny Buizeaw 10d 8up uo ssauboid uo sajepdn e sjuawinaop Buialig
Juaund ale (sisupied pue yeys pieog Aypuow panss| aAISUayaldwiod
Ulypm Jon[sp 0y | @l) siepjoyxels [l yeyy | —aunp wold uis|ing Japjoyaxels ainjold sypuj e pue Jenbal
V/N | sl uonusjul /N | ainsus o} Buiag wie ay| :yBnoJyy a|qe|leAe apew 0} uoljeuLioju| l ua ua J0 Juawdojanaq L'L0)
(Ubiy=1)
€l
snieis 10b1e] 1509 aul 1Aa]
oYy Jeroueuly | 19bpng 01/6002 loidinsagoedw) | sojeag awig SUORaY pajieleq Auond |qeu3 pea] ealy 3

(uosmoy aneq/plal4 euol4 :10}0aJig 9}eI20SSY/10}0341qg d|qisuodsay)
(ueld g} uol29g) suoEIIUNWWOY) -
01/600¢ Ue|d Ajijiqeure}sng aiedyjjesH




Page 146

16 Jo 8¢ oSed

9 NOIS¥HA 0P 3NIT 9 UOISI2A 600T ABIL Ue[d AN[IqeuIEISng (B) 6 OW600T ANIL 0816000\TVOL LOJOED - SYANADWV\AIYOH ISNAL LOIDEIN X
SEELD
G Jo pouad 9|qissod Janasaym siseq Ajyaam e uo
Joj unl 0} 0 $95IN02 )M dySY paJan[ap aq o) buluies|
Kel Gz ojm

EIELEETNBETTES
‘Ayfenb ybiy Buusniep
0} spJefal yym ‘apew

edw paads 0} ajqissod
41 udye} 3q 0} yoeo.dde Jauies] ay) uied]
‘Bunsalayul atow welbo.d Buiuies ayy axew




Page 147

11.0 Information to Manage
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Stuart Jackson

Overall aim - to improve the quality of information, to enable appropriate and timely decision
making. In particular the action plan will ensure action is taken in the following areas:

11.1  The development and introduction of a daily/weekly/ monthly corporate activity
dashboard. This dashboard to be focused on the production of activity data rather
than performance data (e.g. A+E attendances/ Emergency admissions as opposed to
four hour breaches);

11.2 The development of an agreed PCT / Provider monthly information management
report;

11.3 The development of urgent-care and elective care monthly whole system dash
boards;

11.4 The development of potential ‘information systems’ to provide accurate and timely
data (ie, Emis qute); and

11.5 Review the ‘Better care / better value indicators’ — produce action plans.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: N/A

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 49 of 51



Page 148

9 NOISTHA

16 J0 0§ @3ed

0P NI'T 9 UOTSIOA 6007 ABIN U[d AN[IqeureIsng (&) 6 OWG00Z ANNI 0E\600TWMIVOd IDIDHAD - SVANADVIMIVO ISNAL IDIOAINX

JoUURW BAIj08Y0 1S0D

1SOW 8y} Ul paUoAlep
SISl jeyy pue swn
b1 8y} Je pue soe(d

uoneuLIoju|
seounosa uauno | JUBH B Ul 8180 JybL Anr jo pu3 dnoug) uogoy Jusweheuep
UIYM JOAI[SP 8} enjeoal sjusied B [EIIETEN
psd V/N [ 0} s!uoguajul ¥/N jeyj ansus 0] aunr jo pug dnoug josefo.d ysijges] | | 09d % 3s/ar Hl jojuswdoppred | 111
'sueyd
1suiebe soueuLioped
pue AyAgoe jo ‘60 Inp
Burioyuow parosduw| Aq s|ge|leAR 89 p|NOYS pue 8|NPBYOS
awn b sy 10 peaye pJeoqyseq a.eo Jusbin 4seq H_MMMM
1e pue aoe|d JybLi oy} Sloym Alpuow
$30IN083] JUaLIND ul ‘aueo sjendoidde 'seuleawi) psalbe Uiy M s|ge|ieAe 2180 BN}O3|3
UIYMIA JOAI[BP jo uoisiroud 94 [|Im pue spJeogyse Uo Bupiom 40/emr pue a.ed Juabin
Jaquiy VIN [ 03I uoguajul ¥/N ay}e|qeus o] | 60 AB Jopu3 | sules) ae) pauueld pue aleg jusbin 4 [LN/AS Hl jo uononpoau| | €L
‘Bupiodes SNINDD % AlEND '§
‘BunJodal souewopad v
"suonusjul BuiuoIssILWo Jodsy
1suiebe Aanoe Jo Bunodey ¢ JuswoeBeuepy
“ueld uonew.ou|
"$10BJU0D SA [enjoy Jo Bupode. soueuwlioped g Ajupuopy
saoinosaljuaLny | Po9IBe jo Buliojiuow Kely Jo pug Japinoid sjnoy
Iy JONIBP ‘yydep ul alow $90In0s94/55900.d eMr — 10d pes.be
usalp VIN [ 03I uoguajul ¥/N 1J9s0j0 9|qeus 0| Jdy jo pug salbe 0} 1S joaU O} Y/HF °| | % NSS10/40 Y1 | jojuswdopreg | z'L)1
jeoqyse
$99IN0SAl JUALIND Rinpoy aked >_vﬂmm>\dﬂ__mm
s Jonjep | Aepuooeg Bulpebeu delodio)
usslo vIN | o1siuoquayuryn | weisAs Buiwem Ae3 | g0 Bny Jo pu3 l N S | ejojuswdonag | L'LL1
{ubry=1)
g-1
snjels 10b1e] 1509 au 19A97]
vy |e1oueul{ 18bpng 01/6002 J101duosaq 1edw S3|eas awi| Suonay pajielsg Ruoud J9|qeu] pea Baly 19y

(uosyoer Jen)s :1032a41g 3jeI0SSY/4030941q dgIsuodsay)

(ueld L1 uonoasg) abeuey 03 uonewIoU| -
01/6002 Ue[d Ajijiqeurejsns aiedyjjeaH




Page 149

12.0 Performance Management of the Plan
Responsible Director/Associate Director — Mike Pyrah/Phil Wood

The performance management of this Plan can be split into two distinct elements, namely the
governance of the overall process and also the responsibility for management of the actual
delivery of the Plan, within the agreed timescales and financial targets.

e Governance
The governance is provided by the monthly Trust Board, supported by the associated
financial reporting.

In addition, more detailed scrutiny will be provided via the monthly Performance Committee,
being a formal sub committee of the Trust Board, again supported by a regular report.

e Management/Reporting
The Chief Executive will personally lead the delivery of this Plan on behalf of the Trust Board.

He will be supported on a day to day basis by a small Project Office, led by the Associate
Director of Finance.

The management will be carried out via regular fortnightly Leadership Team meetings,
supplemented by three distinct monthly Program Boards. Namely:

e Secondary Care (inc Commissioning, Acute Services and Contract Management);

¢ Joint Commissioning (inc NHS Continuing Care); and

e Primary Care Services (inc Prescribing).

Each of these Program boards being chaired by an Executive Director and reporting directly
into the Leadership Team.

In addition to these Program Boards, all other areas will also be led by a nominated Director,
who will be held accountable.

A number of these “Key” Projects, are also supported by a further detailed Project Plan,
outlining the milestones and targets, to further aid the management of the process.

Healthcare Sustainability Plan
Financial amount to “Recover”, already posted to budget (ie monitoring of achievement via
the monthly financial reporting process).

Target: N/A

Responsible Director:

Name Signature

Associate Director:

Name Signature

X:A\CECPCT TRUST BOARD\AGENDAS - CECPCT BOARD\2009\30 JUNE 2009\no 9 (a) Sustainability Plan May 2009 Version 6 LINK.doc VERSION 6
Page 51 of 51



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151 Agenda lte It

Care and Support Green Paper
15 July 2009

Key Messages

e The LGA has long called for reform of our adult social care and support
system. Councils do an incredible job to ensure the vulnerable members
of our society get the services they need but the system is not fit for the
challenges of the twenty first century. The combination of insufficient
funding, increased demand from an ageing society and escalating costs is
already placing an immeasurable strain on adult care.

e We recognise the perceived and real unfairness that has resulted from the
way the current system is funded and therefore support a nationally
consistent system of assessment alongside a commitment for the state to
fund an agreed minimum portion of each individuals care package.

e Councils know all too well, as the Government acknowledges in the
paper, that there is a need for society to pay more for care and support in
the future if we are to meet the needs of all those who require care. We
accept therefore the need to consider options such as insurance schemes.
This must be done alongside a wider debate on the total funding for
health and social care, to ensure scarce resources are used effectively and
focused on prevention, particularly after a decade that has seen funding
for health increase in real terms by more than 6 times the increase in
funding to local government to deliver services like social care. We do not
believe it is right to conclude that there is not enough money in the
system before having this debate.

e Local government already contributes a significant amount to total local
adult social care expenditure through Council Tax. We estimate that local
government contributes 39%, or more than £5.3bn to total adult care
spend of over £13bn. In some areas councils fund more than 80% of
their adult care expenditure through Council Tax.

e The Green Paper presents two system options: a part local/part national
model and a fully national model. We want to see a part-national, part-
local system with a single, transferable assessment of needs and means
being applicable anywhere in the country but the services to meet need
and the amount to pay for them decided locally.

e The LGA would strongly reject any attempt to ‘nationalise’ the care
service. We do not support the option for a National Care Service that is
fully nationally funded. This would:

» undermine councils’ flexibility in commissioning and designing care
services around the needs of the user, which is clearly at odds with the
commitment to personalisation;

» hamper the ability of councils to join-up social care, health, housing
and other systems to provide better outcomes for local people;

> be less responsive than a locally-funded and locally-managed system;

> lessen accountability by removing overall decision-making from
democratically elected local councillors. Local people would effectively
lose their voice on a service area that will affect everyone; and

» change the nature local government funding which could reduce local
flexibility.

Page 1 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

briefing

Local Government Assoc/ation OO

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 152

e Balancing national consistency and local flexibility is key to the future of a
successful, reformed system of adult care and support. Democratically
elected local government must be able to decide with individuals what
form support should take, within a national framework and an
adequately funded system. This means adequate resources being
allocated at a local level to take account of local need, local markets, and
the local range of statutory and non-statutory organisations that are
involved in care and support, which are unique to each area.

e Reform will take time but the difficult decisions that need to be made
must not allow this crucial issue to slip down the agenda nor can the real
funding pressures that are facing councils today be ignored. We are
pleased that social care is finally getting the recognition it deserves and
no longer being seen as the Cinderella service alongside health and
education.

The LGA set out detailed proposals for a reformed system in A Fairer Future —
available at http://www.lga.gov.uk/Iga/aio/2001605.

Main Proposals

e A new National Care Service with a universal offer for care and support
that is understandable to everyone, supports people to stay independent,
and provides services based on individuals' circumstances and need. Key
features include:

o astandardised national needs assessment;

o anationally set level of need at which people qualify for care and
support; and

o aset minimum portion of care to be funded by the state e.g. 1/3 or
1/4

e Recognition of the need to increase available funding, with three
preferred models:

o Partnership: A guaranteed minimum of every individual’s care costs
paid for by the State (regardless of the individual’s income), with the
remainder of costs being met by the individual (subject to their
means); or

o Insurance: An extension of the partnership model with the option of
additional care costs covered through insurance; or

o Comprehensive: The requirement for everyone over retirement age to
pay into a state insurance scheme.

e Two options for deciding how much an individual should receive to spend
on care and support:

o Part national/Part local — local authorities responsible for deciding
how much an individual should receive to spend on care and support;
or

o Fully national - government would decide how much funding an
individual should receive. This could be consistent nationally or vary
across the country, based on nationally agreed amounts.

e Renewed focus on joining up social care, health, housing and other
systems to provide seamless services that deliver better outcomes.

Page 2 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

briefing

Local Government Assoc/ation

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 153

e An expectation that councils will play a key role in helping to develop the
local market for care and support services.

e A commitment to looking at how the social care workforce will need to
develop in the medium and long-term through an action plan that will be
developed over the coming months.

e Possible integration of Attendance Allowance and social care funding.

e To establish an independent organisation with the role of providing
advice to government on best practice in terms of services and value for
money.

LGA contacts

If you would like more information please contact: Nathan Stower, Senior
Public Affairs Officer, nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk, 0207 664 3226 or Matt
Hibberd, LGA Policy Officer, matthew.hibbered@Iga.gov.uk, 0207 664 3160

Background

In the 2007 Pre-Budget Report and Comprehensive Spending Review the
government committed to a ‘radical rethink’ on long-term care, including a
Green Paper on how to best fund adult social care and support in the future.

In May last year the government published The case for change — why
England needs a new care and support system. This paper defined the
parameters of the debate and sought views. The public engagement process
concluded on 28 November 2008. A copy of our response is available at:
http://www.lga.gov.uk/Iga/aio/1271794

The deadline for consultation responses on the Green Paper is 13 November
20009.

Key Proposals
A summary of the main proposals in the Green Paper is provided below.

Chapter 3: the vision for the future
This chapter sets out what every adult will be able to expect from a new
National Care Service.

Prevention services

e Free support to help people stay independent and well for as long as
possible: a period of reablement following discharge from hospital;
housing support, telecare services to help individuals stay in their own
homes, information about prevention and early intervention, and a
possible independent body to provide advice on what works best for
those needing care and support.

National Assessment

e The right to have your care needs assessed in the same way and for the
assessment to be portable, so it applies anywhere in England.

e The right to have the same proportion of your care and support costs
paid for wherever you live.

A joined up service
e All services an individual may need (social care, health, housing, benefits)

Page 3 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 154

to work together smoothly.
e Only one assessment of needs to gain access to a whole range of care
and support services.

Information and advice
e Readily available information to help individuals understand what care and
support they are entitled to, and what is available in their area.

Personalised care and support

e Services to be based on personal circumstances and care and support to
be designed and delivered around individual need - including greater
choice over how and where individuals receive support.

Fair funding
e Money to be spent well on high quality, cost-effective services.

e Some state help for everyone who qualifies for care and support to help
meet the cost of care

LGA View

We support a greater focus on prevention and early intervention and believe
these types of service can dramatically improve people’s lives and save money
in the long term.

We have called for a single, transferable assessment that covers needs and
means and automatically triggers consideration of what related additional
benefits and allowances an individual may be entitled to in our recent policy
paper. Although individuals have a right to expect a package of care which
meets their needs, we do not believe individuals should expect to receive
exactly the same funding or services if they move into a new area. With an in-
depth knowledge of their budgets, their citizens’ needs, their partners’
priorities and resources, and the local infrastructure available to support
services, councils are best placed to interpret the local response to an
individual’s need. This local knowledge and flexibility is key to the delivery of
the adult social care transformation agenda, with its emphasis on achieving
outcomes for individuals, their families and communities.

We have long said that supporting older and disabled people is about more
than just providing services delivered by council adult social care departments.
It is about those departments working with appropriate health, housing,
leisure, library, and transport services to name a few. We therefore support a
focus on joining up all relevant services that support an individual’s wellbeing,
in particular through better alignment of planning and budgets.

Information and advice will be crucial to people in the future and councils,
working with their partners, are ideally situated to meet this demand.
Information and advice must play a dual role of helping people to think about
(and take steps to improve) their quality of life, and supporting people with
care needs who require services. The LGA and the IDeA, working with
partners, are undertaking more work on commissioning effective information,
advice and advocacy.

We support the personalisation agenda and believe it has great potential to
transform people’s experience of social care through personal budgets and
improved opportunities to exercise genuine choice and control; not just about
how support is provided, but also over the nature of that support.

Fair funding will be central to the realisation of these goals. True

Page 4 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

briefing

Local Government Assoc/ation

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 155

personalisation means a person having choice and control over all the public
support he or she receives so that the whole of it can be used flexibly. This
includes the wide range of public services (adult care and support, health,
housing, education, leisure, transport etc) which are brought together at the
local and personal level. Councils are in a position to pursue this agenda and
maximise the benefits of personalisation for both the individual and the public
purse if central government will work with them to remove the bureaucracy
and barriers which currently separate the funding streams which individuals
receive to support their everyday lives.

Chapter 4: making the vision a reality
The paper identifies three areas of work that need to be addressed to make
the government’s vision a reality.

Better joining up of social care with health, housing and benefits services

e The government is keen to join up adult care with health, housing and
benefits services as part of the commitment to keeping people well,
independent, and living in their own homes. The government envisages
the new National Care Service being fully joined up with the NHS to help
people receive more appropriate care in the right setting.

A wider range of services in care and support

e To ensure individuals can connect with providers local government is
expected to provide good quality information on what services are
available. Capturing service user experience of those services to help
shape information is also seen as important.

e The government also believes local government should play an important
role in supporting providers to shift their focus from the council to the
individual.

Better quality and innovation

e To ensure high quality, cost-effective services based on dignity and
respect the government emphasises the importance of supporting people
who work in care and support to develop their skills.

e To learn which care and support services work best the government
proposes giving an independent organisation the role of providing advice
to government on best practice and best value for money in care and
support.

LGA View

We agree that greater focus on partnership working and the effective joining
up of services will lead to improvements. Supporting older and disabled
people is about more than just providing services delivered by adult social
care providers; it is about ensuring individuals can access appropriate health,
housing, transport and leisure services. Councils — as leaders of their local
communities — are perfectly placed to work with a range of partners from the
public, private and independent sectors to ensure all relevant resources,
expertise and services work effectively together.

Councils recognise the role they have to play in helping to shape the local
care market, particularly as more people become recipients of Direct
Payments and Individual Budgets. They can shape a comprehensive supply of
care and support services that are responsive to the needs of local residents.

With a number of dedicated improvement bodies already in place — many of
which deal with adult care and support — we do not believe an additional
organisation is needed, particularly at a time when cost effectiveness is so

Page 5 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

briefing

Local Government Assoc/ation

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 156

important. This could duplicate existing work, increase bureaucracy, and raise
further accountability issues. What is important is that councils lead their
own improvement, with the IDeA supporting councils to learn from each
other. Sector-led improvement in this way is a valuable, cost effective way to
learn from each other. If a new independent body was to be created we
would not want their information and evidence requests to become a burden
on councils.

Chapter 5: the choices around funding

This chapter sets out four key issues that need to be addressed: (1) who
should be responsible for paying for care and, linked to that; whether or not
state funding should be distributed according to (2) where people live; (3)
when people develop a care and support need; (4) whether people are able
to pay.

Providing and paying for care

e The paper reveals that the vast majority of responses to the engagement
process argued that everyone in society is responsible for ensuring people
receive the care they need - from individuals, families, employers,
communities and government.

e |t reports that, of the three main ways of paying for care (individuals
paying for themselves, families paying, and everyone in society paying via
the state); almost everyone agreed that the government should share
care costs through a largely tax-based system.

Distributing state funding
Three principles to determine how state resources are spent are put forward
for discussion, based on the questions posed during the engagement process:

e Variation according to where people live: this is viewed as unfair by the
majority of respondents to the engagement process because where
someone lives should not impact on what level of care they can receive;

e Variation according to when someone develops a need: this is about
whether there should be one system for everyone, or different systems
based on the different needs people have. People are less concerned
about how money is raised so long as individuals with different needs are
entitled to the same outcomes;

e Variation according to whether people are able to pay for their care: the
paper reports mixed views with some people believing state funds should
focus on people with greatest need (and lowest means), but others
finding it unfair that those who save all their lives have to pay for
themselves, whilst those who have never saved get their care for free.

LGA View

This chapter highlights some of the difficult issues that need to be addressed
if reform is to be lasting and successful. The mix of views from people who
contributed to the engagement process shows it is difficult to build strong
consensus for any one funding model.

We support a nationally applicable needs test because we agree that the
availability of quality care should not be determined by where an individual
lives. We also support means testing for higher care costs, with
comprehensive information and advice available for those making their own
arrangements.

Chapter 6: funding options
This chapter sets out the government’s thoughts on two key funding issues:

Page 6 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 157

making the most of the money currently in the system; and how to bring
more money into the system.

Making the best use of existing funding

e The government acknowledges the many different pots of money that
are currently used to pay for care and support, and argues many of these
(e.g. Supporting People and Disability Living Allowance) are working well.

e Other funding pots are seen to be used less well. Attendance Allowance
(AA) is identified in this respect because recipients get it regardless of
how well-off they are.

e The government suggests looking at how to integrate AA funding with
social care funding.

Bringing new money into the system

Five funding models are outlined as ways of bringing new money into the
system: individuals paying for themselves; partnership; insurance;
comprehensive; and tax funded. Of these, the government has three
preferred options for a funding model that is universal, helps everyone who
needs care to pay for it, is fair and affordable and is simple and easy to
understand. These are the partnership model, the comprehensive model, and
the insurance model.

1) The partnership model

e The responsibility of paying for care would be shared between the
government and the individual. Everyone, regardless of income or assets,
would have a guaranteed minimum proportion (for example a quarter, or
a third) of their care costs paid by the state.

e An individual's income and assets would determine the personal
contribution. For example, someone with a moderate income who owned
their own home might be expected to pay for half of their care costs, but
if their needs became more severe the government might assume a
greater responsibility. Conversely, someone on a low income who did not
own their own home might have all their care paid for by the state, even
if their need was comparatively low.

2) Insurance model

e As per the partnership model but with the cost of the self-funded
element covered through optional insurance. The state could either work
with the private sector to strengthen the insurance market or create a
state based insurance scheme. Insurance payments could be made as a
lump sum or instalments, either before or after retirement or death.

3) The comprehensive model

e Everyone over retirement age would be required to pay a set amount (or
an amount related to what they could afford) into a state insurance
scheme.

e The amount payable could vary depending on an individual’s savings or
assets, or the amount could be set at a particular level.

e A free care system for people of working age would sit alongside this
funding model.

e The government would offer a range of ways to pay the amount: in one
go out of an individual’s savings, spread over the course of an individual's
retirement; or out of an individual’s estate upon death.

The other options
e The other funding models (Pay Your Own and Tax Funded) are dismissed
by the government for the following reasons:

Page 7 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 158

e The Pay Your Own model is dismissed because some people would not
be able to afford to pay for their care, and those that could might lose
all their savings;

e The Tax Funded model is dismissed as it would put the majority of the
burden for paying for care on people of working age.

Accommodation costs

In addition to care and support costs, individual are required to pay
accommodation cots e.g. food and lodging. It is proposed that a universal
deferred payment mechanism, allowing residential care and accommodation
costs to be charged upon a person’s estate when they die.

Carers

e The government acknowledges the vital role that carers play in the
current system.

e Under a new system the government would ensure everyone who needs
care and support will get a national assessment, information and advice
and personalised care and support. These measures, the government
believes, will help carers by making the process of getting care and
support easier.

A national or local funding system?

The government wants to establish a standardised national needs assessment,
a nationally set level of need at which individuals qualify for state funding and
a guaranteed portion of funding for an individuals care package. Beyond this
there are two options:

e Part national, part local. Under this model people would know that they
were entitled to have their needs met and that a proportion of their care
package would be paid for by the state. Beyond this councils would be
responsible for deciding how much an individual should receive to spend
on overall care and support. This would provide flexibility to take account
of local circumstances.

e Ffully national. Under this model central government would decide how
much funding people would get to meet their needs, not councils. This
could be consistent across the country or could vary. The government
recognises such a model would mean major changes to the way in which
money for care and support is raised and spent. Unlike the part national,
part local system, this fully national proposal would not take account of
the different costs of care across England, and councils would therefore
not have the ability to decide how much they would spend on care.

LGA View
This is the most important chapter in the paper and this briefing can only
summarise some of the complex and difficult issues it discusses.

We believe a fairer funding settlement must consider the totality of money
available in the current system — in particular health. We support the idea of
looking at whether certain funding streams could be brought into the wider
care funding pot.

We believe the government’s three preferred options for increasing available
funding are the only three realistic options of the five put forward. Whatever
system might be established in the future, local government will continue to
play a crucial role in its operation and success — from supporting people to
receive good quality financial advice to incentivising financial products which
enable people to make their personal contribution.

Page 8 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 159

We strongly oppose a fully national funding system. The green paper
recognises such a model would make it difficult for councils to tailor care
packages to individuals’ needs and would significantly lessen councils’ control
of costs. A fully national system would have to be fully funded through
national taxation, which would mean a transfer of funding out of the local
government finance system. This would involve enormous amounts of money
and could jeopardise the huge range of other invaluable services councils
commission and provide for their local communities.

We want to see a part-national, part-local system with a single, transferable
assessment of needs and means being applicable anywhere in the country but
the services to meet need and the amount to pay for them being decided
locally. This would be key to the personalisation agenda and would provide
the flexibility needed to take account of local variation in market costs and
ensure that individuals receive the care and support they need.

We are pleased to see that the needs of carers are covered in the paper.
Informal carers are an often undervalued but crucial part of our care and
support system, saving the state £87bn a year according to research. Their
role will remain critical in any future system so their needs also need to be
addressed.

Next steps
The LGA will work with members and officers and other stakeholders to:

e develop a response to the consultation that reflects the importance,
experience and expertise of local government in developing and
delivering adult care services;

e analyse in greater detail the government’s two preferred models for
increasing the amount of money available for adult care;
ensure the issues identified in this briefing are addressed; and
maintain the profile of the debate on adult social care for the coming
months.

Page 9 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030
Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 160

Government Ageing Strategy

The Care and Support Green Paper is a vital part of the Government’s new
wide ranging ageing strategy published yesterday. The strategy is briefly
summarised below. A full copy is available at:
http://www.hmg.gov.uk/buildingasocietyforallages.aspx

The main proposal affecting local government is the Government’s plan to
develop a new National Agreement between central government, national
agencies that represent local authorities (including the LGA) and Primary Care
Trusts to "help them prioritise’ the needs of older people in their area.

Key Messages
A number of case studies included in the consultation document illustrate
that councils are taking a leading role in empowering and supporting
older people to redesign services and policies that meet their needs. The
LGA Group is committed to supporting councils achieving their ambitious
and innovative plans.

e Wedo not believe that a new National Agreement between central
government, national agencies that represent local authorities and PCTS
to help them prioritise the needs of older people in local communities is
necessary as this is already part of councils' day to day work. It would be
a retrograde step in imposing national requirements in place of local
solutions and would not mean a better deal for older people.

Background

The strategy is described as building on the 2005 Opportunity Age strategy
which the Government states has largely been delivered. The Government's
vision is ‘a society for all ages, where people are no longer defined by age
and everyone is able to play a full part.” This strategy sets out steps the
Government plans to take to achieve this vision.

Summary of Proposals

Chapter 3 - Having the later life you want

e Online, telephone and face-to-face support from across Government and
the third sector will be drawn together to create a ‘one stop shop’ for
individuals wanting to plan ahead, including information about planning
for retirement, state pensions, workplace pensions and working longer.

e An Adult Advancement and Careers Service will be made available across
England from August 2010.

e A new national Active at 60 programme will be launched in 2010 that
will bring together information from across Government to inform people
about the opportunities available to lead an active life.

e The Government will work with local authorities to test an all-in-one
smart card, based on concessionary bus passes, to provide both central
and local government entitlements.

Chapter 4 - Older people at the heart of families

e From 2011, National Insurance credits towards the basic State Pension
will be provided to grandparents who care for members of their family
aged 12 or under for at least 20 hours a week.

e A Families and Relationships Green Paper will be published in the autumn
alongside a summit for grandparents.

e From December, voluntary access to training programmes will be
extended to carers who are employed for 16 weeks or less.

e The Government will run digital inclusion projects targeted at giving
people in sheltered housing access to new technology.

Page 10 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 161

Chapter 5 - Engaging with work and the economy

e The 2011 review of the Default Retirement Age of 65 will be brought
forward to 2010.

e The Government will seek to attract ex-teachers to help them deliver their
pledge of 600,000 one-to-one tuition places in schools.

e A package of support, both financial and advice, will be developed for
people over 50 considering self-employment or social enterprise.

Chapter 7 - Better public services for later life

e The Government will develop an agreement between central
government, national agencies that represent local authorities (including
the LGA) and Primary Care Trusts to ‘help them prioritise’ the needs of
older people in their area. This agreement will include commitments and
outline existing and future duties for local authorities and PCTs relating to
ageing issues. It is intended to be launched immediately following
consultation on this strategy in autumn.

e Performance will be monitored through the CAA framework. Poor
performance will be addressed by Government Offices working with
central and local partners to agree appropriate action. Central
government retains its powers to intervene where poor performance is
longstanding. This may include an ‘Improvement Notice’ issued by the
Secretary of State, use of statutory powers to direct an organisation to
take specific action, or removal of specified functions.

e The new ‘National Agreement’ will be also used to share best practice.
The Government will develop steps for adopting and implementing this
strategy and communicating it to all councillors, chief executives and local
strategic partnerships.

e The Government will provide small amounts of funding to test new and
innovative approaches to delivering services for older people at a local
level.

e The Government has announced new regional forums on ageing and
new resources in Government Offices to encourage and support local
areas to engage better with their local people in the design and delivery
of services.

e In 2008 the Government announced the introduction of health
protection packages with the aim of encouraging the use of prevention
services. Details of these packages will be provided later this year.

Chapter 8 - Building communities for all ages

e The Government will provide training on making the most of public
transport to those who stop driving and start using other transport.

e Alternatives to the national concessionary fares scheme will be explored.

Responding to the Consultation

The proposals set out in the strategy are part of a full, formal public
consultation. The Government is seeking views and is keen to receive
responses from local government on how to implement the proposals and
what more can be done. The closing date for responses is Monday, 12
October 2009. The LGA will be responding in detail. If you would like your
authority to respond, please visit the following link to find out how:
http://www.hmg.gov.uk/buildingasocietyforallages/consultation.aspx

Page 11 of 11
For further information please contact Nathan Stower in LGA public affairs nathan.stower@Iga.gov.uk

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ

DX 119450 Clerkenwell 3 Email info@lga.gov.uk

Tel 020 7664 3000 Fax 020 7664 3030

Local Government Assoc/ation

briefing

Information centre 020 7664 3131 www.lga.gov.uk



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163 Agenda ltem 9

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

REPORT TO: HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

29 July 2009

Date of Meeting:

Report of: Borough Solicitor

Subject/Title: Redesign of beds outside hospitals — Knutsford and
Congleton

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 To update the Committee on the Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care
Trust's (PCT) project to redesign beds outside hospitals in relation to Knutsford
and Congleton and consider how this should be progressed.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee establish a Task/Finish Panel to exercise the health
scrutiny function in relation to the Primary Care Trust Redesign of Beds outside
Hospitals — Knutsford and Congleton.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 A Task/Finish Panel will enable a small group of Members to give detailed
consideration to the proposals and undertake the Council’s health scrutiny role.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1  Mainly Knutsford, Congleton Rural, Congleton Town East, Congleton Town
West and Bucklow, there may be other Wards depending on where the health
services affected draw their patients from

5.0 Local Ward Members

5.1  Councillors Wilkinson, Hunter, Ranfield, Gilbert, Kolker, Wray, Brown, Mason,
Thwaite, Baxendale, Domleo, Topping, Knowles, Macrae and Walton.

6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

6.1  Not known at this stage.

7.0 Financial Implications for Transition Costs (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 164

7.1 None identified at the moment.

8.0 Financial Implications 2009/10 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

8.1  Not known at this stage.

9.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)
9.1  None.

10.0 Risk Management

10.1  There are no identifiable risks.

11.0 Background and Options

11.1  In May 2007, Cheshire County Council established a Task/Finish Panel to
undertake the health scrutiny role in relation to the Central and Eastern
Cheshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) Community Healthcare Project. The role of
Health Scrutiny is to comment on:

®m Whether as a statutory body, it has been properly consulted;

® Whether, in developing proposals for service changes, the consulting
body has taken into account the public interest through appropriate
patient and public involvement and consultation;

m Whether the proposals are in the interests of the local health service.

11.2 The terms of reference of the Task/Finish Panel were:

“To exercise the Health Scrutiny function in relation to the Knutsford Project,
and thereafter the Congleton and Northwich Projects which may flow from the
Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT’s overall strategy on the development of
Community Services”.

11.3 The membership of the Task/Finish Panel was;

Councillor Fletcher (Chairman)
Councillor Davies

Councillor Flude

Councillor Barber

Councillor Baxendale
Councillor Harris

Mr Clemens.

11.4 The Panel met on three occasions with the last meeting taking place on 6
January when Members were updated on progress with appointing a Developer for
both the Knutsford and Congleton projects, site options and community engagement.

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



11.5

Page 165

At the meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee on 23

February 2009, Members received a presentation from Fiona Field, Director of
Governance and Strategic Planning and Sue Noyce, Community Healthcare Re-
design Project Lead, Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT on the key aspects of the
redesign project:

11.6

11.7

12.0

12.1

13.0

The development of modern primary care and community based hospital
facilities;

The delivery of care closer to home through the provision of flexible, integrated
clinical services;

Increased access to a range of intermediate tier services in patients’ own
homes and in purpose built community bed facilities;

Increased access to diagnostic and outpatient facilities in the community;

The provision of community based mental health teams to support service
users in their homes.

The benefits included better integration of GP services with community nursing
and secondary care, provision of modern facilities, opportunities to develop new
integrated services and the provision of home and community bed-based
services that would be of particular benefit to older people. The Department of
Health had emphasised the importance of care being provided closer to
people’s own homes or in their homes.

The PCT'’s redesign project is continuing and it is proposed that a Task/Finish
Panel be reconstituted to exercise the health scrutiny function in relation to the
Primary Care Trust’s proposals in relation to Knutsford and Congleton.

Overview of Year One and Term One Issues

The recommendation will enable the Council to undertake its health scrutiny
role.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report

writer:

Name: Denise French

Designation: Scrutiny Officer

Tel No: 01270 529643

Email: denise.french@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 The Cheshire and Wirral Councils' Joint Scrutiny Committee - 7 May 2009
	6 Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust Commissioning Strategic Plan 2009-2014
	7 Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust Healthcare Sustainability Plan 2009/10
	8 Care and Support Green Paper
	9 Redesign of beds outside hospitals - Knutsford and Congleton

